AGENDA

Wednesday, January 20, 2016 6:30 P.M. Open Session

REGULAR MEETING
CITY COUNCIL, AIRPORT COMMISSION,

MARINA ABRAMS B NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, PRESTON PARK SUSTAINABLE
COMMUNITY NON-PROFIT CORPORATION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE

FORMER MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Council Chambers
211 Hillcrest Avenue
Marina, California

VISION STATEMENT

Marina will grow and mature from a small town bedroom community to a small city which is
diversified, vibrant and through positive relationships with regional agencies, self-sufficient. The City
will develop in a way that insulates it from the negative impacts of urban sprawl to become a desirable
residential and business community in a natural setting. (Resolution No. 2006-112 - May 2, 2006)

MISSION STATEMENT

The City Council will provide the leadership in protecting Marina’s natural setting while developing
the City in a way that provides a balance of housing, jobs and business opportunities that will result in
a community characterized by a desirable quality of life, including recreation and cultural
opportunities, a safe environment and an economic viability that supports a high level of municipal
services and infrastructure. (Resolution No. 2006-112 - May 2, 2006)

1.

2.

)
CALL TO ORDER Qeik

ROLL CALL & ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM: (City Council, Airport
Commissioners, Marina Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation, and Successor Agency of the
Former Redevelopment Agency Members)

Nancy Amadeo, David W. Brown, Gail Morton, Mayor Pro-Tem/Vice Chair Frank
O’Connell, Mayor/Chair Bruce C. Delgado

CLOSED SESSION: As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the (City
Council, Airport Commissioners, Marina Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation, and
Redevelopment Agency Members) may adjourn to a Closed or Executive Session to
consider specific matters dealing with litigation, certain personnel matters, property
negotiations or to confer with the City’s Meyers-Milias-Brown Act representative.
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4.
5.

MOMENT OF SILENCE & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Please stand)
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
a Certificate of Adjournment — Teo Colon

b Recreation Ahnouncements

SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE FLOOR: Any
member of the Public or the City Council may make an announcement of special events or meetings
of interest as information to Council and Public. Any member of the public may comment on any
matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction which is not on the agenda. Please state your name for
the record. Action will not be taken on an item that is not on the agenda. If it requires action, it will
be referred to staff and/or placed on a future agenda. City Council members or City staff may
briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as permitted by Government Code Section
54954.2. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity to speak, please limit comments to
a maximum of four (4) minutes. Any member of the public may comment on any matter listed on this
agenda at the time the matter is being considered by the City Council

CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER MARINA
REDEVELOPMENT AGENGY: Background information has been provided to the Successor
Agency of the former Redevelopment Agency on all matters listed under the Consent Agenda, and
these items are considered to be routine. All items under the Consent Agenda are normally
approved by one motion. Prior to such a motion being made, any member of the public or the City
Council may ask a question or make a comment about an agenda item and staff will provide a
response. If discussion or a lengthy explanation is required, that item will be removed from the
Consent Agenda for Successor Agency to the former Marina Redevelopment Agency and placed at
the end of Other Action Items Successor Agency to the former Marina Redevelopment Agency.

CONSENT AGENDA: Background information has been provided to the City Council, Airport
Commission, Marina Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation, and Redevelopment Agency on all matters
listed under the Consent Agenda, and these items are considered to be routine. All items under the
Consent Agenda are normally approved by one motion. Prior to such a motion being made, any
member of the public or the City Council may ask a question or make a comment about an agenda
item and staff will provide a response. If discussion or a lengthy explanation is required, that item
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed at the end of Other Action Items.

a. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

(1) Accounts Payable Check Numbers: 77664-77784, totaling $262,972.94
Wire transfers totaling: $62,850.81

b. MINUTES:
(1) January 5, 2016, Regular City Council Meeting
(2) January 12, 2016, Special City Council Meeting

c. CLAIMS AGAINST THE CITY: None

d. AWARD OF BID: None

e. CALL FOR BIDS: None
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f. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS:

1)

City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-, approving Investment
Policy and Management Plan for City of Marina and Successor Agency to the
former Marina Redevelopment Agency.

g. APPROVAL OF AGREEMENTS:

1)

(@)

(3)

City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-, approving an Agreement
with R.L. Hastings & Associates, LLC, of Placerville, California in the amount
of four thousand dollars ($4,000) for Administrative Subcontractor Services to
perform required monitoring of project for compliance with requirements of the
HOME Program to support the Rockrose Gardens Project, and; authorizing City
Manager to execute Agreement on behalf of City subject to final review and
approval by the City Attorney.

City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-, approving a Fee
Agreement between the City of Marina and EAH Inc. for provision of planning,
engineering and City Attorney services related to review, and processing of the
VTC Permanent Housing Project located on Hayes Circle, Marina, California
(APN:031-021-040), and; authorizing the Finance Director to make the
appropriate accounting and budgetary entries, and; authorizing the City Manager
to execute the Fee Agreement on behalf of the City subject to final review and
approval by the City Attorney.

City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-, approving an amendment
to the FY 15/16 budget appropriating additional funds for preparation of the City
of Marina’s 5" Cycle Housing Element Update; approving a consulting services
agreement between the City of Marina and Veronica Tam and Associates Inc. of
Pasadena, CA for the preparation of the Housing Element update and update to
the City of Marina’s Affordable Housing Ordinance (Municipal Code Chapter
17.45); and authorize the City Manager to execute the contracts on behalf of the
City, subject to final review and approval by the City Attorney; and authorize
the Finance Director to make the necessary budgetary and accounting entries.

h. ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS: None

i. MAPS: None
j. REPORTS: (RECEIVE AND FILE):

(1)

(2)

(3)

City Council receiving Investment Reports for the City of Marina and City of
Marina as Successor Agency to the Marina Redevelopment Agency for months
ended October 31, November 30, and December 31, 2016.

City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-, receiving and filing City
of Marina audited Annual Financial Reports for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015.

City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016, receiving and filing City
of Marina single audit report for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015.

k. FUNDING & BUDGET MATTERS: None
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I. APPROVE ORDINANCES (WAIVE SECOND READING): None

m. APPROVE APPOINTMENTS: None

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

a. City Council to receive staff report and adopt an urgency ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Marina amending Municipal Code, Title 17 (Zoning) to add
Section 17.04.210.5 to define “cultivation of marijuana,” Section 17.04.210.7 to
define Commercial Cannabis Activity and 17.06.020, subsections p and g to
prohibit commercial cannabis activity and the cultivation of marijuana in all zones
except for the cultivation of no more than twenty (20) plants by qualified patients
with an identification card, at his or her personal residence.

10. OTHER ACTIONS ITEMS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER
MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY: Action listed for each Agenda item is that
which is requested by staff. The Successor Agency may, at its discretion, take action on any
items. The public is invited to approach the podium to provide up to four (4) minutes of
public comment.

11. OTHER ACTION ITEMS: Action listed for each Agenda item is that which is requested by
staff. The City Council may, at its discretion, take action on any items. The public is invited
to approach the podium to provide up to four (4) minutes of public comment.

Note: No additional major projects or programs should be undertaken without review of the impacts
on existing priorities (Resolution No. 2006-79 — April 4, 2006).

a.  City Council to receive subcommittee report and adopt Resolution No 2016-, to
amend the City Manager Employment Agreement to increase salary and benefits,
authorize signature by the Mayor, approve amendments or additions to the salary
plan and make the necessary budgetary adjustments.

12. COUNCIL & STAFF INFORMATIONAL REPORTS:

a. Monterey County Mayor’s Association [Mayor Bruce Delgado]
b. Council and staff opportunity to ask a question for clarification or make a brief report
on his or her own activities as permitted by Government Code Section 54954.2.

13.  ADJOURNMENT:

CERTIFICATION

I, Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk, of the City of Marina, do hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing
agenda was posted at City Hall and Council Chambers Bulletin Board at 211 Hillcrest Avenue,
Monterey County Library Marina Branch at 190 Seaside Circle, City Bulletin Board at the corner of
Reservation Road and Del Monte Boulevard on or before 6:30 p.m., Friday, January 15, 2016.

ANITA SHARP, DEPUTY CITY CLERK
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City Council, Airport Commission and Redevelopment Agency meetings are recorded on tape and
available for public review and listening at the Office of the City Clerk, and kept for a period of 90
days after the formal approval of MINUTES.

City Council meetings may be viewed live on the meeting night and at 12:30 p.m. and 3:00 p.m. on
Cable Channel 25 on the Sunday following the Regular City Council meeting date. In addition,
Council meetings can be viewed at 6:30 p.m. every Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday. For more
information about viewing the Council Meetings on Channel 25, you may contact Access Monterey
Peninsula directly at 831-333-1267.

Agenda items and staff reports are public record and are available for public review on the City's
website (www.ci.marina.ca.us), at the Monterey County Marina Library Branch at 190 Seaside Circle
and at the Office of the City Clerk at 211 Hillcrest Avenue, Marina between the hours of 10:00 a.m.
5:00 p.m., on the Monday preceding the meeting.

Supplemental materials received after the close of the final agenda and through noon on the day of the
scheduled meeting will be available for public review at the City Clerk’s Office during regular office
hours and in a ‘Supplemental Binder’ at the meeting.

Members of the public may receive the City Council, Airport Commission and Successor Agency of the
Former Redevelopment Agency Agenda at a cost of $55 per year or by providing a self-addressed,
stamped envelope to the City Clerk. The Agenda is also available at no cost via email by notifying the
City Clerk at marina@ci.marina.ca.us.

ALL MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. THE CITY OF MARINA DOES NOT
DISCRIMINATE AGAINST PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. Council Chambers are wheelchair
accessible. Meetings are broadcast on cable channel 25 and recordings of meetings can be provided
upon request. To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print
agendas or other accommodations, please call (831) 884-1278 or e-mail: marina@ci.marina.ca.us.
Requests must be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.

Upcoming 2016 Meetings of the City Council, Airport
Commission, Marina Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation, Preston
Park Sustainable Community Nonprofit Corporation and
Successor Agency of the Former Redevelopment Agency
Regular Meetings: 5:30 p.m. Closed Session;

6:30 p.m. Regular Open Sessions

Tuesday, February 2, 2016 *** Wednesday, August 3, 2016
**Wednesday, February 17, 2016 Tuesday, August 16, 2016
Tuesday, March 1, 2016 **Wednesday, September 7, 2016
Tuesday, March 15, 2016 Tuesday, September 20, 2016
Tuesday, April 5, 2016 Tuesday, October 4, 2016

Tuesday, April 19, 2016 Tuesday, October 18, 2016
Tuesday, May 3, 2016 Tuesday, November 1, 2016
Tuesday, May 17, 2016 Tuesday, November 15, 2016
Tuesday, June 7, 2016 Tuesday, December 6, 2016

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 Tuesday, December 20, 2016


http://www.ci.marina.ca.us/
mailto:marina@ci.marina.ca.us
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** Wednesday, July 6, 2016
Tuesday, July 19, 2016

** Regular Meeting rescheduled due to Monday Holiday
*** Regular Meeting rescheduled due to National Night Out Event
NOTE: Regular Meeting dates may be rescheduled by City Council only.

CITY HALL HOLIDAYS
(City Hall Closed)

Martin Luther King, Jr., Birthday Monday, January 18, 2016
Presidents’ Day Monday, February 15, 2016
Memorial Day Monday, May 30, 2016
Independence Day (City Offices Closed) Monday, July 4, 2016
Labor Day Monday, September 5, 2016
Veterans Day Friday, November 11, 2016
Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 24, 2016
Thanksgiving Break Friday, November 25, 2016
Winter Break Friday, December 23, 2016 —Monday, January 2, 2017

2016 COMMISSION DATES

Upcoming 2016 Meetings of Design Review Board
34 Wednesday of every month. Meetings are held at the Council Chambers at 6:30 P.M
** = Change in location due to conflict with Council meeting

April 20, 2016 July 20, 2016 October 19, 2016
May 18, 2016 August 17, 2016 November 16, 2016
June 15, 2016 September 21, 2016 December 21, 2016

Upcoming 2016 Meetings of Economic Development Commission
15t Thursday of every month. Meetings are held at the Council Chambers at 6:30 P.M.

February 4, 2016 May 5, 2016 September 1, 2016
March 3, 2016 June 2, 2016 October 6, 2016
April 7, 2016 July 7, 2016 November 3, 2016

August 4, 2016 December 1, 2016

Upcoming 2016 Meetings of Planning Commission
2"d and 4™ Thursday of every month. Meetings are held at the Council Chambers at 6:30 P.M.

January 14, 2016 May 12, 2016 September 8, 2016
January 28, 2016 May 26, 2016 September 22, 2016
February 11, 2016 June 9, 2016 October 13, 2016
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February 25, 2016 June 23, 2016
March 10, 2016

October 27, 2016

July 14, 2016 November 10, 2016
March 24, 2016 July 28, 2016 November 24, 2016 (Cancelled)
April 14, 2016 August 11, 2016 December 8, 2016
April 28, 2016

August 25, 2016 December 22, 2016 (Cancelled)

Upcoming 2016 Meetings of Public Works Commission
3" Thursday of every month. Meetings are held at the Council Chambers at 6:30 P.M.

January 21, 2016

May 19, 2016 September 15, 2016
February 18, 2016 June 16, 2102 October 20, 2016
March 17, 2016 July 21, 2016

November 17, 2016
April 21, 2016

August 18, 2016 December 15, 2016

Upcoming 2016 Meetings of Recreation &
Cultural Services Commission
15t Wednesday of every quarter month. Meetings are held at the Council Chambers at 6:30 P.M.

March 2, 2016

June 1, 2016 September 7, 2016 December 7, 2016



(ity of Marina

Adjournment in
Remembrance

PRESENTED TO THE FAMILY OF

Teo Colon

The Marina City Council adjourned the meeting of January 20, 2016 in remembrance
of Teo Colon. He is dearly missed and cherished by all of us.

PRESENTED BY

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor

Frank O’Connell, Mayor Pro-Tem Nancy Amadeo, Council Member

= MOVEMBER AD

s

David W. Brown Council Member > Gail Morton, Council Member

-
------

Dated this 20" day of January 2016




*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-08-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/08/2016

Agenda Item: 8a
City Council Meeting of
January 20, 2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA
Check 01/08/2016 77664 Accounts Payable A-1 Sweeping Service 455.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
11-03-15 11/03/2015 Airport Sweeping Service 455.00
Check 01/08/2016 77665 Accounts Payable Ace Hardware 57.56
Invoice Date Description Amount
057102 12/16/2015 Bldg Maint & Repair 2.70
057085 12/15/2015 Bldg Maint & Repair 10.29
057087 12/15/2015 Bldg Maint & Repair - Returned (2.06)
057096 12/16/2015 Bldg Maint & Repair - Deck screw 10.85
057106 12/16/2015 Bldg Maint & Repair 17.36
057107 12/16/2015 Keys Made for New Tenant 8.65
057039 12/10/2015 Purchase Batteries 9.77
Check 01/08/2016 77666 Accounts Payable Andon Laundrymat Service 63.05
Invoice Date Description Amount
12 12/10/2015 Laundry Service - towels and rags 63.05
Check 01/08/2016 77667 Accounts Payable ASCAP 336.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
500586647 12/20/2015 Citywide Music License 336.00
Check 01/08/2016 77668 Accounts Payable Branch's Janitorial 2,509.47
Invoice Date Description Amount
225535 11/24/2015 janitorial services for November 2,059.47
225538 11/24/2015 Airport Janitorial Services 450.00
Check 01/08/2016 77669 Accounts Payable Comcast 321.04
Invoice Date Description Amount
11-26-15 11/26/2015 Cable service 26.07
11-14-15 11/14/2015 Teen Center tv & internet 152.95
12-14-15 12/14/2015 Teen Center tv & internet 142.02
Check 01/08/2016 77670 Accounts Payable Commercial Environmrnt Landscape 7,500.00
Invoice Date Description Amount

User: Monika Collier
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-08-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/08/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
2796-1015 10/01/2015 Airport Landscape Services 2,500.00
2796-1115 11/01/2015 Airport Landscape Services 2,500.00
2796-1215 12/01/2015 Airport Landscape Services 2,500.00
Check 01/08/2016 77671 Accounts Payable Directv 5.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
27238799115 11/26/2015 TV Service - Pilot's Lounge 5.00
Check 01/08/2016 77672 Accounts Payable Emergency Vehicle Specialists 1,967.68
Invoice Date Description Amount
4856 12/04/2015 Docking station for #5400 1,250.88
4893 12/17/2015 Remove existing docking station - 5411 75.00
4908 12/21/2015 Kenwood full feature control head - 5411 641.80
Check 01/08/2016 77673 Accounts Payable Engineered Fire Systems 800.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
10990 12/05/2015 Sprinkler Plan Check for BLB, Springhill Suites & 930 2nd Ave 800.00
Check 01/08/2016 77674 Accounts Payable Epic Aviation 15,958.57
Invoice Date Description Amount
6796596 11/25/2015 Airport Fuel (Jet-A) Purchase 15,958.57
Check 01/08/2016 77675 Accounts Payable Farmer Brothers Co. 219.52
Invoice Date Description Amount
62939422 12/22/2015 Fire Dept Coffee 219.52
Check 01/08/2016 77676 Accounts Payable First Alarm 852.77
Invoice Date Description Amount
885102 12/15/2015 Alarm monitor - Corp Yard (11/16/15 - 3/31/16) 309.00
885101 12/15/2015 Fire System Monitoring, B524 102.15
877734 11/19/2015 Fire System Monitoring - Service Call, B524 336.04
889281 12/24/2015 Repair Service for 327 Reindollar Ave 105.58
Check 01/08/2016 77677 Accounts Payable Gavilan Pest Control 2,450.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
0094711 11/30/2015 Airport Pest Control Services 1,150.00
0094712 11/30/2015 Airport Pest Control Services, B504 75.00
User: Monika Collier Pages: 2 of 6 1/7/2016 11:28:48 AM




*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-08-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/08/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
0095392 12/31/2015 Airport Pest Control Services 1,150.00
0095393 12/31/2015 Airport Pest Control Services, B504 75.00
Check 01/08/2016 77678 Accounts Payable Goldfarb & Lipman 3,004.16
Invoice Date Description Amount
117317 10/21/2015 Legal fees Dunes Casual Fast Foodf project 1,494.16
117874 08/17/2015 Art District discussion with City Manager 78.00
117875 08/17/2015 Legal Services - Casual Fast Food - Negri project 1,432.00
Check 01/08/2016 77679 Accounts Payable Integrity Printing 3,041.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
34386 12/23/2015 Printing Costs - Marina Dinning Guide Brochures 3,041.50
Check 01/08/2016 77680 Accounts Payable Janice Griffin 525.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
10-26-15 10/26/2015 Youth Halloween Party 325.00
12-09-15 12/09/2015 Youth Dance 200.00
Check 01/08/2016 77681 Accounts Payable Keyser Marston Associates 7,933.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
0029130 12/08/2015 Financial Advisory Services, Preston Park 7,933.50
Check 01/08/2016 77682 Accounts Payable Marina Village Restaurant 68.98
Invoice Date Description Amount
65407 12/07/2015 December 7, 2015 Peal Harbor Day Flag Posting 68.98
Check 01/08/2016 77683 Accounts Payable Meuse Media Entertainment 500.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
12132015 12/13/2015 Senior Holiday Luncheon 500.00
Check 01/08/2016 77684 Accounts Payable Mountain Mikes Pizza 84.34
Invoice Date Description Amount
i0-04-15 10/04/2015 pizza for teen center 84.34
Check 01/08/2016 77685 Accounts Payable MRWPCA 274.70
Invoice Date Description Amount
i3-000145.110115 11/30/2015 Sewer Service, B514 20.80
User: Monika Collier Pages: 3 of 6 1/7/2016 11:28:48 AM




*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-08-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/08/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
13-000148.110115 11/30/2015 Sewer Service, B520 20.80
13-000149.110115 11/30/2015 Sewer Service, B521 15.30
13-000153.110115 11/30/2015 Sewer Service, B529 15.30
13-000158.110115 11/30/2015 Sewer Service, B535 20.80
13-000159.110115 11/30/2015 Sewer Service, B524 98.50
13-000334.110115 11/30/2015 Sewer Service, B533 83.20

Check 01/08/2016 77686 Accounts Payable Nextel Communications 715.40
Invoice Date Description Amount
866147022-159 11/22/2015 Recreation Department Cell Phones 357.70
866147022-160 12/22/2015 cell phone bill for 11/19 - 12/18 357.70

Check 01/08/2016 77687 Accounts Payable Office Depot 3.19
Invoice Date Description Amount
813180371-001 12/18/2015 Office Supplies 3.19

Check 01/08/2016 77688 Accounts Payable Pacific Gas & Electric 1,417.37
Invoice Date Description Amount
827-8.DEC15 12/13/2015 PG&E - 0423929827-8 186.83
851-0.DEC15 12/15/2015 PG&E - 3440977851-0 411.84
535-3.DEC15 12/13/2015 PG&E - 6161832535-3 777.98
809-3.NOV15 12/10/2015 Utilities, B510 40.72

Check 01/08/2016 77689 Accounts Payable Pre-Paid Legal Services 53.80
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-04-15B 12/04/2015 Pre-Paid Legal (12-04-15) 26.90
11-06-15B 11/06/2015 Pre-Paid Legal (11-06-15) 26.90

Check 01/08/2016 77690 Accounts Payable Premier Access Insurance - Dept. 34114 255.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
JAN 2016 12/20/2015 Admin Fees (JAN 2016) 255.50

Check 01/08/2016 77691 Accounts Payable Premier Access Insurance 3,173.70
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-30-15 12/30/2015 Dental Claims 12/30/2015 3,173.70

Check 01/08/2016 77692 Accounts Payable Quest Diagnostics 24.50

User: Monika Collier
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-08-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/08/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Invoice Date Description Amount
5162878450 12/28/2015 Drug Screen 24.50

Check 01/08/2016 77693 Accounts Payable Richard B. Standridge 3,000.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
15-26 12/22/2015 Service 12-15/12-22-15 3,000.00

Check 01/08/2016 77694 Accounts Payable Robert R. Wellington 587.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
23303 11/13/2015 Airport Legal Services, Sept. 2015 587.00

Check 01/08/2016 77695 Accounts Payable Rutan & Tucker 208.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
699228 09/11/2014 General Legal Plastic Bag Ordinance/LDS church 208.00

Check 01/08/2016 77696 Accounts Payable Ruth Elizabeth Hill 329.99
Invoice Date Description Amount
007 01/04/2016 Professioanl Services - Marina Dinning Guide Brochure 329.99

Check 01/08/2016 77697 Accounts Payable Standard Insurance Company 828.70
Invoice Date Description Amount
JAN 2016 - 0001 12/21/2015 Standard Life Insurance Group Coverage (01/2016) 734.25
JAN 2016 - 0002 12/21/2015 Standard Life Insurance Additional (01/2016) 94.45

Check 01/08/2016 77698 Accounts Payable Tri County Fire Protection 183.27
Invoice Date Description Amount
38573 12/18/2015 Serviced 8 extinguishers 96.00
38600 12/23/2015 Serviced fire dept extinguishers 87.27

Check 01/08/2016 77699 Accounts Payable Usbancorp - Equipment Finace Service 343.54
Invoice Date Description Amount
294648662 12/26/2015 Copier Lease - Bizhub 951 343.54

Check 01/08/2016 77700 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Cardmember Service 43.44
Invoice Date Description Amount
11-27-15 11/27/2015 Visa purchases for D. McCoun 43.44

Check 01/08/2016 77701 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Cardmember Service 21.71

User: Monika Collier Pages: 5 of 6 1/7/2016 11:28:48 AM




*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-08-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/08/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Invoice Date Description Amount
i1-27-15 11/27/2015 Visa Monthly Charges for Brad Hinckley 21.71
Check 01/08/2016 77702 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 327.92
Invoice Date Description Amount
i2-29-15 12/29/2015 December 2015 Charges 327.92
Check 01/08/2016 77703 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 212.16
Invoice Date Description Amount
11-27-15 11/27/2015 Fire Dept Visa Purchases 212.16
Check 01/08/2016 77704 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 4,398.73
Invoice Date Description Amount
11-27-15 11/27/2015 VISA bill for Recreation Dept 4,398.73
Check 01/08/2016 77705 Accounts Payable Vision Service Plan 1,682.64
Invoice Date Description Amount
JAN 2016 12/21/2015 VSP Premium 1,682.64
Check 01/08/2016 77706 Accounts Payable Zee Service Co. 55.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
66580657 02/10/2015 youth - ice pack & bandages 12.31
66605766 11/12/2015 teen center medical supplies 42.69
024 Accounts Payable ZBA Totals: Transactions: 43 $66,793.40

Checks:

43

User: Monika Collier
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA
Check 01/15/2016 77707 Accounts Payable Ace Hardware 67.83
Invoice Date Description Amount
057286 01/07/2016 Bldg Maint & Supply 24.97
057279 01/07/2016 Blgd Maint & Repair 3.35
057258 01/05/2016 Bldg Maint & Repair 17.36
057254 01/05/2016 Bldg Maint & Repair 5.87
057255 01/05/2016 Bldg Maint & Repair 16.28
Check 01/15/2016 77708 Accounts Payable Ace High Designs Inc. 78.46
Invoice Date Description Amount
8806 10/15/2015 2 Shirts-Investigations/Cox 78.46
Check 01/15/2016 77709 Accounts Payable Altec 381.57
Invoice Date Description Amount
43466 12/15/2015 Payroll Checks 381.57
Check 01/15/2016 77710 Accounts Payable American Supply Co. 34.22
Invoice Date Description Amount
2710520 01/07/2016 Bldg Maint & Supply 34.22
Check 01/15/2016 77711 Accounts Payable ARC 105.68
Invoice Date Description Amount
1344676 12/15/2015 Imjin Pkwy Bike Lane copies 105.68
Check 01/15/2016 77712 Accounts Payable AT&T 2,796.53
Invoice Date Description Amount
000007440411 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023435 (237-267-6922) 3.84
000007417463 12/13/2015 CALNET3-9391023436 (239-461-6578) 8.69
000007440377 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023479 (883-0919) 6.43
000007440380 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023482 (884-0985) 8.08
000007440381 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023483 (884-0986) 8.08
000007417406 12/13/2015 CALNET3-9391023484 (884-1200) 34.54
000007440379 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023480 (883-9669) 66.35
000007440383 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023486 (884-9153) 8.08
000007440384 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023487 (884-9497) 8.08
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
000007440385 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023488 (884-9542) 22.28
000007440386 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023489 (884-9546) 21.19
000007440387 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023490 (884-9568) 12.44
000007440388 12/15/2015 CALNET3-9391023491 (884-9654) 76.64
000007460366 12/20/2015 CALNET3-9391023433 (234-342-8596) 129.57
000007481877 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023444 (384-2083) 36.30
000007481886 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023453 (384-3787) 22.06
000007481904 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023469 (384-9337) 19.64
000007481878 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023445 (384-2528) 22.29
000007481887 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023454 (384-4226) 23.03
000007481896 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023461 (384-7238) 19.64
000007481905 12/28/2015 CALNET3--9391023470 (384-9682) 17.76
000007481870 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023437 (384-0425) 17.80
000007481879 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023446 (384-2721) 841.42
000007481888 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023455 (384-4262) 4553
000007481871 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023438 (384-0473) 71.58
000007481897 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023462 (384-7547) 22.73
000007481880 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023447 (384-2901) 27.52
000007481889 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023456 (384-4718) 19.64
000007481898 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023463 (384-7854) 19.64
000007477605 12/27/2015 CALNET3-9391023481 (883-9953) 19.70
000007477597 12/27/2015 CALNET3-9391023471 (582-0100) 23.22
000007477598 12/27/2015 CALNET3-9391023472 (582-0102) 66.91
000007477599 12/27/2015 CALNET3-9391023473 (582-2398) 19.09
000007477600 12/27/2015 CALNET3-9391023472 (582-0102) 57.26
000007477601 12/27/2015 CALNET3-9391023475 (582-9032) 19.64
000007477602 12/27/2015 CALNET3-9391023476 (582-9611) 19.64
000007477603 12/27/2015 CALNET3-9391023477 (582-9803) 19.09
000007481872 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023439 (384-0552) 19.64
000007481881 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023448 (384-2934) 19.09
000007481890 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023457 (384-5140) 19.52
000007481899 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023464 (384-8308) 161.74
000007481873 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023440 (384-0860) 19.64
000007481882 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023449 (384-2967) 9.76
000007481891 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023458 (384-5222) 42.23
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

Batch Date: 01/15/2016

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023465 (384-8415) 147.05
000007481874 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023441 (384-0888) 56.28
000007481883 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023450 (384-3539) 28.34
000007481892 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023459 (384-5225) 136.60
000007481901 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023466 (384-8477) 37.41
000007481875 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023442 (384-1702) 19.09
000007481884 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023451 (384-3715) 42.55
000007481893 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023460 (384-6009) 37.28
000007481902 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023467 (384-8760) 17.76
000007440376 12/15/2015 AT&T South Field Office Billing 11/15-12/14/15 21.01
000007481876 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023443 (384-2081) 36.30
000007481885 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023452 (384-3717) 20.13
000007481903 12/28/2015 CALNET3-9391023468 (384-9148) 19.69

Check 01/15/2016 77713 Accounts Payable Branch's Janitorial 1,335.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
225555 12/21/2015 Janitorial Service-Police/Fire December 2015 1,335.00

Check 01/15/2016 77714 Accounts Payable California Fire Mechanics Academy 360.00
Invoice Date Description Amount

04-04-16 01/12/2016 Training/DeVincenzi 360.00

Check 01/15/2016 77715 Accounts Payable California Revenue & Tax Association 100.00
Invoice Date Description Amount

395 01/05/2016 2016 Membership 100.00

Check 01/15/2016 77716 Accounts Payable California Reserve Peace Officers 90.00
Invoice Date Description Amount

12-15-15 12/15/2015 CRPOA Membership-J.Martin 12/15/15 90.00

Check 01/15/2016 77717 Accounts Payable Toney Canty 2,900.00
Invoice Date Description Amount

12-31-15 12/31/2015 ADPP (12/17/15 - 12/27/15, Canty) 1,194.00

01-15-16 12/28/2015 ADPP (12/28/15 - 1/10/16, Canty) 1,706.00

Check 01/15/2016 77718 Accounts Payable Central Valley Toxicology 78.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
246157 12/14/2015 CVT-15-13798 MG 1502467 12/14/15 78.00
Check 01/15/2016 77719 Accounts Payable Cintas Corporation 116.08
Invoice Date Description Amount
630799513 12/14/2015 Mat Service-Police/Fire 12/14/15 58.04
630811823 01/11/2016 Mat Service-Police/Fire 1/11/16 58.04
Check 01/15/2016 77720 Accounts Payable City Of Salinas 9,300.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
2016-00000015 01/06/2016 Animal Sheltering Jan-Mar 2016 9,300.00
Check 01/15/2016 77721 Accounts Payable Code Publishing Inc. 160.65
Invoice Date Description Amount
51832 01/05/2016 MMC Update - 2015-06 160.65
Check 01/15/2016 77722 Accounts Payable Consolidated Electrical Distributors, Inc. 84.28
Invoice Date Description Amount
4914-546408 12/18/2015 Bldg Maint & Syooklues 84.28
Check 01/15/2016 77723 Accounts Payable Crye Precision LLC 4,529.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
IN00094923 11/24/2015 SRU uniform shirts 4,529.50
Check 01/15/2016 77724 Accounts Payable CSG Consultants 44,147.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
031413 12/10/2015 Cypress Cove LMD Eng Svc (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 157.50
031414 12/10/2015 CIP - Admin Engineering (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 3,095.00
031415 12/10/2015 CSG - Imjin Pkwy Widening F462 (#401) (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 262.50
031416 12/10/2015 Del Monte/Beach Signalization (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 997.50
031421 12/10/2015 FAE- B1 Imjin Office Park (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 880.00
031435 12/10/2015 Permits/Dev (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 2,942.50
031437 12/10/2015 Staff Augmentation (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 5,095.00
031436 12/10/2015 RWQCB - Eng Svc (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 2,422.50
B150759 12/03/2015 Plan Check Services (11/1/15 - 11/30/15) 420.00
031419 12/10/2015 Imjin Microsurfacing R46C (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 7,870.00
031427 12/10/2015 Cinemark - Eng Svc. (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 275.00

1/14/2016 10:26:00 AM
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
031428 12/10/2015 FAE - V1 - VA Clinic (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 3,915.00
031425 12/10/2015 FAE-A1 AMCAL(10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 340.00
031426 12/10/2015 Marina Dev Projects (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 262.50
031417 12/10/2015 Reservation Rd- Seacrest to De Forest R74B (10/31/15 - 11/27/15 6,032.50
031418 12/10/2015 Imjin/SR1 Signalization (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 157.50
031430 12/10/2015 FAE - DU2 - 1C Dunes Phase 2 (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 1,515.00
031429 12/10/2015 FAE S1 - 9th St. Improvement (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 2,045.00
031432 12/10/2015 Code Enforcement (10/31/15 - 11/27/15) 4,032.00
031423 12/10/2015 Cinemark - Eng Svc. (10/31/815 - 11/27/15) 965.00
031433 12/10/2015 Meeting with James Dias, re: VA Clinic 190.00
031424 12/10/2015 Meeting - Project Design/Nourdin 275.00
Check 01/15/2016 77725 Accounts Payable Dave's Repair Service 680.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
-22780 12/03/2015 Training Cardmaster Program (10/8/15 & 12/3/15) 600.00
22973 12/29/2015 Monthly Site Inspections 80.00
Check 01/15/2016 77726 Accounts Payable Directv 5.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
-27471172215 12/26/2015 TV Service - Pilot's Lounge 5.00
Check 01/15/2016 77727 Accounts Payable Discovery Benefits, Inc. 62.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
600060268-IN 12/31/2015 Discovery Benefit (12/15) 62.50
Check 01/15/2016 77728 Accounts Payable Engineered Fire Systems 100.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
11055 01/01/2016 Plan check fee for 930 Second Ave Shell 100.00
Check 01/15/2016 77729 Accounts Payable FedEx 123.72
Invoice Date Description Amount
5-268-11922 12/25/2015 Delivery Service 86.16
5-274-74618 01/01/2016 Delivery Service 37.56
Check 01/15/2016 77730 Accounts Payable Gavilan Pest Control 75.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
0095666 12/16/2015 Pest Control Svc @ Shoemaker & Locke Paddon Pond 75.00
Check 01/15/2016 77731 Accounts Payable George T. Powell 950.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
01012016 01/01/2016 Parking Rental-Police/Fire Jan 2016 950.00
Check 01/15/2016 77732 Accounts Payable Home Depot Credit Service 340.47
Invoice Date Description Amount
18343-230285 12/15/2015 Dishwasher 340.47
Check 01/15/2016 77733 Accounts Payable Kimley-Horn & Associates 3,378.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
7329926 11/30/2015 Review Land Use Info & Change Requirements 3,378.00
Check 01/15/2016 77734 Accounts Payable Kompan, Inc. 43,114.57
Invoice Date Description Amount
INV83913 12/30/2015 Explorer Dome Green Ropes Standard 43,114.57
Check 01/15/2016 77735 Accounts Payable Lexis Nexis Risk Data Management 50.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
20151231 12/31/2015 Data Retrievial 12/1-12/31/15 50.00
Check 01/15/2016 77736 Accounts Payable Mar-Ken International K-9 Training Center 260.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
0991-15 12/17/2015 K-9 Maintenance December 2015 260.00
Check 01/15/2016 77737 Accounts Payable Marina Coast Water District 6,436.57
Invoice Date Description Amount
000056011 120415 12/04/2015 000056 011 - Tate Park 3254 Del Monte (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 286.19
000056034 120415 12/04/2015 000056 034 -3240 DeForest, Windy Hill Park (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 262.50
000056084 120415 12/04/2015 000056 084 - Ctr Med3172 Cres- Shuler (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 20.46
000056032 120415 12/04/2015 000056 032 - Crescent & Costa Mont Bay Est (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 53.94
000056086 120415 12/04/2015 000056 086 - Center Median 3208 Crescent (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 20.46
000056015 120415 12/04/2015 000056 015 - Cypress Cove Il (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 149.20
000056030 120415 12/04/2015 000056 030 - Ctr Med. Reserv, Ramada Inn (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 33.01
000056087 120415 12/04/2015 000056 087 - Center Median 3218 Crescent (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 20.46
000056085 120415 12/04/2015 000056 085 - Center Median 3192 Crescent (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 20.46
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA
Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
000056008 120415 12/04/2015 000056 008 - Reservation Rd and Del Monte (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 20.46
000056035 120415 12/04/2015 000056 035 - Cardoza/Res, Tate Park (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 1,366.14
000056014 120415 12/04/2015 000056 014 - (Vince DiMaggio 3200 Del Monte (11/7/15 - 12/4/16) 875.51
000056036 123115 12/31/2015 000056 036 - Center Median 2nd Ave (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 113.74
000056037 123115 12/31/2015 000056 037 - 2nd Avenue Irrigation (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 113.74
014874000 123115 12/31/2015 014874 000 - 289 12th St. Police Sub Sta (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 105.42
000056083 123115 12/31/2015 000056 083 - 3240 Imjin Rd Hangar 510 (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 190.90
000056044 123115 12/31/2015 000056 044 - 781 Neeson Rd, Admin Office (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 106.04
000056049 123115 12/31/2015 000056 049 - Imjin Road University (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 113.74
000056051 123115 12/31/2015 000056 051 - 721 Neeson Rd Skydive (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 121.64
000057000 123115 12/31/2015 000057 000 - 3220 Imjin Road (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 106.04
000056041 123115 12/31/2015 000056 041 - 3260 Imjin Rd, Fire Station 2 (12/01/15 - 12/31/15 176.30
000056043 123115 12/31/2015 000056 043 (761 Imjin Rd, Hangar 524 (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 106.04
000056006 123115 12/31/2015 000056 006 188 Seaside Cir (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 33.01
000056028 123115 12/31/2015 000056 028 - ROW Calif Ave and Jerry (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 56.33
000056061 123115 12/31/2015 000056 061 - Seaside and Reservation (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 66.69
000056042 123115 12/31/2015 000056 042 - 3040 Lake Dr, Animal Shelter (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 99.44
000056040 123115 12/31/2015 000056 040 - Center Median Hilo Ave (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 95.12
000056045 123115 12/31/2015 000056 045 - 3100 Preston Park Irrig (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 1,208.16
000056046 123115 12/31/2015 000056 046 - 3100 Preston Park Bldg (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 106.04
000056007 121815 12/18/2015 000056 007 California Ave Landscape (11/21/15 - 12/18/15) 79.04
000056005 121815 12/18/2015 000056 005 - Calif and Patton (11/21/15 - 12/18/15) 79.04
000056025 121815 12/18/2015 000056 025- 327 Reindollar, LA Sports Comp (11/21/15 - 12/18/15) 44.42
000056026 121815 12/18/2015 000056 026 - ROW Barrett Lane (11/21/15 - 12/18/15) 20.46
000056027 121815 12/18/2015 000056 027 - Center Median & ROW Calif Ave (11/21/15 - 12/18/15 133.42
012016000 123115 12/31/2015 012016 000 - 199 Paddon PI Locke Paddon (12/01/15 - 12/31/15) 33.01

Check 01/15/2016 77738 Accounts Payable Maynard Group Inc. 3,443.67
Invoice Date Description Amount
QTP25706#3 12/18/2015 Maynard Group - #3 payment 12/18/15 3,443.67

Check 01/15/2016 77739 Accounts Payable MBASIA 129.30
Invoice Date Description Amount
DEC2015 01/05/2016 MBASIA - Claim for Payment 85.50
2016-00000842 01/05/2016 MBASIA - Claim for Payment 43.80
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Check 01/15/2016 77740 Accounts Payable MBay IT 6,639.81
Invoice Date Description Amount
1237 01/08/2016 IT Support - December 2015 6,639.81
Check 01/15/2016 77741 Accounts Payable Monterey Auto Supply 149.76
Invoice Date Description Amount
596171 01/06/2016 Veh - Maint Parts & Supply 148.58
395983 01/05/2016 Veh - Maint Parts & Supply 98.80
396296 01/06/2016 Veh - Maint Parts & Supply (97.62)
Check 01/15/2016 77742 Accounts Payable Monterey County Convention & Visitors 13,233.50
Bureau
Invoice Date Description Amount
12931 01/01/2016 Jurisdictional Investment - Jan-Mar 2016 13,233.50
Check 01/15/2016 77743 Accounts Payable Monterey County Fire Investigators 50.00
Association
Invoice Date Description Amount
01-05-16 01/05/2016 Membership Dues for D. McCoun and A. Prado 50.00
Check 01/15/2016 77744 Accounts Payable Monterey County Fire Prevention Officers 75.00
Assoc.
Invoice Date Description Amount
01-01-16 01/01/2016 Membership Dues for (3) fire dept staff - McCoun, Prado + 1 75.00
Check 01/15/2016 77745 Accounts Payable Monterey County Herald 171.33
Invoice Date Description Amount
0005639476 12/31/2015 Legal Notice - MMC Chapter 17 - Medical Marijunana 171.33
Check 01/15/2016 77746 Accounts Payable Monterey County Parks 500.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
193 01/06/2016 Monterey County Parks - Range Rental 12/16/15 500.00
Check 01/15/2016 77747 Accounts Payable Monterey County Petroleum 3,013.67
Invoice Date Description Amount
289379 12/08/2015 Diesel Fuel (480 gal) 948.93
289380 12/08/2015 Unleaded Fuel (1000 gal) 2,064.74
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA
Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Check 01/15/2016 77748 Accounts Payable Monterey Tire Service 792.79
Invoice Date Description Amount
1-69272 12/15/2015 City Wide - Tires 409.66
1-69540 01/04/2016 City Wide - Tires 376.61
1-69354 12/18/2015 City Wide - Tires 6.52
Check 01/15/2016 77749 Accounts Payable Natividad Medical Center 31.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-31-15 12/31/2015 Blood Alcohol-V715074837 11/20/15 31.00
Check 01/15/2016 77750 Accounts Payable Occupational Health Dyn. 860.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
44793 12/29/2015 FT3K Annual Calibration 860.00
Check 01/15/2016 77751 Accounts Payable Office Depot 13.45
Invoice Date Description Amount
811098872001 12/08/2015 Office Supplies 13.45
Check 01/15/2016 77752 Accounts Payable Pacific Gas & Electric 20,070.32
Invoice Date Description Amount
172-2.JAN16 12/18/2015 PG&E - 5618207172-2 400.68
272-1.JAN16 12/17/2015 PG&E - 2862559272-1 37.09
483-6.JAN16 12/15/2015 PG&E - 3982644483-6 12,864.88
795-7.JAN16 12/21/2015 PG&E - 4467294795-7 169.97
362-9.JAN16 12/18/2015 PG&E - 5996678362-9 103.63
683-2.JAN16 12/17/2015 PG&E 6217294683-2 732.02
313-6.DEC2/15 12/28/2015 PG&E 6793435313-6 5,569.17
01-09-16 01/09/2016 PG&E Service-South Field Office 12/10/15-01/08/16 192.88
Check 01/15/2016 77753 Accounts Payable Pacific Smog 243.50
Invoice Date Description Amount
2349 12/31/2015 Smog Inspections - CW 243.50
Check 01/15/2016 77754 Accounts Payable ParcelQuest 1,799.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
18014 01/11/2016 Annual Service Public Notice Labels 1,799.00
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA
Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Check 01/15/2016 77755 Accounts Payable Peninsula Messenger LLC 280.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
195257 12/31/2015 Messenger Service 12/31/15 280.00
Check 01/15/2016 77756 Accounts Payable Peninsula Welding & Medical Supply 171.32
Invoice Date Description Amount
i42019 12/24/2015 Oxygen refills 171.32
Check 01/15/2016 77757 Accounts Payable Pure H20 108.48
Invoice Date Description Amount
4-1217 01/01/2016 Water Cooler Service-Police/Fire 1/1/16 108.48
Check 01/15/2016 77758 Accounts Payable Redshift 7.85
Invoice Date Description Amount
1712933-4 01/04/2016 DNS Hosting/Domain Redirecting 7.85
Check 01/15/2016 77759 Accounts Payable Richard B. Standridge 3,450.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
16-01 01/08/2016 Services 12-28/01-07-16 3,450.00
Check 01/15/2016 77760 Accounts Payable Rincon Consultants, Inc. 857.35
Invoice Date Description Amount
24744 11/30/2015 General / administrative services - Marina Beach Townhomes 857.35
Check 01/15/2016 77761 Accounts Payable Safety-Kleen Corp. 36.75
Invoice Date Description Amount
68864849 12/01/2015 Veh - Maint & Repair 36.75
Check 01/15/2016 77762 Accounts Payable Salinas Valley Pro Squad 620.16
Invoice Date Description Amount
262259 01/12/2016 Uniform-Reserve Melendy 154.52
262522 11/19/2015 Uniform Shirts-Clegg 167.94
262078 11/06/2015 Uniform Shirts-A. Magana 244.28
262021 11/04/2015 Equipment-Led Stick 46.87
262517 11/19/2015 Gold Buttons 6.55
Check 01/15/2016 77763 Accounts Payable Shred-it USA 96.85
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA
Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Invoice Date Description Amount
-9408576060 12/10/2015 Shred-it Service 12/9/15 96.85

Check 01/15/2016 77764 Accounts Payable Sierra Springs & Alhambra 70.37
Invoice Date Description Amount
-7266038-010116 01/01/2016 Water Cooler Rental and Replacement Water - City Hall 70.37

Check 01/15/2016 77765 Accounts Payable Sign Works 1,076.86
Invoice Date Description Amount
17711 12/16/2015 Shea Homes Street Sign Decals 1,076.86

Check 01/15/2016 77766 Accounts Payable SpeakWrite 725.16
Invoice Date Description Amount
c9c6902f 01/01/2016 Transcription Services December 2015 725.16

Check 01/15/2016 77767 Accounts Payable Summit Uniforms 2,105.40
Invoice Date Description Amount
26892 10/27/2015 SRU uniform pants 2,105.40

Check 01/15/2016 77768 Accounts Payable Techno Lock Keys Trading LLC 200.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-17-15 12/17/2015 Vehicle rekey for trade in 200.00

Check 01/15/2016 77769 Accounts Payable Toshiba Financial Services 989.56
Invoice Date Description Amount
294748017 12/26/2015 Records-Copier Maintenance 12/26/15 496.56
295079479 12/31/2015 Patrol-Copier Contract 12/31/15 493.00

Check 01/15/2016 77770 Accounts Payable United Site Services 182.07
Invoice Date Description Amount
114-3594006 12/10/2015 Toilet Rentals - Corner Beach Rd - De Forest 182.07

Check 01/15/2016 77771 Accounts Payable Universal Staffing 2,740.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
100482 12/15/2015 Staffing-B.Arbor PPE12/12/15 1,370.00
100525 12/22/2015 Staffing-B.Arbor PPE 12/19/15 1,370.00

Check 01/15/2016 77772 Accounts Payable Valley Saw & Garden Equipment 293.93

User: Monika Collier Pages: 11 of 13 1/14/2016 10:26:00 AM
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Invoice Date Description Amount
é5721 12/18/2015 Veh - Maint & Repair 293.93
Check 01/15/2016 77773 Accounts Payable Verizon Wireless 790.29
Invoice Date Description Amount
-289756973940 12/10/2015 Monthly Verizon Bill-308174766 491.69
9757842169 12/25/2015 Fire Dept Wireless Charges 298.60
Check 01/15/2016 77774 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Cardmember Service 21.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
i2-29-15 12/29/2015 Visa purchases for D. McCoun 21.00
Check 01/15/2016 77775 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Cardmember Service 291.10
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-29-15 12/29/2015 Visa Monthly Charges for Brad Hinckley 291.10
Check 01/15/2016 77776 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 40.00
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-29-15 12/29/2015 Visa Statement 40.00
Check 01/15/2016 77777 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 290.73
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-29-15 12/29/2015 Visa Monthly Charges 290.73
Check 01/15/2016 77778 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 447.95
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-29-15 12/29/2015 Visa - Nolan 12/29/15 447.95
Check 01/15/2016 77779 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 785.82
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-29-15 12/29/2015 Visa - Dept. 12/29/15 785.82
Check 01/15/2016 77780 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 4,522.44
Invoice Date Description Amount
12-29-15 12/29/2015 VISA December 2015 Statement 4,522.44
Check 01/15/2016 77781 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 43.63
User: Monika Collier Pages: 12 of 13 1/14/2016 10:26:00 AM
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*LIVE* Marina, CA *LIVE*

AP Check Register 01-15-16

Bank Account: 024 - Accounts Payable ZBA

Batch Date: 01/15/2016

Transaction

Type Date Number Source Payee Name EFT Bank/Account Amount
Invoice Date Description Amount
i2-29-15 12/29/2015 Visa - Rodriguez Late Fees/Interest 12/29/15 43.63
Check 01/15/2016 77782 Accounts Payable Rabobank Visa Card Cardmember Service 1,149.82
Invoice Date Description Amount
11-27-15 11/27/2015 nov2015visa 9.75
12-29-15 12/29/2015 December 2015 1,140.07
Check 01/15/2016 77783 Accounts Payable W.W. Grainger, Inc. 46.53
Invoice Date Description Amount
5924128797 12/22/2015 Veh - Maint & Repair 46.53
Check 01/15/2016 77784 Accounts Payable Zoom Imaging Solutions 281.39
Invoice Date Description Amount
1578380 12/28/2015 Copier Maintenance-Meter Read 12/28/15 164.24
1577657 12/24/2015 Patrol Copier-Meter Read/Overage 12/24/15 117.15
024 Accounts Payable ZBA Totals: Transactions: 78 m

Checks: 78

User: Monika Collier

$196,179.54

Pages: 13 of 13

1/14/2016 10:26:00 AM
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Selected
Payment
Amount
$14,647.79
$44,755.88
$767.35

$1,457.35

$1,222.44
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Agenda Item 8b(1)
@ Flﬁ City Council Meeting of
January 20, 2016

MINUTES

Tuesday, January 5, 2016 5:30 P.M. Closed Session
6:30 P.M. Open Session

REGULAR MEETING

CITY COUNCIL, AIRPORT COMMISSION,
MARINA ABRAMS B NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, PRESTON PARK SUSTAINABLE
COMMUNITY NON-PROFIT CORPORATION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE
FORMER MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Council Chambers

211 Hillcrest Avenue
Marina, California

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL & ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM: (City Council, Airport
Commissioners, Marina Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation, and Successor Agency of the
Former Redevelopment Agency Members)

MEMBERS PRESENT: David W. Brown, Gail Morton, Mayor Pro-Tem/Vice Chair Frank
O’Connell, Mayor/Chair Bruce C. Delgado

MEMBERS ABSENT: Nancy Amadeo (Excused)

3. CLOSED SESSION: As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the (City
Council, Airport Commissioners, Marina Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation, and
Redevelopment Agency Members) may adjourn to a Closed or Executive Session to
consider specific matters dealing with litigation, certain personnel matters, property
negotiations or to confer with the City’s Meyers-Milias-Brown Act representative.

a. Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation. Initiation of litigation pursuant
to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: (Number of potential cases -
one)

b. Conference with legal counsel, re a matter of existing litigation — one case — Choates v.
City of Marina

c. Labor Negotiations
I.  Marina Employee Association
ii.  Marina Management Employees Association
ilii.  Marina Public Safety Officers Association
Iv.  Marina Public Safety Manager’s Association
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v.  Marina Professional Firefighters Association
vi.  Department Directors

Community Development Director
Finance Director

Fire Chief

Police Chief

Recreation and Cultural Services Director

ok wDd PR

City Negotiators: Layne P. Long, City Manager and Employee Relations Officer
d. Performance Evaluation, Unrepresented Employee — City Manager

6:30 PM - RECONVENE OPEN SESSION AND REPORT ON ANY ACTIONS TAKEN IN

CLOSED SESSION

Assistant City Attorney Deborah Mall reported out closed session: Council met at 5:30 pm. There
were three items on the closed session. Conference with legal counsel, anticipated litigation, direction
was given to legal counsel; conference with legal counsel regarding existing matter of litigation which
was Choates vs. Marina and direction was given to legal counsel; and the third matter discussed was
labor negotiations and direction was given to the city negotiator.

4. MOMENT OF SILENCE & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Please stand)
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: None

6. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE FLOOR: Any
member of the Public or the City Council may make an announcement of special events or meetings
of interest as information to Council and Public. Any member of the public may comment on any
matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction which is not on the agenda. Please state your name for
the record. Action will not be taken on an item that is not on the agenda. If it requires action, it will
be referred to staff and/or placed on a future agenda. City Council members or City staff may
briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as permitted by Government Code Section
54954.2. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity to speak, please limit comments to
a maximum of four (4) minutes. Any member of the public may comment on any matter listed on this
agenda at the time the matter is being considered by the City Council.

John Kaza — Citizens advocate for the National Motors Association. Commented about the
December 17, 2015 DUI Check point on Del Monte Blvd. The roadblock on that night was in front
of the business at 3056 Del Monte Blvd. Police conned off entrances which provided access to the
businesses without any permission or any recognition to the business. Never witnessed open
businesses being shut down like this. Indicated he was ordered to leave the area where he was
protesting, which was in the median and if I did not leave the Sergeant in charge at the roadblock
was going to arrest me. I’m a single person with a sign. Indicated that there will be several claims
from several of those businesses coming. The funding is from the OTS (Office of Traffic Safety)
which provides overtime for a group of officers far more than they need for that roadblock to stand
there most of the night and stop the cars. Ask the council to proclaim an emergency proclamation
to hold that the police will not block open businesses nor will they subject a lawful protestor to
arrest.

Kevin Saunders — Announced his intent to run for Mayor in the 2016 Election. Will be running on
a cannabis/tourism platform, specifically to turn Fort Ord, Marina’s part, into the world’s largest
cannabis research farm.
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Nobia Mounsuret — Announced her intent to run for Council in the 2016 Election. Indicate that
over the last several years she has been advocating for change in this community related to
medicinal marijuana. Would like to bring Marina into the 21% century.

Tim Ledesma — Wanted to let the public know that there are several vacancies on various city
commissions (Planning Commission, Economic Development Commission and the Public Works
Commission). Filing deadline is January 15" by 5:00pm. Commented on the El Nino
Preparedness information.

1. CONSENT AGENDA FOR THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER MARINA
REDEVELOPMENT AGENGY: Background information has been provided to the Successor
Agency of the former Redevelopment Agency on all matters listed under the Consent Agenda, and
these items are considered to be routine. All items under the Consent Agenda are normally
approved by one motion. Prior to such a motion being made, any member of the public or the City
Council may ask a question or make a comment about an agenda item and staff will provide a
response. If discussion or a lengthy explanation is required, that item will be removed from the
Consent Agenda for Successor Agency to the former Marina Redevelopment Agency and placed at
the end of Other Action Items Successor Agency to the former Marina Redevelopment Agency.

8. CONSENT AGENDA: Background information has been provided to the City Council, Airport
Commission, Marina Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation, and Redevelopment Agency on all matters
listed under the Consent Agenda, and these items are considered to be routine. All items under the
Consent Agenda are normally approved by one motion. Prior to such a motion being made, any
member of the public or the City Council may ask a question or make a comment about an agenda
item and staff will provide a response. If discussion or a lengthy explanation is required, that item
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed at the end of Other Action Items.

a. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

(1) Accounts Payable Check Numbers: 77509-77663, totaling $2,650,731.82
Wire transfers totaling: $324,628.83

b. MINUTES:
(1) December 15, 2016, Regular City Council Meeting
c. CLAIMS AGAINST THE CITY: None

d. AWARD OF BID: None

e. CALL FOR BIDS: None

f. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTIONS: None

g. APPROVAL OF AGREEMENTS:

(1) City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-01, approving Assignment
and Assumption of agreement with Robert H. Abrams of San Carlos, California,
for consultant services relating to a technical review of groundwater modeling
conducted for the Monterey Peninsula Water Supply Project Draft
Environmental Impact Report, by Jacobson James & Associates, Inc. of
Roseville, California, and; authorizing the City Manager to execute Agreement
subject to final review and approval by the City Attorney.
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(2) City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-02, approving a budget
amendment of $9,026 representing the City of Marina’s cost sharing allocation
for participation in the 911 Dispatch JPA Project Study; authorize the City
Manager to execute documents if necessary for continued participation in the
JPA Study; authorize the Finance Director to make necessary accounting and
budgetary entries, with the funds for this study coming from unallocated fund
balance

h. ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS: None

i. MAPS: None
j. REPORTS: (RECEIVE AND FILE): None

k. FUNDING & BUDGET MATTERS: None

I. APPROVE ORDINANCES (WAIVE SECOND READING): None

m. APPROVE APPOINTMENTS: None

DELGADO/MORTON: TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. 4-0-0-1(Amadeo) Motion
Passes

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

a. City Council to receive staff report and adopt an ordinance and urgency ordinance to
amend Marina Municipal Code, Title 17 (zoning) to add Section 17.04.464 to define
“Marijuana Delivery,” Section 17.04.210.5 to define “Cultivation of Marijuana,” and
17.06.020, Subsections P and Q to prohibit the cultivation of marijuana and the delivery
of marijuana in all zones.

Assistant City Attorney Deborah Mall presented the staff report with the following information:

1996 - Compassionate Use Act was approved. Allows qualified patients and primary caregivers to be
free from state prosecution for cultivation and possession of marijuana, upon doctor recommendation
of use (Proposition 215); 2003 - Medical Marijuana Program enacted. Created a voluntary program for
issuance of ID cards to qualified patients and primary caregivers. Allowed limited transportation,
processing, administering and distribution of medical marijuana to qualified patients. Cultivation of
marijuana plants was specifically limited. California Supreme Court held patients and caregivers could
possess a reasonable amount of marijuana; 2013 - California Supreme Court upheld a city’s right to
ban medical marijuana dispensaries as a part of its land use authority

Governor has signed a comprehensive package of bills which comprises the Medical Marijuana
Regulations and Safety Act. AB 266 establishes a Bureau of Medical Marijuana Regulation, a
licensing structure, uniform health and safety standards for testing, security and transport of medical
marijuana; AB 243 regulates the licensing and regulation of indoor and outdoor cultivation sites and
creates a Medical Cannabis Cultivation Program within the Department of Food and Agriculture to,
develop standards for pesticide application, production and labelling of edible products, and evaluate
environmental impacts from cultivation; SB 643 regulates physicians’ recommendations, contains
some licensing requirements and uphold local powers to levy fees and taxes.

Two of the bills recently passed, as part of the Act, directly impact municipalities and create the need
for the City to take immediate action; AB 266 requires local jurisdictions that wish to prevent delivery
services from operating within their borders to enact an ordinance affirmatively banning this activity;
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AB 243 provides that cities that do not have an ordinance regulating or prohibiting cultivation in place
by March 1, 2016, will lose the authority to regulate or ban cultivation within their city limits; The City
currently bans medical marijuana dispensaries, but has no regulation or ban on cultivation or delivery
of medical marijuana.

Recommendations: City, by ordinance, ban cultivation and delivery by March 1, 2016, or lose the
authority to regulate or ban cultivation within their city limits; Second reading of the ordinance must
occur on or before January 29, 2016 and must be effective by February 28, 2016; It is recommended
the ordinance be adopted as an urgency ordinance, since there has not been time to seek Planning
Commission review. The adoption of an urgency ordinance requires a 4/5™ vote; Staff recommends
this matter be brought back to City Council in one year, for a report on the efficacy of the ban and
further review and or adoption of a permanent ban or ordinance to regulate cultivation and delivery of
medical marijuana.

Police Department Concerns: Department recommends not allowing the delivery, cultivation and
processing of marijuana in the City; Objection based on experiences of several California cities who
experienced increases in police services associated with marijuana cultivation, processing and
distribution activities; Marijuana and the cash it generates are commaodities highly sought after and any
type of marijuana distribution leads to illegal activity to obtain marijuana and cash. Activities: 1.
Illegal sales and distribution of marijuana; 2. Trespassing; 3. Theft; 4. Violent Robberies; 5. Burglary

City has experienced many of the crime problems addressed above; Many crimes associated with
marijuana and other illegal drug activities frequently go unreported as victims fear prosecution because
of their involvement and fear of retaliation; Marijuana distribution, cultivation and processing
consistently results in quality of life issues/complaints in the areas where they occur leading to
additional police calls for service and potentially calls for service from other City departments; Strong
unpleasant odors related to the cultivation of marijuana creates an attractive nuisance, alerting persons
to the location of the plants, creating a risk of various types of criminal activity.

The State of California has passed legislation stating it will take the lead on marijuana regulation.

However, Primary issues surrounding compliance and enforcement of regulations to ensure
compliance will fall to local government.

An example would be the State’s regulation of alcohol laws and massage establishments. The State has
oversight, but, almost all compliance and regulation is left to local entities.

Any Regulation of marijuana distribution by the Marina Police Department or Code Enforcement
would divert resources from other law enforcement or regulatory priorities

Recommended Ordinance Revisions: (1) Section 17.04.464 — Marijuana Delivery; (2) Section
17.04.210.5 — Marijuana Cultivation; (3) Section 17.06.020, Subsection (P) — Cultivation of Marijuana
as a Prohibited Use and/or activity; (4) Section 17.06.020 (Q) — Delivery of Marijuana as a Prohibited
Use and/or Activity.

Fiscal Impact: The fiscal impact is unknown. There may be a minor tax revenue benefit if medical
marijuana were cultivated or distributed within the City and then taxed, this benefit is minimized by
the cost to regulate, issue licenses. There is of an impact on police services if the uses are wholly
banned.

Council discussed concerns related to delivery and compliance with the Compassionate Care Act for
persons too ill to travel to obtain medicinal marijuana from a dispensary, continued cultivation of
personal use if city were to ban cultivation, delivery by secondhand person (caregiver/provider), rush
on “delivery” ordinance if there is no deadline, work load impact, taxing cultivating permittees’,
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administrative fines assessed for violation of the municipal code by police, amending delivery
language to say the deliveries are banned by dispensaries.

Mayor opened the public hearing for public comments:

e Tim Ledesma — Read statement from Peoples vs. Mauer: “Patients have the same right to
marijuana as to any legally prescribed drug”. Commented that a year and half ago a group of
people tried to help the city with your ordinance/moratorium on dispensaries so in reality if the city
would have taken those initial baby steps a year and half ago we would even be having this
discussion. In reality you’re not in control anyway other than holding back the progress and the
process of a new industry. People are surviving because of medical marijuana. Announced he’s
been a patient for 24 years. This is a compassionate care act and you’re not in control. It’s a state
rule that the people passed.

e Nobia Mounsuet — Commented on a letter from Jim Woods on AB21, sent copies of letter to
council and also sent a power point that explains MERSA to the council. Read excerpt from Jim
Woods letter stating his intent to remove the deadline has support from stakeholders and bipartisan
and that the governor’s office is prepared to partner with my office to ensure local control on this
issue, appreciates governor’s acknowledgement of drafting error and willingness to resolve the
problem, received legal feedback confirming that once urgency measure is in effect jurisdictions
will retain local control needed. You are being given an opportunity to regulate marijuana.

e Kevin Saunders — Commented on his hardships as he believes was caused by Marina not
supporting medicinal marijuana. If council bans the delivery, think about the people who do not
have vehicles or are unable to commute to obtain their medication. If you ban deliveries how are
people to get their medication? The ban is the wrong idea.

e Sam Rashkin — We can agree on 3 things: 1) we can agree that an unregulated black market really
isn’t good for anyone and that’s why state passed this regulation; 2) the new state cannabis
regulations are extremely complicated; 3) commercial cannabis is already here in Monterey
County. Provided council an information sheet on AB266, SB642 & AB243. Noted there are 17
type of licenses established under AB266 and SB643 and Type 7 should be really looked at.
Comments that Salinas is repealing their ban because they see the economic structure is enormous.

e Unnamed speaker — Had experience in the dispensary business and parted ways with that industry
due to what has caused many cities to ban dispensaries. There is an adherent danger and flaw in
the business, it does bring a lot of negative aspects to it if it’s not regulated properly. Concerned
about the nature of a complete ban. “Grows” need to be treated as a business and regulated. In the
future this could be a taxed commodity. One loophole that you may want to consider that in order
to deliver medical marijuana to a patient you will have the same doctor’s recommendation to
procure the medicine for your patient so as a caregiver there is not distinction in this regulation that
would show the difference between an actual caregiver and the patient themselves.

e Nancy Amadeo — Believes that in order to do an ordinance well and it be well written, well vetted,
all affected parties being able to give input you need to go through the appropriate process. In
order to do that and to do it well, to do it right, having a ban, an urgency ban and giving direction
for this to go back to the planning commission and to go through the process so that we can have
safe access, well regulated, guarantee of efficacy, all of those things are really important and it is
important that our police department have clear guidelines as to what is acceptable and not
acceptable. We’re dealing with a lot of “what ifs’. If we have a true ordinance by putting a ban in
place tonight and then moving forward those “what ifs” will get resolved. Hope council will
consider putting the ban in place and then directing immediately for this to go before the planning
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commission and have them look at zoning and general plan changes that many need to be made in
order to do this well for the benefit of our citizens and community as a whole.

e Elia Salinas — Made comment on the Jim Woods letter. There is an error on the March 1% deadline
but it’s only for cultivation. Provided council samples of the many different forms of medicinal
marijuana. There are CBD which are non-psycho active of product that marijuana is made into that
people use to inhale, a balm, and a patch which starts right away easing your pain. There are a lot
of changes coming over the next couple of years. Full bans are bad for everyone. They harm the
patients, they deny economic opportunities for cities and counties. It’s here now, why not regulate
and try to have more control over it. Asked council to not vote on this ban, there is no urgency on
it, do a moratorium. Council should consider all types of marijuana industry in the city but in a
safe and properly zoned location.

e Margaret Davis — Council has asked great questions that show the complexity of writing a good
front loaded ordinance that minimizes crime and problems. This body should not relinquish its
rights to exercise discretion and craft laws in the best interest of Marina. Urged council to adopt
this temporary ban, to let it go before the planning commission and let that begin making its
course, get the benefit of research by Chief Rodriguez, by the City Attorney’s office and by the
public. The general public has not had input in this issue. If it comes before the planning
commission and it’s just a low key issue I think more people would come forward and make their
arguments and speak their minds. There are a lot of issues to explore in crafting an ordinance and
some of them have been alluded to. How to potentially tax, should be distribution be by nonprofit
only, should there be a ballot measure? Urged council to adopt this temporary measure.

e Mike Owen — Commented on the grow houses in Marina that had a structural fire which was in the
Monterey Bay Estates and which is why we resurrected Neighborhood Watch and another which
had weapons. Appreciates the Police chief pointing out the negative points but it seems like he
really didn’t continue the story which is that these are illegal. If you legalize it then that’s going to
address that problem. Put it out of the residential area. The smart/wise thing to do is to go ahead
and do a ban right now with the obvious stressing to the police chief about the prioritization of
enforcement during the ban.

Mayor closed public hearing for public comments.

Brown/Delgado: to refer to staff the ordinance, to redraft so as to 1) not include a ban or requlation on
delivery; and 2) to prohibit the cultivation of more than three (3) marijuana plants on a residence own
rented or owned home inside the dwelling or on land included in the rental or owned property; and no
more than three (3) plants per resident holding a valid medical marijuana card and residing there.

Mayor Delgado asked motion maker if he would be willing to modify his motion to bring it up to
“status quo” so that those who are currently within the state law growing up to twelve (12) plants (6
producing and 6 seedlings) in the matter just mentioned could continue to do so.

Modified Motion
Brown/Delgado: Refer the matter to staff to redraft an ordinance so as to not ban or requlate delivery
but to prohibit the cultivation of more than twenty (20) plants including no more than a maximum of
ten (10) mature plants on a person’s own rental or owned home inside the dwelling or outside on land
that’s included in the rented or owned property; per resident holding a valid medical marijuana card
and residing there.

Substitute Motion

O’Connell/Delgado: to amend the MMC by ordinance, and urgency ordinance to add a definition for
Cultivation of Marijuana and Ban the Cultivation of Marijuana in all zones and Direct Staff to bring
this issue back to the City Council within one year or as soon as possible, for review and to determine
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whether the ban is still warranted and has properly functioned, whether there have been any changes in
state law, which impact on a ban in the City and whether a permanent ban or further requlation or
licensing is warranted. 1-3(Brown, Morton, Delgado)-0-1(Amadeo) Substitute Motion Fails

Council Member Morton asked for a friendly amendment to direct staff to take immediate actions to
commence the planning process and to direct staff to deprioritize enforcement.

O’Connell: I would take the friendly amendment to the staff giving it immediate attention but not to
deprioritize.

Final Motion

BROWN/DELGADO: TO REFER TO STAFF THE ORDINANCE TO REDRAFT IT SO AS
TO NOT BAN OR REGULATE DELIVERY AT THIS TIME; AND SO AS TO PROHIBIT
CULTIVATION OF MORE THAN TWENTY (20) PLANTS, TEN (10) OF WHICH MAY BE
MATURE ON A RESIDENTS OWN RENTED OR OWNED HOME INSIDE THE
DWELLING OR ON LAND INCLUDED IN RENTED OR OWNED PROPERTY PER
RESIDENT HOLDING A VALID MEDICAL MARIJUANA CARD AND RESIDING THERE;
AND DIRECTING STAFF IMMEDIATELY TO BEGIN THE PROCESS OF COMING UP
WITH A MORE COMPREHENSIVE ORDINANCE THROUGH THE NORMAL PLANNING
PROCESS. 4-0-0-1(Amadeo)

Final Motion Passes by Roll Call VVote: Brown, Yes; Morton, Yes; O’Connell, Yes; Delgado, Yes

Attorney: this would be an urgency ordinance to come back with an urgency ordinance and finding for
adoption at the next meeting.

Council Member Brown: It would be, yes.
Mayor Delgado: was it your intent to happen at the next meeting?

Council Member Brown: Well, yes, the Urgency Ordinance would come back in two weeks and if it
got 4/5" votes then it would be implemented immediately and then staff would still be directed to
come back with a more comprehensive scheme.

10. OTHER ACTIONS ITEMS OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE FORMER
MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY: Action listed for each Agenda item is that
which is requested by staff. The Successor Agency may, at its discretion, take action on any
items. The public is invited to approach the podium to provide up to four (4) minutes of
public comment.

11. OTHER ACTION ITEMS: Action listed for each Agenda item is that which is requested by
staff. The City Council may, at its discretion, take action on any items. The public is invited
to approach the podium to provide up to four (4) minutes of public comment.

Note: No additional major projects or programs should be undertaken without review of the impacts
on existing priorities (Resolution No. 2006-79 — April 4, 2006).

a. City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-03, authorizing: 1)
Amendments to City Compensation Plan, Classification Plan, Job Descriptions and
Salary Schedules for various city classifications; 2) Amendments to various
Department Head and City Manager employment contracts; appropriate budgetary
amendments to Fiscal Year 2015/16 budget.

Delgado/Brown: that we do the seven (7) items in the recommendation excluding item #4. 2-2(Morton,
O’Connell)-0-1(Amadeo) Motion Fails
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Mayor Pro-Tem O’Connell questioned the amendments to the employment contracts for the police
chief and recreation director and why the increase in monthly compensation when labor negotiations
are being conducted. Requested copies of the contracts for the police chief and recreation director.

City Manager explained that this increase is not part of negotiations. It is to bring them within the
competitive labor market. It’s a wage adjustment with every individual classification. Department
Heads are different. As a group I’'m not looking at any salary increases across the board with
department heads, those will be brought back individually because they each have individual contracts.

Public Comments: None received.
Substitute Motion

O’Connell/Morton: to adopt items 1a-i; delete items 2, 3 and 4 and keep items 5, 6 and 7. 2-2(Brown,
Delgado)-0- 1(Amadeo) Substitute Motion Fails

2"d Substitute Motion

Morton/O’Connell: adopt item la-i, items 5, 6 and 7 and bring back at the January 20" meeting item 2,
3 and 4 with the appropriate contracts being attached and for full discussion on all the terms. 2-
2(Brown, Delgado)-0-1(Amadeo) 2" Substitute Motion Fails

10:00 PM
Morton/Brown: to extend the meeting to complete this item. 4-0-0-1(Amadeo)

Brown/Delgado: to reconsider the 2" substitute motion

MORTON/DELGADO: THAT WE ADOPT ITEMS la-i, THAT WE ADOPT ITEM 5, ITEM 6
AND ITEM 7; AND THAT ITEMS 2 AND 3 BRING BACK AT A SPECIAL MEETING ON
TUESDAY, JANUARY 12™ AT 5:30 TO INCLUDE CLOSED SESSION ITEMS OF LABOR
NEGOTIATIONS AND DEFER ITEM 4 TO THE FEBRUARY 2, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING.
4-0-0-1(Amadeo) Motion Passes

12. COUNCIL & STAFF INFORMATIONAL REPORTS:

a. Monterey County Mayor’s Association [Mayor Bruce Delgado]
b. Council and staff opportunity to ask a question for clarification or make a brief report
on his or her own activities as permitted by Government Code Section 54954.2.

13.  ADJOURNMENT: 10:10 PM

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk

ATTEST:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor
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Agenda Item 8b(2)
@ FT City Council Meeting of
January 20, 2016

MINUTES

Tuesday, January 12, 2016 5:30 P.M. Closed Session
6:30 P.M. Open Session

SPECIAL MEETING
CITY COUNCIL, AIRPORT COMMISSION,
MARINA ABRAMS B NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, PRESTON PARK SUSTAINABLE
COMMUNITY NON-PROFIT CORPORATION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE
FORMER MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Council Chambers

211 Hillcrest Avenue
Marina, California

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL & ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM: (City Council, Airport
Commissioners, Marina Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation, and Successor Agency of the
Former Redevelopment Agency Members)

Nancy Amadeo, David W. Brown, Gail Morton, Mayor Pro-Tem/Vice Chair Frank
O’Connell, Mayor/Chair Bruce C. Delgado

3. CLOSED SESSION: As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the (City
Council, Airport Commissioners, Marina Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation, and
Redevelopment Agency Members) may adjourn to a Closed or Executive Session to
consider specific matters dealing with litigation, certain personnel matters, property
negotiations or to confer with the City’s Meyers-Milias-Brown Act representative.

a. Conference with Labor Negotiators

1) Agency designated representatives: Layne P. Long, City Manager and Employee
Relations Manager
Unrepresented employee: Police Chief

2) Agency designated representatives: Layne P. Long, City Manager and Employee
Relations Manager
Unrepresented employee: Recreational and Cultural Services Director

3) Agency designated representatives: City Council Subcommittee Members — Gail
Morton and David Wayne Brown
Unrepresented employee: City Manager

6:45 PM - RECONVENE OPEN SESSION AND REPORT ON ANY ACTIONS TAKEN IN
CLOSED SESSION
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Assistant City Attorney Deborah Mall reported out closed session: Council met at 5:30 pm as indicated
with regard to the three matters listed under Conference with Labor Negotiators. For items 3a(1l) & (2)
Council gave direction to the agency designated representative Layne P. Long; For item 3a(3) Council
gave direction to the City Council Subcommittee Members.

Mayor Delgado announced that we will be adjourning this meeting and the meeting of January 20,
2016 in memory of Toe Colon. A celebration of Life will take place on Friday, January 15, 2016 at
4:00pm at the American Legion Post # 694

4. MOMENT OF SILENCE & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Please stand)

5. OTHER ACTION ITEMS: Action listed for each Agenda item is that which is requested by
staff. The City Council may, at its discretion, take action on any items. The public is invited
to approach the podium to provide up to four (4) minutes of public comment.

Note: No additional major projects or programs should be undertaken without review of the impacts
on existing priorities (Resolution No. 2006-79 — April 4, 2006).

a. City Council consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-04, approval of Contract
Amendments and Amendments or Additions to the Classification Plans to Increase
the Salaries of the Police Chief and the Recreational and Cultural Services Director;
and, authorization for the City Manager to execute the contracts and make the
appropriate budgetary adjustments.

DELGADO/BROWN: TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2016-04, APPROVAL OF CONTRACT
AMENDMENTS AND AMENDMENTS OR ADDITIONS TO THE CLASSIFICATION
PLANS TO INCREASE THE SALARIES OF THE POLICE CHIEF AND THE
RECREATIONAL AND CULTURAL SERVICES DIRECTOR; AND, AUTHORIZATION
FOR THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACTS AND MAKE THE
APPROPRIATE BUDGETARY ADJUSTMENTS. 4-1(O’Connell)-0-0 Motion Passes

Public Comments:

e Kevin Saunders — Been critical of the police chief believes it’s warranted, but also believes that
anytime a person puts on a badge, lives 10 miles away from essentially a warzone in Salinas that
pay and that respect should be commensurate but believes it should be tied to goals that we as a
community all agree on. I’m in agreement that we should pay Chief Rodriguez what other cities
should be paid but I also would like for him to at least look into ideas that could help put some of
the fears that not only myself but people that I’ve talked to and have talked to for about 5 years, not
people in jail but people in coffee shops, these are our neighbors and I think if you really searched
your own sole you’d probably realize that Marina has a lot of work to do with community relations.
Time we really invest in recreation and the kids. We have an amazing recreation department
director, very fond of him. 1 think we should have an increase and | would also like to commend
you guys for what you did last week, if | offended anybody I’m sorry.

e Dan Devlin — Chair of the Recreation Commission and applaud the councils thinking in
establishing these changes to the ranges not only for Chief Eddy but also for the incumbent in the
recreation cultural services director Terry Siegrist, nationally renowned recreation director.. Thinks
he is doing a fabulous job. He’s a light in our community, he is a fantastic individual who looks
after the safety of our kids, he’s doing everything he possibly can to make sure that our kids our
safe. He has created some programs or record that are becoming national models, especially the
box theory and look forward to serving with him for many more years.
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e Margaret Davis — At the last session there was some concern about implied insult with the chief of
police and to the recreation director that this would even be examined. Does not think the council
should feel a bit shy about that. It’s important for the public to understand what it takes, what it
costs to keep a city running. This is a low average income town and most residents would be
surprised for example Terry’s salary being $150,000 with benefits. They don’t get why our budget
it so tight and that this is just a normal range for a public employee in that position. They need to
know these things when there are complaints about high budgets in many areas. Felt that Mayor
Pro-Tem O’Connell was correct in putting the “cart before the horse”. It’s in the wrong order to be
talking about salaries before the whole bargaining process has been gone through. If there is a way
to look at how can our recreation and cultural services have a component that is cultural, which
really doesn’t have right now. Perhaps this can be looked at in this process.

6. ADJOURNMENT: 7:00 PM

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk

ATTEST:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor
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January 15, 2016 Item No. 8f(1)

Honorable Mayor and Members City Council Meeting
of the Marina City Council of January 20, 2016

CITY COUNCIL CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 2016-,
APPROVING INVESTMENT POLICY AND MANAGEMENT PLAN
FOR CITY OF MARINA AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
FORMER MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

REQUEST:
It is requested that the City Council:

1. Consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-, approving Investment Policy and
Management Plan for City of Marina and Successor Agency to the former Marina
Redevelopment Agency.

BACKGROUND:

To establish strategies, practices and procedures to be used in administering the financial
investments of the City and Successor Agency to the former Marina Redevelopment Agency, it
is both important and necessary to have a prudent and safe investment policy in place.

The primary investment objective of such policy is to achieve a reasonable rate of return on
public funds while minimizing the potential for capital losses arising from market changes or
issuer default.

Although the generation of revenues through interest earnings on investments is an appropriate
goal, the primary consideration in the investment of funds is capital preservation in the overall
portfolio.

The Marina City Council is required to review and approve the City and Successor Agency to the
former Marina Redevelopment Agency Investment Policy and Management Plan (‘“Policy and
Plan”) to ensure that the goals and objectives for such plan are appropriate.

ANALYSIS:

Included in the scope of the Investment Policy and Management Plan are the following major
guidelines and practices which are to be used in achieving the primary investment objective
(“EXHIBIT A”):

Investment Authority and Responsibilities
Capital Preservation and Risk

Eligible Financial Institutions

Investment Vehicles

Investment Maturity

Cash Management

Evaluation Of Investment Performance
Investment Reporting
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These guidelines apply to all cash-related assets included within the scope of the audited financial
statements held either directly by the City, Successor Agency or held and invested by trustees or
fiscal agents. The only exception is funds invested in the City's deferred compensation plan, which
is controlled by federal law, specific provisions of the City's adopted plan, and individual employee
decisions.

No changes were made to the Policy and Plan since it was last reviewed and approved by the
City Council and Marina Redevelopment Agency Board at the regular meeting of January 21,
2015 by adoption of Resolution No. 2015-003.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

CONCLUSION:
This request is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action.

Respectfully submitted,

Lauren Lai, CPA
Finance Director
City of Marina

REVIEWED/CONCUR:

Layne P. Long
City Manager
City of Marina
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RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA
APPROVING THE INVESTMENT POLICY AND MANAGEMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Sections 16481.2 and 53646 a copy
of the Investment Policy and Strategy is required to be provided to the City Council on an annual
basis, and,;

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Investment Policy and Management Plan is to establish strategies,
practices, and procedures to be used in administering the financial investments of the City of Marina
and the Successor Agency to the former Marina Redevelopment Agency, and,;

WHEREAS, no changes were made to the Policy and Plan since it was last reviewed and approved
by the City Council and Marina Redevelopment Agency Board at the regular meeting of January
21, 2015 by adoption of Resolution No. 2015-003, and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Marina that the

attached Investment Policy and Management Plan (“Exhibit A”) shall be approved effective
immediately.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Marina at a regular meeting duly
held on the 20" day of January 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk
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EXHIBIT A

INVESTMENT POLICY AND MANAGEMENT PLAN

City of Marina
and
Successor Agency to the former Marina Redevelopment Agency

Revised and Re-Approved August 2007
Re-Approved August 2009
Re-Approved December 2010
Re-Approved December 2011
Re-Approved November 2012
Re-Approved November 2013
Re-Approved January 2015
Re-Approved January 2016
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City of Marina
and
Successor Agency to the former Marina Redevelopment Agency

INVESTMENT POLICY AND MANAGEMENT PLAN
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INTRODUCTION

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Investment Policy and Management Plan is to establish overall guidelines,
strategies, practices, and procedures to be used in administering investments activities of the City of
Marina and Successor Agency to the former Marina Redevelopment Agency. Related activities
which comprise sound cash management including accurate cash flow projections, control of
disbursements, expedient collection of revenues, cost effective banking relations. All cash balances,
with the exception of bond process restricted by the provisions of relevant bond documents and cash
in certain restricted/special funds, will be consolidated to maximize investment earnings.
Investment income will be allocated funds based on their respective participation and in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

PRIMARY INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

The City's and Agency’s primary investment objective is to achieve a reasonable rate of return on
public funds while minimizing the potential for capital losses arising from market changes or issuer
default. Although the generation of revenues through investment earnings on investments is an
appropriate goal, the primary consideration in the investment of funds is capital preservation in the
overall portfolio. As such, the yield objective is to achieve a reasonable rate of return on
investments rather than the maximum generation of income which could expose the unacceptable
levels of risk.

In determining investment activities, the following factors shall be considered in priority order:
Safety, Liquidity and Yield.

Safety

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Investments shall be
undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The
City shall seek to preserve principal by mitigating the two types of risk, credit risk and market risk
summarized as follows:

1. Credit risk. This is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer. Credit risk
may be mitigated by:

[ | Limiting investments to the safest types of securities.

[ | Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisors with
which a City or Agency will do business.

[ | Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual securities will be
minimized.

2. Interest rate risk. This is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due
to changes in general interest rates. Interest rate risk may be mitigated by:

Page 3
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INTRODUCTION (continued)

[ | Structuring the investment portfolio so securities mature to meet cash requirements for
ongoing operations to avoid the need to divest of securities prior to maturity.
[ | Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities or investment pools.

Liquidity

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all reasonably anticipated operating
requirements. This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent
with cash needs and anticipated demands (static liquidity). Since all possible cash demands cannot
be anticipated, the portfolio should consist of securities with active secondary or resale markets or
an investment pool which offers same-day liquidity (dynamic liquidity).

Yield

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and
liquidity needs. Return on investment is of least importance compared to the safety and liquidity
objectives described above. The core of investments are limited to relatively low risk securities in
anticipation of earning a reasonable return relative to the risk being assumed. Securities shall not be
sold prior to maturity with the following exceptions:

A declining credit security could be sold early to minimize loss of principal.

A security swap would improve the quality, yield, or target duration in the portfolio.
Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold.

Capital gain realized would improve the overall position of the portfolio in achieving goals.

SCOPE OF INVESTMENT POLICY AND MANAGEMENT PLAN

This policy covers all short-term operating funds and investment transactions involving the
financial assets and related activity of the City and Successor Agency to the former
Redevelopment Agency. These funds are accounted for in accordance with accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and include the following types:

o Governmental:

= General Fund

= Special Revenue Funds

= Capital Projects Funds
o Debt Service Funds
o Proprietary:

= Enterprise Funds

= Internal Service Funds
o Fiduciary Funds:

= Trust Funds

= Agency Funds

Page 4

40



INTRODUCTION (continued)

USE OF STATE GUIDELINES

Government Code Sections 16481.2, 53601, 53635, and 53646 of the State of California regulate
the investment practices. It is the policy of the City and/or Agency to use the State's provisions for
local government investments in the developing and implementing investment policies and
practices. Major guidelines and practices, which are to be used in achieving the primary investment
objective, include the following:

Investment Authority and Responsibilities
Capital Preservation and Risk

Eligible Financial Institutions

Investment Vehicles

Investment Maturity

Cash Management

Evaluation Of Investment Performance
Investment Reporting

These guidelines apply to all cash-related assets included within the scope of the audited financial
statements and held either directly by the City and/or Agency or held and invested by trustees or
fiscal agents. The only exception is funds invested in the City's deferred compensation plan, which
is controlled by federal law, specific provisions of the City's adopted plan, and individual employee
decisions.

PREPARATION AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN

The Finance Director and/or Treasurer are responsible for developing and monitoring the
Investment Policy and Management Plan. As required under Government Code Sections 16481.2
and 53646, the Council and Agency Board will review the document annually. In the interim, the
Treasurer is responsible for keeping the Investment Policy and Management Plan up-to-date to
reflect changes in legislation, organizational structure, Council approved policies and
administrative procedures.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT OFFICERS

Authority and responsibility to manage the investment portfolio is granted to the Finance Director
and/or Treasurer, who shall carry out established written procedures and internal controls for the
operation of the investment program consistent with this plan. Procedures should include references
to: safekeeping, delivery vs. payment, investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer
agreements, collateral/depository agreements and banking services contracts.

Page 5
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INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this plan
and the procedures established by the Finance Director and/or Treasurer. Although the Finance
Director/Treasurer may delegate these duties to another official in the Department of Finance, every
investment transaction must be reviewed and approved by the Finance Director and/or Treasurer.
Additionally, the Finance Director and/or Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions
undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Finance Director/Treasurer is responsible for providing reasonable assurance of compliance
with the investment plan as well as for establishing systems of internal control designed to
prevent losses due to fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, unanticipated
changes in financial markets, or imprudent actions by City officers and employees. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that 1) cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and 2) valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

All participants in the investment process shall act responsibly as custodians of the public trust.
Investment officials shall recognize that the investment portfolio is subject to public review and
evaluation.  The overall program shall be designed and managed with a degree of
professionalism that is worthy of the public trust.

Additionally, the Finance Department may from time-to-time be required to be responsible for the
physical security of investments and shall use custodial safekeeping for negotiable and bearer
instruments whenever possible.

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT RESOURCES

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management. Accordingly, the Finance Director and/or Treasurer shall establish a
process for annual independent review by an external auditor to assure compliance with policies and
procedures. The internal controls shall address the following points:

O Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping. Separation of
duties from the person who authorizes or performs the transaction from the people whom
record or otherwise account for the transaction.

0 Custodial safekeeping. Securities purchased from any bank or dealer including appropriate
collateral (as defined by State Law) shall be placed with an independent third party for
custodial safekeeping.

O Avoidance of physical delivery securities. Book entry securities are much easier to
transfer and account for since actual delivery of a document never takes place. Delivered
securities must be properly safeguarded against loss or destruction. The potential for fraud
and loss increases with physically delivered securities.

Page 6
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INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

0 Delivery vs. payment. All trades where applicable will be executed by delivery vs.
payment (DVP). This ensures that securities are deposited in the eligible financial
institution prior to the release of funds. A third party custodian will hold securities.

0 Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members. Subordinate staff members
must have a clear understanding of their authority and responsibilities to avoid improper
actions. Clear delegation of authority also preserves the internal control structure that is
contingent on the various staff positions and their respective responsibilities.

0 Written confirmation of telephone transactions for investments and wire transfers.
Due to the potential for error and improprieties arising from telephone transactions, all
telephone transactions should be supported by written communications and approved by the
appropriate person. Written communications may be via fax if on letterhead and the
safekeeping institution has a list of authorized signatures. All requests will require two (2)
signatures from the authorized list.

O Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank or third party custodian.
This agreement should outline the various controls, security provisions, and delineate
responsibilities of each party making and receiving wire transfers.

EVALUATION OF STANDARD OF CARE (Prudence)

Investment officials as trustees have a fiduciary responsibility to act as a "prudent investor"
under Government Code Section 53600.3. This standard shall be applied in the context of
managing the overall portfolio of pooled idle cash. Investment officers acting in accordance
with written procedures and this Investment Policy and Management Plan, and exercising due
diligence shall be exercising due diligence shall be relived of personal responsibility for an
individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations
are reported in a timely fashion and the liquidity and the sale of securities are carried out in
accordance with the terms of this plan.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which
persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs,
not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as
the probable income to be derived. This affords a broad spectrum of investment opportunities as
long as the investment is prudent under current law.

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business
activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program,
or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Employees and investment officials
shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business. They
shall further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking
personal investment transactions with the same individual with which business is conducted on
behalf of their entity.
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CAPITAL PRESERVATION AND RISK

OVERVIEW

Some level of risk is inherent in any investment transaction. Losses may be incurred due to issuer
default, market price changes, and technical cash flow complications such as investments in non-
marketable certificates of deposit or unanticipated cash flow requirement. Diversification of the
portfolio by institution, investment vehicle, and maturity term is the primary tool available in
minimizing investment risk and capital losses by safeguarding the overall portfolio from any
individual loss.

PORTFOLIO DIVERSIFICATION PRACTICES

The investment portfolio shall be diversified to prevent incurring unreasonable and avoidable risks
regarding specific security types, individual financial institutions or maturity segments. The
following sections summarize the major portfolio diversification practices and guidelines in
determining:

0 Eligible financial institutions
0 Investment vehicles
0 Investment maturity

Portfolio limitations included in these guidelines are to be based on the portfolio composition and
Investment Policy and Management Plan policies in effect at the time of placement; the actual
composition of the investments may vary over time from plan limitations due to overall portfolio
changes from when the individual placement was made as well as changes in the Investment Policy
and Management Plan.

ELIGIBLE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

PORTFOLIO DIVERSIFICATION AND CREDIT-WORTHINESS STANDARDS

The following general criteria relating to portfolio diversification and credit-worthiness will be used
in selecting depositories and broker/dealers (financial institutions) in the placement of investments:

0 The financial capacity and credit-worthiness of the financial institution shall be considered
prior to the placement of investments.

0 Financial statements shall be maintained for each institution through which cash is invested.

0 No more than 25% of the portfolio (exclusive of government agency issues) shall be placed
with any financial institution.

O No more than 25% of the portfolio shall be invested in collateralized certificates of deposit
issued by savings and loan institutions.

0 Certificates of deposit (negotiable and collateralized) placed shall not constitute more than

15% of the total assets of the institution; and negotiable certificates of deposit will only be
placed with institutions with total assets in excess of $200 million and that maintain a ratio
of equity to total assets of at least 5%.

Page 8
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ELIGIBLE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

CERTIFICATION AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

A list of qualified securities broker/dealers and financial institutions with which there is an
investment relationship. A copy of the Investment Policy and Management Plan will be provided to
those qualified in doing business with the City or Agency and will require written acknowledgment
that they have reviewed the Investment Policy and Management Plan and that it will:

[

[

[

Exercise due diligence in monitoring the activities of its officers and employees engaged in
transactions.

Ensure that all of its officers and employees offering investments are trained in the
precautions appropriate to public sector investments.

Submit audited financial statements prepared by an independent certified public accountant
on an annual basis within 180 days after the end of the institution's fiscal year.

INDIVIDUAL PLACEMENT OF INVESTMENTS

Individual placement of investments with eligible financial institutions shall be based on the
following practices and procedures:

[

Investments shall be placed with three (3) institutions selected from an established list of
qualified Primary Dealers in U. S. Government Securities. Performance of the selected
institutions shall be continually monitored and a new institution selected if determined to be
in the best interest of the City and Agency.

Investments shall only be placed with financial institutions maintaining offices within the
State of California.

Except for repurchase agreements and placements with the State's local agency investment
pool (LAIF), investments shall be awarded based on competitive bids.

Within the context of the policies regarding competitive bidding and portfolio limitations,
investments shall be distributed as evenly as possible between financial institutions.
Negotiable investments shall not be purchased or sold from the institution which provides
custodial safekeeping for investments.

INDIVIDUAL PLACEMENT OF DEPOSITS

Individual placement of negotiable, collateralized, and other time certificates of deposit with eligible
financial institutions shall be based on the following practices and procedures:

[

[

Deposits shall only be placed with financial institutions maintaining offices within the City
of Marina.

Unless collateralized by eligible securities as provided in Sections 53651 and 53652 of the
Government Code, the maximum amount of Certificates of Deposit to be placed with any
single institution is $100,000.
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ELIGIBLE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

0 Reasonable efforts will be made to place deposits of less than $100,000 with each eligible
institution. Any deposits in excess of this amount shall be awarded based on competitive
bids.

0 Within the context of policies regarding competitive bidding and portfolio limitations,

deposits shall be distributed as evenly as possible between financial institutions.

INVESTMENT VEHICLES

STATE OF CALIFORNIA LIMITATIONS

As provided in Sections 53601, 53635, and 16429.1 of the Government Code, the State or
California limits the investment vehicles available to local agencies as summarized by the
following:

Government Agency Issues

As authorized in Government Code Sections 53601(a) through (e), this category includes a wide
variety of government securities. There are no portfolio limitations on the amount; however, the
maturity term for these investment vehicles may not exceed five (5) years unless approved by the
Council. As discussed below, special authority is granted to the Finance Director and/or Treasurer
to invest proceeds from debt issues (reserve funds) for a period not to exceed the term of the debt.
These securities include the following:

0 Local government bonds or other indebtedness

O State bonds or other indebtedness

0 U. S. Treasury notes or other indebtedness secured by the full faith and credit of the federal
government

0 Other federal agency securities such as issues by the Government National Mortgage

Association (GNMA?'s), Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA's), and Small
Business Administration.

Banker's Acceptances

As provided in Government Code Section 53601(f), forty percent (40%) of the portfolio may be
invested in Banker's Acceptances that are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System,
although no more than thirty percent (30%) of the portfolio may be invested in Bankers'
Acceptances with any one commercial bank. Maturity period cannot exceed one hundred eighty
(180) days.

Page 10
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INVESTMENT VEHICLES (continued)

Commercial Paper

As authorized in Government Code Section 53601(g), fifteen percent (15%) of the portfolio may be
invested in "prime" commercial paper as rated by Moody's or Standard and Poor's, with maturities
not to exceed two hundred seventy (270) days nor ten percent (10%) of outstanding paper of issuer.
This percentage may be increased to thirty percent (30%) if the dollar weighted average maturity
does not exceed thirty-one (31) days. There are a number of other qualifications regarding
investments in commercial paper based on the financial strength of the corporation.

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

As authorized in Government Code Section 53601(h), thirty percent (30%) of its portfolio may be
invested in negotiable certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks.

Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

As authorized in Government Code Section 53601(i), repurchase agreements are agreements
between the local agency and seller for the purchase of government securities to be resold at a
specific date and for a specific amount. Repurchase agreements are generally used for short-term
investments. The legal limitation on the maturity period for a repurchase agreement is for one (1)
year with the required market value underlying the agreement at one hundred two percent (102%) of
the funds borrowed with the value adjusted quarterly. Reverse repurchase agreements are
agreements between the local agency and buyer for the sale of government securities to be
repurchased at a specific date and for a specific amount. Reverse repurchase agreements require the
prior approval of the Council. Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements can only
be made with primary dealers of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

Corporate Notes

As authorized in Government Code Sections 53601(j), local agencies may invest in corporate notes
issued by corporations organized and operating in the United States with a maximum maturity
period of five (5) years in an amount not to exceed thirty percent (30%) of the agency's portfolio.

Diversified Management Companies (Mutual Funds)

As authorized in Government Code Sections 53601(k), local agencies are also authorized to invest
in shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies (DMC's) as defined in
Section 23701(m) of the Revenue and Taxation Code in an amount not to exceed twenty percent
(20%) of the agency's portfolio. There are a number of other qualifications and restrictions
regarding allowable investments in corporate notes and share of beneficial interest issued by
DMC's.
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INVESTMENT VEHICLES (continued)

Time Certificates of Deposit

As authorized in Government Code Section 53601(n), Certificates of Deposit are fixed term
investments which are required to be collateralized 110% by eligible pooled securities. The pool is
administered by the State, and is composed of a wide variety of government securities, including
those indicated above (except municipal bonds), as well as promissory notes secured by first
mortgages on improved residential property located in the State. There are no portfolio limits on the
amount, however the maturity period for this investment vehicle may not exceed five (5) years
unless approved by the Council.

Local Agency Investment Fund

As authorized in Government Code Section 16429.1, local agencies may invest in the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF), a money market fund that allows local agencies to pool their investment
resources. Current policies of LAIF set minimum and maximum amounts of monies that may be
invested as well as maximum numbers of transactions that are allowed per month.

CITY AND AGENCY POLICIES
Allowable Investment Vehicles

The Finance Director and/or Treasurer is authorized to invest in any of the investment vehicles
allowed by Sections 53601, 53635 and 16429.1 of the Government Code with the exception of
financial futures or option contracts. Exclusion of these vehicles is consistent with the overall
objective of achieving reasonable yields on public funds while minimizing risk and capital losses.
Although the potential exists for greater interest yields with these vehicles, it is believed that the
potential level of risk exceeds their benefits except in very limited circumstances. Accordingly,
Council approval is required on a case-by-case for any investments in financial futures or option
contracts.

Term

Reserve funds from the proceeds of debt issues may be invested by the Finance Director/Treasurer
in government agency securities with terms exceeding five (5) years if the maturity of such
investments are made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the life of the debt issue. In all other
cases, Council approval to make investments with terms in excess of five (5) years is required on a
case-by-case basis.

Because of inherent difficulties in accurately forecasting cash flow requirements, a portion of the

portfolio should be continuously invested in readily available funds to ensure that appropriate
liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing obligations.

Page 12
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INVESTMENT VEHICLES (continued)

Exemptions

These policies do not apply to deferred compensation plans. Individual investment policies are
adopted by each deferred compensation plan and approved independently by Council. Solely
controlled by the individual participant who directs individual investments within their account.
Bond/Loan proceeds of debt issuance that shall be invested in accordance with permitted
investment provisions of their specific bond/loan indentures.

INVESTMENT MATURITY

In addition to the risks associated with the credit-worthiness of the financial institution and the
security of the investment vehicle, the maturity period of investments is also a significant
consideration in the management of the portfolio. In order to minimize the impact of market risk, it
is intended that all investments will be held until maturity. The following guidelines will be used:

0 Projected cash flow requirements are the primary factor to be used in determining
investment maturity terms. After cash flow needs have been met, yield considerations will
be the next factor used in determining maturity terms, with the expectation that longer
maturity periods will generally yield greater returns on investments.

0 Investments may be sold prior to maturity for cash flow or appreciation purposes; however,
no investment shall be made based solely on yields resulting from anticipated capital gains.
0 Investments longer than one (1) year may be made if consistent with the cash flow needs

and related intent of holding until maturity.

In accordance with the guidelines above, the following targets will be used in guiding the maturity
mix of the overall portfolio exclusive of longer-term investments of debt service reserves:

Within 1 month to 1 year 70%
Within 1 to 5 years 20%
Greater than 5 years _10%
TOTAL 100%

CASH MANAGEMENT

To achieve a reasonable return on funds, the following cash management practices will be followed:

0 Maintain maximum investment of all funds not required to meet immediate cash flow needs
while maintaining adequate compensating balances as may be required under the banking
services agreement.

0 Pool resources available for investment from all funds, with interest earnings allocated to
each fund in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
0 Maximize cash flow through deposit of all cash receipts, direct deposits and wire transfers
whenever available, and appropriate timing of payments to vendors.
0 Maximize cash flow through use of only one general operating bank account.
Page 13

49



EVALUATION OF INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

As indicated in the Introduction section of this document, it is the primary investment objective to
achieve a reasonable rate of return on public funds while minimizing risks and preserving capital.
In evaluating the performance of the portfolio in achieving this objective, it is expected that yields
on investments will regularly meet or exceed the average return on three month U. S. Treasury Bills.

INVESTMENT REPORTING

Consistent with Sections 16481.2 and 53646 of the Government Code, the Finance Director and/or
Treasurer shall submit an annual Statement of Investment and Management Plan to the Council and
Agency Board for review and approve at a public meeting. The Finance Director and/or Treasurer
is responsible for developing and maintaining this Investment Policy and Management Plan.

In addition to the submittal of an annual Statement of Investment Policy and Management Plan, the
Department of Finance shall provide the Council and City Manager with a quarterly investment
report, which at a minimum, provides the following information for each investment or security:

Type of investment

Name of issuer or broker/dealer (financial institution)

Maturity date, par and dollar amount for each investment

Weighted average maturity of investments

Any funds, investments programs under management of contracted parties

Total cost and market value, including source of this valuation, of the portfolio

A description of the compliance with the Statement of Investment and Management Policy
demonstrating that expenditure requirements can be met in the following six (6) months

Other information regarding the portfolio as appropriate

OO0 oDdooo ™

The Quarterly Investment Report shall include all investments as of the end of the quarter from all
funds held in the portfolio, including funds held and invested by trustees exclusive of deferred
compensation plan funds; and shall be issued within thirty (30) days after the end of the quarterly
reporting period.

Market value adjustments, as required under Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 31, are treated as year-end accounting adjustments to the financial records of the City
and Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency. Quarterly investment reports will
demonstrate market fluctuations and continue to compare purchase price versus market value status.
Accounting adjustments under GASB Statement No. 31, which compare changes to beginning and
ending par market value in each fiscal year are not included as part of quarterly investment reports.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Accrued Interest - Interest earned but not yet received.

Active Deposits - Funds which are immediately required for disbursement.

Amortization - An accounting practice of gradually decreasing (increasing) an asset's book value by
spreading its depreciation (accretion) over a period of time.

Bankers' Acceptance - A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust company. The
accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill, as well as the issuer.

Basis Point - One basis point is one hundredth of one percent (.01%).

Bond - A financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder a specific stream
of future cash flows, including periodic interest payments and a principal repayment.

Book Value - The value at which a debt security is shown on the holder's balance sheet. Book value
is acquisition cost less amortization of premium or accretion of discount.

Broker - A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a commission. He does not take a position
or make a recommendation.

Certificate of Deposit - A time deposit insured up to $100,000 by the FDIC at a set rate with a
specific period of time and maturity evidenced by a certificate.

Collateral - Securities, evidence of deposit or pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to
securities pledged by a bank to secure deposit of public moneys.

Credit Analysis - A critical review and appraisal of the economic and financial conditions or of the
ability to meet debt obligations.

Credit Risk - Risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a security. Loss may be mitigated by
investing in investment grade securities and diversifying the investment portfolio so that the failure
of any one issuer does not unduly harm the City’s capital base and cash flow.

Current Yield - The interest paid on an investment expressed as a percentage of the current price of
the security.

Custody - A banking service that provides safekeeping for the individual securities in a customer's
investment portfolio under a written agreement which also calls for the bank to collect and pay out
income, to buy, sell, receive and deliver securities when ordered to do so by the principal.

Delivery vs. Payment (DVP) - There are two methods of delivery of securities: a) Delivery of
securities with a simultaneous exchange of money for the securities, and b) Receipt is delivery of
securities with an exchange of a signed receipt for the securities.

Page 15

51



GLOSSARY OF TERMS (continued)

Discount - The difference between the cost of a security and its value at maturity when quoted at
lower than face value. A security selling below original offering price shortly after sale is
considered to be at a discount.

Diversification - Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent
returns and risk profiles.

Fannie Mae - Trade name for the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), a U.S.
sponsored corporation.

Federal Reserve System - The central bank of the U.S. which consists of a seven member Board of
Governors, 12 regional banks and 5,700 commercial banks that are members.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) - Insurance provided to customers of a subscribing
bank which guarantees deposits to a set limit (currently $100,000) per account.

Fed Wire - A wire transmission service established by the Federal Reserve Bank to facilitate the
transfer of funds through debits and credits of funds between participants within the Fed system.

Freddie Mac - Trade name for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), a U.S.
sponsored corporation.

Ginnie Mae - Trade name for the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), a direct
obligation bearing the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government.

Idle (Inactive) Deposits - Funds not immediately needed for disbursement.

Interest Rate - The annual yield earned on an investment, expressed as a percentage.

Liquidity - Refers to the ability to rapidly convert an investment into cash without a substantial loss
of value.

Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) - A pooled investment group operated by the State of
California for public agencies.

Market Value - The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or sold.

Maturity - The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and
payable.

Portfolio - Collection of securities held by an investor.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS (continued)

Prudent Investor Rule - An investment standard. Investment in a security if it is one which would
be bought by a prudent person of discretion and intelligence who is seeking a reasonable income
and preservation of capital.

Purchase Date - The date on which a security is purchased for settlement on that or a later date.

Rate of Return - The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market
price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income return.

Repurchase Agreement (REPO) - A transaction where the seller (bank) agrees to buy back from the
buyer (City) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period of time.

Reverse Repurchase Agreement (REVERSE REPQ) - A transaction where the seller (City) agrees
to buy back from the buyer (bank) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period of
time.

Risk - Degree of uncertainty of return on an asset.

Safekeeping - See Custody.

Sallie Mae - Trade name for the Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA), a U.S. sponsored
corporation.

Treasury Bills - U.S. Treasury Bills which are short-term, direct obligations of the U.S. Government
issued with original maturities of 13, 26 and 52 weeks; sold in minimum amounts of $10,000 in
multiples of $5,000 above the minimum. Issued in book entry form only. T-bills are sold on a
discount basis.

U.S. Government Agencies - A colloquial term for instruments issued by various U.S. Government
Agencies most of which are secured only by the credit worthiness of the particular agency.

Yield - The rate of annual income return on an investment, expresses as a percentage. It is obtained
by dividing the current dollar income by the current market price of the security.
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December 21, 2015 ltem No. 8q9(1)

Honorable Mayor and Members City Council Meeting of
of the Marina City Council January 20, 2016

CITY COUNCIL CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 2016-,
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH R.L. HASTINGS & ASSOCIATES,
LLC, OF PLACERVILLE, CALIFORNIA IN THE AMOUNT OF FOUR
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4.000) FOR ADMINISTRATIVE
SUBCONTRACTOR SERVICES TO PERFORM REQUIRED MONITORING
OF PROJECT FOR COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF THE
HOME PROGRAM TO SUPPORT THE ROCKROSE GARDENS PROJECT,
AND AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AGREEMENT ON
BEHALF OF CITY SUBJECT TO FINAL REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY
THE CITY ATTORNEY

REQUEST:

It is requested that the City Council consider:

1. Adopting Resolution No. 2016-, approving an Agreement with R.L. Hastings &
Associates, LLC, of Placerville, California in the amount of four thousand dollars
(%$4,000) for Administrative Subcontractor Services to perform required monitoring of
project for compliance with requirements of the HOME Program to support the Rockrose
Gardens Project, and,;

2. Authorizing City Manager to execute Agreement on behalf of City subject to final review
and approval by the City Attorney.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Marina began working with Interim Inc. with the goal of developing an affordable
housing project at 3012-3022 Lexington Court in March 2010. At a regular meeting of October
5, 2010, the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Marina adopted Resolution No. 2010-
30 (MRA), which approved entering into an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement with Interim Inc.
for the project. The purpose of the project is to facilitate the development of twenty-one (21)
units of permanent, supportive housing for very low income persons with mental disabilities.

On January 20, 1998, the City executed Grant Agreement 97-HOME-0266 with the State
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for a First-Time Homebuyer down
payment assistance program. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
provided funding to HCD through HUD’s HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME).
The grant expired June 25, 2011 with a balance of $386,873 of Program Income. City staff
consulted with HCD staff concerning the possibility of the City retaining the Program Income
(P funds for HOME-eligible activities in Marina rather than returning the unexpended funds to
HCD in a grant close-out process.

At the regular meeting of January 25, 2011, the former Marina Redevelopment Agency Board
adopted Resolution No. 2011-02 (MRA) approving a Development and Disposition Agreement
(DDA) with Interim Inc. for the Lexington Court property, which was executed on January 31,
2011. The City had collaborated with Interim to secure $5.5 million funding required to construct
the project, from a range of funding sources.

54



In July 2012, HCD staff notified the City that they had amended the 1997 Grant Agreement,
which would enable the City to retain and redirect use of the funds for HOME-eligible activities.

At a regular meeting of December 4, 2012, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2012-180
approving a regulatory agreement, loan agreement, deed of trust and note with Interim
Inc./Rockrose Housing Corporation to secure the loan of funds in the amount of $361,873 for the
Rockrose Gardens housing project in accordance with the regulations of HCD/HOME.

At the regular meeting of March 5, 2013, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2013-27 to
retain R. L. Hastings & Associates, LLC to provide administrative subcontractor activities
related to set up, construction monitoring and completion of related documents in accordance
with the regulations of HCD/HOME requirements.

On September 10, 2015, documents were prepared and forwarded to HCD/HOME in connection
with completion of construction on the Rockrose Gardens project.

ANALYSIS:

HCD/HUD mandates that the City of Marina conduct annual long-term monitoring of the
Rockrose Project for the next 55 years. The scope of the monitoring is defined in the Agreement
("EXHIBIT A") between City of Marina and R.L. Hastings, LLC. The term of the contract will
be January 20, 2016 to January 20, 2017. The intent of the contract is to complete the first year
reporting using R. L. Hastings & Associates and guide city staff on all phases of the mandated
monitoring, which would allow subsequent year reporting to be accomplished in-house. The fee
for service for R.L. Hastings & Associates, LLC is Four Thousand ($4,000) for a one year
contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Should the City Council approve this request to enter into an agreement with R.L. Hastings &
Associates, LLC their fee is not-to-exceed Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000).

The cost for subcontractor services has been budgeted in account 100.440.000.00 6300.570.

CONCLUSION:
This request is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action.

Respectfully submitted,

Marilyn Lidyoff
Economic Development Coordinator
City of Marina

REVIEWED/CONCUR:

Layne P. Long
City Manager
City of Marina



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH R.L. HASTINGS & ASSOCIATES, LLC, OF
PLACERVILLE, CALIFORNIA IN THE AMOUNT OF FOUR THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($4,000) FOR ADMINISTRATIVE SUBCONTRACTOR SERVICES TO
PERFORM REQUIRED MONITORING OF PROJECT FOR COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS OF THE HOME PROGRAM TO SUPPORT THE ROCKROSE
GARDENS PROJECT, AND AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE
AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF CITY SUBJECT TO FINAL REVIEW AND
APPROVAL BY THE CITY ATTORNEY

WHEREAS, the City of Marina began working with Interim Inc. with the goal of developing an
affordable housing project at 3012-3022 Lexington Court project in March 2010 and at a regular
meeting of October 5, 2010, the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Marina adopted
Resolution No. 2010-30 (MRA), which approved entering into an Exclusive Negotiating
Agreement for the project to facilitate the development of twenty-one (21) units of permanent,
supportive housing for very low income persons with mental disabilities, and,;

WHEREAS, at the regular meeting of January 20, 1998, the City executed Grant Agreement 97-
HOME-0266 with the State Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for a
First-Time Homebuyer down payment assistance program and the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) provided funding through the HOME Investment Partnerships
Program (HOME), and;

WHEREAS, at the regular meeting of January 25, 2011, the former Marina Redevelopment
Agency Board adopted Resolution No. 2011-02 (MRA) approving a Development and
Disposition Agreement (DDA) with Interim Inc. for the property, which was executed on
January 31, 2011. The City had collaborated with Interim to secure $5.5 million funding required
to construct the project, from a range of funding sources, and;

WHEREAS, the grant expired June 25, 2011 with a balance of $386,873 of Program Income.
City staff consulted with HCD staff about the potential for the City to retain the Program Income
(PI) funds for HOME-eligible activities in Marina rather than returning the unexpended funds to
HCD in a grant close-out process, and;

WHEREAS, in July 2012, HCD staff notified the City that they had amended the 1997 Grant
Agreement that would enable the City to retain and redirect use of the funds for HOME-eligible
activities, and;

WHEREAS, at a regular meeting of December 4, 2012, the City Council adopted Resolution No.
2012-180 approving a regulatory agreement, loan agreement, deed of trust and note with Interim
Inc./Rockrose Housing Corporation to secure the loan of funds in the amount of $361,873 for the
Rockrose Gardens housing project in accordance with the regulations of HCD/HOME, and;

WHEREAS, at the regular meeting of March 5, 2013, the City Council adopted Resolution No.
2013-27 to retain R. L. Hastings & Associates, LLC to provide administrative subcontractor
activities related to set up, construction monitoring and completion of related documents in
accordance with the regulations of HCD/HOME requirements, and;
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Resolution No. 2016-
Page Two

WHEREAS, on September 10, 2015, documents were prepared and forwarded to HCD/HOME
in connection with completion of construction on the Rockrose Gardens project, and;

WHEREAS, HCD/HUD mandates that the City of Marina conduct annual long-term monitoring
of the Rockrose Project for the next 55 years. The scope of the monitoring is defined in the
Agreement ("EXHIBIT A") between City of Marina and R.L. Hastings, LLC. The term of the
contract will be January 20, 2016 to January 20, 2017. The intent of the contract is to complete
the first year reporting using R. L. Hastings & Associates and guide city staff on all phases of the
mandated monitoring, which would allow subsequent year reporting to be accomplished in-
house. The fee for service for R.L. Hastings & Associates, LLC is Four Thousand ($4,000) for a
one year contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Marina does
hereby:

1. Approve an Agreement (Exhibit A) with R.L. Hastings & Associates, LLC of Placerville,
California in the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000) for Administrative
Subcontractor Services to perform required monitoring of project for compliance with
requirements of the HOME Program to support the Rockrose Gardens Project, and;

2. Authorize City Manager to execute agreement on behalf of City subject to final review
and approval by the City Attorney.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the City Council at a regular meeting duly held on the 20" day of
January, 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk
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CONSULTANT SERVICES
HOME LONG-TERM MONITORING Page 1

EXHIBIT “A”

AGREEMENT BY & BETWEEN
CITY OF MARINA
AND
R.L. HASTINGS & ASSOCIATES, LLC
FOR ADMINISTRATIVE SUBCONTRACTOR SERVICES
TO PERFORM REQUIRED MONITORING OF PROJECT

(This Project is in connection with Standard Agreement: 2013 PI Project)

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this 20th day of January 2016 by and between the City of
Marina hereinafter referred to as “CITY,” and R.L. Hastings & Associates, LLC, hereinafter
referred to as “CONSULTANT.”

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to engage CONSULTANT to perform Long-Term Monitoring
services on behalf of the CITY for the annual monitoring of the City’s 2013 HDC/HOME grant,
and

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT is qualified and experienced to provide such consulting
services; and

NOW, THEREFORE, said CITY and said CONSULTANT, for the considerations hereinafter
and set forth, mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 CONSULTANT Responsibilities is to complete documents and instruct
city staff on each phase of monitoring along with compliance reporting
including the following:

A. CONSULTANT shall prepare “Notification of Site Visit” letter and supply to the
project’s management company to notify tenants of pending site visit and random unit
inspections;

B. CONSULTANT shall inspect, along with city staff, the project exterior, grounds, and
public areas and prepare with city staff the “Physical Condition Report” and other
required forms;

C. CONSULTANT shall conduct unit inspections with city staff on required number of
HOME units and complete the HOME “Unit Inspection” checklist or the “HUD Unit
Inspection Checklist,” whichever is required per the City Monitoring Policies and
Procedures;

D. CONSULTANT shall conduct tenant file reviews with city staff on required number
of HOME unit files for compliance with the project’s Regulatory Agreement and
Uniform Multifamily Regulations;

E. CONSULTANT shall review the Fiscal Responsibility of the project’s management
and train staff as necessary to improve performance towards meeting goals;
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CONSULTANT SERVICES
HOME LONG-TERM MONITORING Page 2

F. CONSULTANT shall review and analyze the “Annual Affirmative Marketing
Report” and train staff, if necessary, on how to improve performance towards goals;

G. CONSULTANT shall prepare along with city staff the “Annual Monitoring Report”;

H. CONSULTANT shall review along with city staff the “Annual Project Compliance
Report”;

I. CONSULTANT shall prepare along with city staff the “Monitoring Summary Letter”
outlining all Findings and Concerns;

J. CONSULTANT shall prepare a “Monitoring Clearance Letter” when all Findings
and Concerns have been addressed appropriately;

K. CONSULTANT shall submit all required documents to the State HOME Program
and copy to City;

L. CONSULTANT shall perform other tasks addressed in the informal request for
quotes.

ARTICLE 2 Term

This AGREEMENT shall commence on the 20th day of January 2016. The CITY or
CONSULTANT may terminate this AGREEMENT at any time for good cause, by giving
at least thirty (30) days’ written notice. Good cause shall consist of violations of this
AGREEMENT. If contract is terminated, CONSULTANT shall be compensated for
work performed up to the date of termination. CITY and CONSULTANT agree that time
is of the essence for CONSULTANT performance of responsibilities enumerated in
Article 1.

The Term of this AGREEMENT is for one year, commencing January 20, 2016 to
conduct the first annual long-term monitoring activities and ending on January 20, 2017.

ARTICLE 3 Compensation and Method of Payment

CITY will pay CONSULTANT the lump sum amount not to exceed $4,000 in the
following manner:

A. CONSULTANT will submit a request for payment after completion of the following
milestones:

$90% of contract amount ($3,600) payable upon issuance of the Summary Letter
containing any Findings and Concerns for the project;
$10% of contract amount ($400) upon receipt of State HOME Program Clearance.

B. The CITY will process the request for payment within 30 days after receipt of
CONSULTANT’s invoice.
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CONSULTANT SERVICES
HOME LONG-TERM MONITORING Page 3

ARTICLE 4 Amendments
This AGREEMENT may be amended by a written amendment executed by both parties.
ARTICLE 5 Status of Relationship

It is the intent of the parties that under this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT shall be an
independent contractor, and not an employee of the CITY. This agreement excludes
absolutely any employee-employer relationship between CONSULTANT and CITY.
CITY will not provide workmen’s compensation insurance, nor pay for other disability
compensation. CONSULTANT will be fully responsible for payment federal and state
income taxes, social security, and any other payroll tax obligations that CONSULTANT
may owe as a result of compensation received under this AGREEMENT.

CONSULTANT shall maintain insurance for the duration of the contract.
CONSULTANT shall, at its own expense, comply with CITY insurance and liability
requirements included as “Attachment B” to this AGREEMENT. Due to the nature of
work involved with this project, CONSULTANT shall not be obligated to maintain
Errors and Omissions Liability coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish a certificate of
insurance to CITY

The CITY reserves the right to inspect or audit work being performed by
CONSULTANT, after providing CONSULTANT with a written notice at least two (2)
business days before any intended inspection or audit. Work being defined as the duties
listed in ARTICLE 1.

ARTICLE 6 Affirmative Action

In rendering the services contemplated by this AGREEMENT with the CITY, the
CONSULTANT will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, color, creed, sex, age, or national origin. CONSULTANT shall also
comply with Title IV of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and shall provide such reports as
may be required to carry out the intent of this section.

Furthermore:

A. CONSULTANT shall take affirmative action to insure that job applicants are
employed and that employees are treated during employment without regard to race,
religion, sex, color, age, national origin, or physical handicap. The term “affirmative
action” shall include, but not be limited to, employment, upgrading, demotion, or
transfer; recruitment advertisement; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms
of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

B. CONSULTANT agrees to post such notices, to be provided, setting forth the
provisions of this equal employment opportunity and affirmative action program.
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C. CONSULTANT shall in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by
or on behalf of the CONSULTANT state that all qualified applicants will receive
consideration to employment without regard to race, religion, sex, color, age, national
origin, or physical handicap. Notification that CONSULTANT is an “Equal
Opportunity Employer” or “EOE” constitutes satisfaction of this notice requirement.

ARTICLE 7 Fair Employment Practices

CONSULTANT will permit access to records of employment, employment
advertisements, application forms, and other pertinent data and records by the State Fair
Employment Practices Commission, or any other agency of the State of California
designated by awarding authority, for the purposes of investigation to ascertain
compliance with the Fair Employment Practices Provision. In the event of any violations
by the CONSULTANT of state fair employment laws, the State of California shall have
the right to terminate this AGREEMENT either in whole or in part. In the event of such
termination, any loss or damage sustained by the State of California and/or CITY in
securing the goods or services hereunder shall be borne and paid for by the
CONSULTANT and by their surety under performance bond, if any, and, in addition to
other remedies, the State of California and the CITY may deduct from any monies due or
that thereafter become due to the CONSULTANT the difference between the price
named in the particular agreements and the actual cost thereof to the State of California
and the CITY.

ARTICLE 8 Compliance with Labor Code of State of California

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code, CONSULTANT will
require every employer to be insured against liability for workmen’s compensation, or to
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and will comply
with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of a particular
agreement. Furthermore, CONSULTANT shall also provide evidence of workmen’s
compensation insurance, unemployment insurance, and disability insurance to cover all
of CONSULTANT’s employees.

ARTICLE 9 The Civil Rights Act, HCD, Age Discrimination, and Rehabilitation Acts
Assurance

During the performance of this contract the CONSULTANT assures that no otherwise
qualified person shall be excluded from the participation or employment, denied program
benefits, or be subject to discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, age, or
handicap, under any program or activity funded by this AGREEMENT, as required by
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Title I, of the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1974, as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975; the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973; and all implementing programs.
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ARTICLE 10 The Training, Employment, and Contracting Opportunities for Business

A.

and Lower-Income Persons Assurance of Compliance

The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program
providing direct federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and
Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing
and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 USC 1701 u. Section 3
requires that to the greatest extent feasible, opportunities for training and employment
be given to lower-income residents of the project area and contracts for work in
connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in, or
owned in substantial part by persons residing in, the area of the project.

The parties to this AGREEMENT will comply with the provisions of said Section 3
and the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban
Development set forth in 24 CFR Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the
Department issued thereunder prior to the execution of this AGREEMENT. The
parties to this AGREEMENT certify and agree that they are under no contractual or
other disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements.
The CONSULTANT will send to each labor organization or representative of
workers with which there is a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or
understanding, if any, a notice advertising the said labor organization or workmen’s
representative of the commitment under this Section 3 Clause and shall post copies of
the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for
employment or training.

The CONSULTANT will include this Section 3 Clause in every subcontract for work
in connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or
recipient of federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the
subcontract upon finding the subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the
Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135 and will not let any
subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided a preliminary statement of
ability to comply with the requirements of these regulations.

Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR Part
135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued thereunder prior to
the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of the federal financial assistance
provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its
successors, and assigns. Failure to fulfill these requirements shall subject the
applicant or recipient, its contractor or subcontractors, its successors, and assigns to
those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which
federal assistance is provided, and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part
135.

ARTICLE 11 State Non-Discrimination Clause

A. During the performance of this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT and its

subcontractors shall not lawfully discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical
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handicap, medical condition, marital status, age (over 40), or sex. Contractors and
subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and
applicants for employment are free of such discrimination. Contractors and
subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing
Act (Government Code Section 12900 et seq.) And the applicable regulations
promulgated thereunder (California Administrative Code Section 12990), set forth in
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Administrative Code, are
incorporated into this AGREEMENT by reference and made a part hereof as if set
forth in full. CONSULTANT and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their
obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective
bargaining or other agreement.

B. This AGREEMENT shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions
of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under this contract.

ARTICLE 12 Indemnity and Liability

CITY shall not be liable for any damage or injuries caused, nor the cost or expense
incurred, by CONSULTANT in the performance of any of the CONSULTANT’s duties
under this AGREEMENT. If a claim or lawsuit is brought against the CITY for any
damages or injuries caused, or costs and expenses incurred, by CONSULTANT, then
CONSULTANT shall defend against and indemnify CITY for any such claim or lawsuit.
Furthermore, the CITY is not liable or responsible for any damages or injuries caused to,
nor costs or expenses charged to, the CONSULTANT as a result of CONSULTANT’s
performance of the duties under this AGREEMENT.

ARTICLE 13 Entire Agreement

This AGREEMENT supersedes any and all other agreements, either written or oral,
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other
agreement, or promises relating to the subject matter of this AGREEMENT which is not
contained herein, shall be valid or binding.

Provided, however, the parties may later enter into written modifications or amendments
to this AGREEMENT, signed and dated by both parties.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on
the day and year first above written:

CITY OF MARINA CONSULTANT
By: By:
City Manager R. L. Hastings
R. L. Hastings & Associates LLC

Approved as to form:

By:

City Attorney, City of Marina



CONSULTANT SERVICES
HOME LONG-TERM MONITORING Page 8

ATTACHMENT B

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS

CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against
claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with
the performance of the work hereunder by the CONSULTANT, his/her agents, representatives,
or employees.

Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG
0001).

2. Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (Ed. 1/87) covering Automobile
Liability, code 1 (any auto).

3. Workmen’s Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and
Employer’s Liability Insurance.

4. Errors and Omissions Liability appropriate to the CONSULTANT’s profession.

Minimum Limits of Insurance. CONSULTANT shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and
property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a
general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to
this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence
limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage, or
a level acceptable to the CITY.

3. Employer’s Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

4. Errors and Omissions Liability: At a level acceptable to the CITY.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be
declared to and approved by the CITY. At the option of the CITY, either the insurer shall reduce
or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the CITY, its officers,
officials, employees, and volunteers; or the CONSULTANT shall procure a bond guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.
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Other Insurance Provisions. The general liability, automobile liability, and workmen’s
compensation policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1.

The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as insured
as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the
CONSULTANT; products and completed operations of the CONSULTANT; premises
owned, occupied, or used by the CONSULTANT; or automobiles owned, leased, hired,
or borrowed by the CONSULTANT. The coverage shall contain no special limitations
on the scope of protection afforded to the CITY, its officers, officials, employees, or
volunteers.

For any claims related to this project, the CONSULTANT’s insurance coverage shall be
primary insurance as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers.
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the CITY, its officers, officials,
employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not
contribute with it.

Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including
breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the CITY, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers.

The CONSULTANT’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom
claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability.
Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage
shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits
except after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the CITY.

Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s
rating of no less than A; VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the CITY.

Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original endorsements
affecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsements are to be signed by a person
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms
provided by the CITY. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the CITY before
work commences. As an alternative to CITY forms, the CONSULTANT’s insurer may provide
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the
coverage required by these specifications.
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January 15, 2016 Item No. 8q(2)

Honorable Mayor and Members City Council Meeting
of the Marina City Council of January 20, 2016

CITY COUNCIL CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 2016- ,
APPROVING A FEE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MARINA
AND EAH INC. REPRESENTING THE VETERANS TRANSITION
CENTER (VTC) FOR PROVISION OF PLANNING, ENGINEERING
AND CITY ATTORNEY SERVICES RELATED TO REVIEW AND
PROCESSING OF THE VTC PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING
PROJECT LOCATED ON HAYES CIRCLE, MARINA CALIFORNIA
(APN: 031-021-040); AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO
MAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY
ENTRIES, AND; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE
THE FEE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY SUBJECT TO
FINAL REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE CITY ATTORNEY

REQUEST:

It is requested that the City Council consider:

1. Adopting Resolution 2016- , approving a Fee Agreement between the City of Marina and
EAH Inc. for provision of planning, engineering and City Attorney services related to
review, and processing of the VTC Permanent Housing Project located on Hayes Circle,
Marina, California (APN:031-021-040), and,;

2. Authorizing the Finance Director to make the appropriate accounting and budgetary
entries, and;

3. Authorizing the City Manager to execute the Fee Agreement on behalf of the City
subject to final review and approval by the City Attorney.

BACKGROUND:

Fees for review of smaller and/or less complex project proposals are usually based upon a fixed
fee schedule for the provision of a specified list of City review services. Pursuant to City
Ordinance No. 2007-07 and Resolution No. 2007-153, fees for the review of larger and/or more
complex projects are based upon ‘“cost of service” according to an agreement between the
applicant and the City.

The subject property is a 2.38 acre parcel along Hayes Circle. The subject property is adjacent to,
but not a part of Cypress Knolls. The proposed project includes demolition of four existing
duplex structures, construction of 64 studio apartments and 8 two-bedroom apartments for a total
of 72 units of permanent supportive housing for veterans and their families. Fourteen trees are
proposed for removal. The concept plan illustrates the inclusion of a community garden, tot lot,
community room, office, lobby, laundry facility, fitness studio, two lounges, rear semi-private
patio area, and a front entry semi-public patio area leading to a 60 parking space lot with two
drive access points to Hayes Circle. The main structure would be three stories and span a length
of over 300 feet along Hayes Circle. The preliminary site plan is attached (“EXHIBIT A”).
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The project site is designated as Single Family Residential on the General Plan Land Use Map
and located within the Multiple Family Residential (R-4) Zoning District. The Project will
require:
» Preparation of an Initial Study and Negative Declaration;
« An Amendment to the General Plan Land Use Map to change the designation from
Single Family Residential to Multiple Family Residential to allow the project density
of 30.25 units per acre;
« A Conditional Use Permit to exceed twenty-five units per acre in the R-4 Zoning
District;
* A Tree Removal, Preservation and Protection Permit and Site and Architectural
Design Review Approval;
» A parking exception to allow reduced parking; and
« A consistency determination from the Fort Ord Reuse Authority

ANALYSIS:

Due to the complexity of the project, planning, engineering and attorney costs related to review
and processing of the proposed project may differ from the fixed fee that would otherwise be
assigned to the project according to the City’s fee schedule.

A draft Fee Agreement has been prepared by the City Attorney (“EXHIBIT A” to the
Resolution). The Fee Agreement allows for recovery of costs for necessary background and
project review; preparation of staff reports and environmental documents, including any needed
technical analysis; meetings of the Tree Committee and Site and Architectural Design Review
Board; public hearings of the Planning Commission and City Council; and time required by the
City Attorney and City staff. It will also cover costs associated with determining the project’s
consistency with the City General Plan, the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan, and all applicable local,
state and federal regulations. Further, the Fee Agreement requires additional deposit(s) as
necessary to reimburse the City for any additional costs beyond the deposit amount should they
occur. Likewise, should funds remain in the account upon conclusion of the project, these funds
will be returned to the applicant.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Should the City Council approve this request, all costs associated with the review and processing
of this project will be borne by the developer and reimbursed through the authority of the Fee
Agreement between the parties.

Specifically, the Fee Agreement provides for an initial deposit of $41,588, which has already
been made by the applicant. Further, the Fee Agreement requires additional deposit(s) as
necessary to reimburse additional costs beyond the deposit amount should they occur. Revenues
and appropriations would be in the General Fund Planning Fee Agreement accounts.

CONCLUSION:
The request is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action.

Respectfully submitted,

Taven M. Kinison Brown

Acting Planning Services Manager
Community Development Department
Planning Services Division



REVIEWED/CONCUR:

Theresa Szymanis, AICP, CTP
Acting Director

Community Development Department
City of Marina

Layne P. Long
City Manager
City of Marina
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RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA
APPROVING A FEE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MARINA AND EAH
INC. REPRESENTING THE VETERANS TRANSITION CENTER (VTC) FOR
PROVISION OF PLANNING, ENGINEERING AND CITY ATTORNEY SERVICES
RELATED TO REVIEW AND PROCESSING OF THE VTC PERMANENT
SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROJECT LOCATED ON HAYES CIRCLE, MARINA
CALIFORNIA (APN: 031-021-040); AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR
TO MAKE THE APPROPRIATE ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY ENTRIES,
AND; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE FEE
AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY SUBJECT TO FINAL REVIEW AND
APPROVAL BY THE CITY ATTORNEY

WHEREAS, the applicant, EAH Inc., representing the Veterans Transition Center (VTC), is
proposing to construct a permanent supportive housing project consisting of 64 studio apartments
and 8 two-bedroom apartments for veterans and their families for a total of 72 units. The concept
plan includes a community garden, tot lot, community room, office, lobby, laundry facility,
fitness studio, two lounges, rear private patio area, and a front public patio area leading to a 60
parking space lot with two drive access points to Hayes Circle. Fourteen trees are proposed for
removal. The main structure would be three stories and span a length of over 300 feet along
Hayes Circle, and;

WHEREAS, the proposed project entails environmental review, an amendment to the General
Plan Land Use Map, a Conditional Use Permit to exceed twenty-five units per acre in the R-4
Zoning District, a parking exception to allow reduced parking, Site and Architectural Design
Review and a Tree Removal Permit, and;

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Ordinance No. 2007-07 and Resolution No. 2007-153, fees for the
review of larger and/or more complex projects are based upon “cost of service” according to an
agreement between the applicant and the City, and;

WHEREAS, a draft Fee Agreement has been prepared by the City Attorney (“EXHIBIT A”)
which allows for recovery of costs for necessary background and project review including
preparation of staff reports and environmental documents, including any needed technical
analysis; meetings of the Tree Committee and Site and Architectural Design Review Board,;
public hearings of the Planning Commission and City Council; and time required by the City
Attorney and City staff to move the project through the review and decision-making process,
and;

WHEREAS, should the City Council approve this request, all costs associated with the review
and processing of this project will be borne by the developer and reimbursed through the
authority of the Fee Agreement between the parties.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Marina does
hereby:

1. Approve a Fee Agreement between the City of Marina and EAH Inc., representing
the Veterans Transition Center (VTC) for provision of planning, engineering and City
Attorney services related to review, and processing of the 72 unit Supportive Housing
Project on a 2.38 acre parcel on Hayes Circle, Marina (APN: 031-021-040), and;
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Resolution No. 2016-
Page 2.

2. Authorize the Finance Director to make the appropriate accounting and budgetary
entries, and;

3. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Fee Agreement on behalf of City subject
to final review and approval by the City Attorney.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Marina at a regular meeting duly
held on the 20" day of January 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor

ATTEST:

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk
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EXHIBIT A
DRAFT FEE AGREEEMENT

FEE AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF PLANNING,
ENGINEERING, AND CITY ATTORNEY SERVICES RELATED
FOR THE REVIEW AND PROCESSING OF THE VETERANS
TRANSITION CENTER PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING
PROJECT LOCATED AT HAYES CIRCLE, MARINA (APN: 031-
021-040)

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into on January 20, 2016, by and between EAH
INC., representing the Veterans Transition Center, hereinafter referred to as "Applicant”, and the
City of Marina, hereinafter referred to as "City,” as follows:

Recitals

A. The Applicant, in September 2015, presented to the City a preliminary proposal for
a project to provide 72 units of permanent supportive housing for veterans on Hayes Circle,
Marina (APN: 031-021-040).

B. Following discussions between the applicant and City planning staff regarding the
Project, it has become apparent that the plan review process includes preparation of an Initial
Study and Negative Declaration, an Amendment to the General Plan, a Conditional Use Permit to
exceed twenty-five units per acre in the R-4 Zoning District, a Tree Removal Permit, Site and
Architectural Design Review, a parking exception to allow reduced parking, and a Consistency
Determination from the Fort Ord Reuse Authority which may be lengthy, complex and may
require legal costs.

C. The Municipal Code Chapter 3.24 requires recovery of 100% of the cost of service
for the project and requires a negotiated fee for cost of services for plan review.

E. It is recognized by the Parties the above-described processing will involve both
Planning and Engineering Division staff time and City legal services, potentially including
outside legal assistance, and introduces an unknown complexity to the review process.

F. The parties have agreed that the Applicant will reimburse the City for its actual
expenses incurred in making the above-described determination.

Terms and Conditions

In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, City and the Applicant agree to
the following terms and conditions:

1. Scope of Services. City shall perform the tasks necessary to review and process
the Project, including but not limited to review of plans, preparation of environmental documents,
analysis of consistency with the General Plan, preparation of staff reports and resolutions, and a
consistency determination with the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan. In performing these services City
shall utilize such staff, consultants and legal services, as it deems appropriate. It is acknowledged
that the services of any outside counsel or any other Reimbursable Party (as defined in paragraph
5 below) are being rendered for the City; therefore, any work product is the property of the City.
Because the services are being rendered in part for the benefit of Applicant, Applicant shall be
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entitled to access to and retention of any copies of all work product, other than that identified as
protected by attorney client-privilege, before and subsequent to the term of this agreement.

2. City Retains Discretion. Nothing set forth in this Agreement shall be construed as
a limitation on the City’s discretion to deny or condition any approval required for the Project,
provided such denial or condition is made in good faith. In the event any approval is denied or
refused or any approval issued to Applicant shall fail or be cancelled, expire, lapse or is otherwise
withdrawn or terminated by the City, such an event shall not constitute a breach of this
Agreement, whether or not any such refusal or failure was wrongful. Applicant’s sole remedy for
a wrongful failure by the City to issue any approval, permit or license sought by Applicant shall
be a petition for writ of mandate; and such refusal or failure by the City shall not give rise to an
action for money damages by the Applicant.

3. Applicant to Reimburse City. Applicant hereby agrees to reimburse City for its
actual expenses incurred assisting Applicant pursuant to this Agreement, including but not limited
to City staff time and consultant and legal fees (the “Reimbursable Expenses”). The City shall
cease incurring any Reimbursable Expenses promptly upon written notice of termination by either

party.

4. Term. This Agreement shall commence upon execution of the Agreement and
receipt by City of the Deposit described in paragraph 5 and shall be for an indefinite term subject
to termination by either party upon fifteen days prior written notice to the other party or as
described elsewhere in this Agreement.

5. Estimated Cost and Initial Payment. It is estimated by City that the cost of
providing the services described in this Agreement will be $41,488 of which a Deposit of $10,000
was made September 22, 2015. A second Deposit of $31,588 was made December 14, 2015.
($41,588 Deposit paid in full.) Subsequent to execution of this Agreement, but prior to the City
incurring Reimbursable Expenses, the City shall provide the Applicant with written notification,
which may be by e-mail, of each staff member, consultant, legal personnel, and any other person
or party whose services will be included in Reimbursable Expenses (“Reimbursable Party”) and
the hourly rate to be charged for each such Reimbursable Party, for the reasonable approval of
Applicant.  Billings for Reimbursable Expenses with hourly charges itemized, showing
application of the Deposit and the remaining amount thereof, shall be rendered monthly.

6. Additional Costs. The parties acknowledge that the amount described in paragraph
5 above is an estimate, arrived at following good faith negotiation, based on the nature and scope
of Project and upon the experience of the City in dealing with comparable projects. In the event
that the City’s costs of providing the services exceed those paid by Applicant pursuant to
paragraph 5 above, the City shall promptly notify the Applicant, and Applicant shall either agree
to reimburse the City for such additional costs or notify the City to immediately cease work under
this Agreement. In the event that the balance of the Deposit either falls or is reasonably estimated
will fall below $1,000.00, City shall notify Applicant of the amount of additional Deposit that is
required to continue providing the services contemplated in this Agreement and the date such
Deposit is due. City shall provide the Applicant with not less than seven days notice of the date
the additional Deposit is due. If the additional Deposit is not received by City, City may, in its
sole discretion, elect to cease work under this Agreement and notify the Applicant that the
Agreement is terminated.

7. Termination. Following the termination of this Agreement City shall ascertain
any balance due from or to Applicant from the amounts previously deposited and either notify
Applicant of the amount due or refund the balance of the account to Applicant. Any amount due
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either party shall be paid upon the later of thirty (30) days after termination or the receipt of all
invoices for work performed by City.

8. Modification. This Agreement is not subject to amendment or modification except
by a writing signed by the parties hereto.

9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties
with respect to the matters covered by this Agreement, and no other agreement, statement or
promise made by or to any party or by or to any employee, officer or agent of any party, which is
not contained in this Agreement shall be binding or valid.

10.  Attorney's Fees. In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute relating to this
Agreement, or the breach thereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the losing
party reasonable expenses, attorney's fees and costs.

11. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but both of which shall be deemed to constitute one and the
same instrument

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Applicant and the City of Marina by its duly authorized
representative, have executed this Agreement on the date first hereinabove set forth at Marina,
California.

CITY OF MARINA APPLICANT: EAH, Inc. for
Veterans Transition Center

By: By.
Layne P. Long, City Manager Errol Dominguez, Secretary EAH Inc.
Date: Date:

Attest (per Resolution No. 2016 ):

By:

Anita Shepherd-Sharp, Deputy City Clerk

Approved as to form:

By:

City Attorney

By:

Risk Manager
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January 15, 2016 Item No: 89(3)

Honorable Mayor and Members City Council Meeting
of the Marina City Council of January 20, 2016

CITY COUNCIL CONSIDER ADOPTING: RESOLUTION NO. 2016-,
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 15/16 BUDGET
APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR PREPARATION OF THE CITY
OF MARINA’S 5" CYCLE HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE; APPROVING A
CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MARINA
AND VERONICA TAM AND ASSOCIATES INC. OF PASADENA CA FOR THE
PREPARATION OF THE HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE AND UPDATE TO
THE CITY OF MARINA’S AFFORDABLE HOUSING ORDINANCE
(MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 17.45); AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACTS ON BEHALF OF THE CITY,
SUBJECT TO FINAL REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE CITY ATTORNEY;
AND AUTHORIZE THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE THE NECESSARY
BUDGETARY AND ACCOUNTING ENTRIES

REQUEST:
It is requested that the City Council:

1. Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2016- :

a. Approving an amendment to the FY 15/16 budget appropriating additional funds for
preparation of the City of Marina’s 5" Cycle Housing Element Update;

b. Approving a consulting services agreement between the City of Marina and
Veronica Tam and Associates Inc. of Pasadena, CA for the preparation of the
Housing Element update and update to the City of Marina’s Affordable Housing
Ordinance (Municipal Code Chapter 17.45);

2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contracts on behalf of the City, subject to final
review and approval by the City Attorney; and

3. Authorize the Finance Director to make the necessary budgetary and accounting entries.

BACKGROUND:

The last Housing Element of the General Plan (4th Update Cycle) was adopted September 1,
2009 by City Council Resolution No. 2009-147 and was certified by the California Department
of Housing and Community Development Department (HCD) on December 16, 2009. This
element represented the period 2008-2014. Housing Elements are required by state law to be
updated and brought current every five to eight years.

On October 23, 2015, City staff circulated a Request for Proposals (RFP) to prepare the Housing
Element Update to six planning and environmental consulting firms with local experience
preparing Housing Elements.

Three firms responded by the November 13, 2015 submission date, although only two responded
with proposals. Both EMC Planning Group and Veronica Tam and Associates Inc. were invited
to interview with the City on December 4, 2015.



ANALYSIS:

The firm Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc. of Pasadena CA, which previously prepared the
City’s Inclusionary Housing and Density Bonus Ordinances (2006), clearly stood out with a
complete and superior proposal. Veronica Tam’s team has a demonstrated record of preparing
40 such housing elements in the 5" Update Cycle and has demonstrated familiarity with the
City’s Housing Element and Municipal Code. Additionally, Ms. Tam has a firm professional
relationship with the State Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and will be a valuable liaison
for the City of Marina. Ms. Tam has partnered with Rincon Consultants, Inc. of Monterey to
prepare the environmental document.

The Veronica Tam and Associates proposal estimates a completion date in August of 2016 if
work is begun in January.

A draft Agreement for Consulting Services has been prepared (“Exhibit A to the Resolution”).
This agreement includes two separate Scopes of Services: one to update the Housing Element
and one to update MMC Chapter 17.45, Affordable Housing.

Appropriation Request
In anticipation of the state-required update, the FY 15/16 Budget was adopted with $37,900 set
aside for consultant services to prepare the 5" Cycle Housing Element Update.

This estimate did not include the preparation of the environmental document required by
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

The consultant Scope of Services cost is estimated to have a cost of $66,526, including
environmental review and enhanced citizen consultation.

Exhibit A to the Consulting Services Contract describes the Scope of Work for the preparation of
the 5" Cycle Housing Element Update.

Zoning Code Update

The Scope of Work for updating Marina Municipal Code (MMC) Chapter 17.45, Affordable
Housing Ordinance, includes updates to reflect changes in state law that address density bonus
provisions, employee housing, farmworker housing, and the definition of transitional housing.
The update will also include any new or revised implementation measures stemming from the
update to the Housing Element.

Exhibit B to the Consulting Services Contract describes the Scope of Work for an update to
Chapter 17.45.

Staff is also requesting a budget adjustment to accomplish these tasks.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Funds for this project, if approved, will be drawn from three sources.

The Planning Services Division, Housing Element Expenditure Account 100.410.5600.615
currently includes $37,900 for preparation of the Housing Element.

Remaining funding for the Housing Element Update would be drawn from the General Plan Fee
Account 100.410.5600.615 in the amount of $29,026. Funds for this account are collected with
each issuance of building permits in the City for purposes of updating the City’s General Plan.
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Funding for the Affordable Housing Ordinance update would be drawn from the available
General Fund balance in the amount of $8,800. The table below summarizes the estimated
project costs for services to be provided by Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc. and the City of

Marina funding source.

Expenditure Account
11-161-65890-8003

Amount
Budgeted for
Housing Element

Appropriation
from General
Plan

Appropriation
Needed from
General Fund

Housing Ordinance Update
$8,800

Preparation Implementation Reserve
FY 15/16 Fee account
City of Marina Approved $37,500
Budget 2015/ 2016
VTA Contract for Housing $37,500 $29,026
Element Update $66,526
VTA Contract for Affordable $8,800

CONCLUSION:

This request is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action.

Respectfully submitted,

Taven M. Kinison Brown

Acting Planning Services Manager

City of Marina

REVIEW AND CONCUR:

Theresa Szymanis, AICP, CTP

Acting Director, Community Development Department

City of Marina

Layne Long,
City Manager
City of Marina
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RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA APPROVING AN
AMENDMENT TO THE FY 15/16 BUDGET APPROPRIATING ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR
PREPARATION OF THE CITY OF MARINA’S 5" CYCLE HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE;

APPROVING A CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF

MARINA AND VERONICA TAM AND ASSOCIATES INC. OF PASADENA CA FOR THE

PREPARATION OF THE HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE AND UPDATE TO THE CITY OF
MARINA’S AFFORDABLE HOUSING ORDINANCE (MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER
17.45); AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACTS ON
BEHALF OF THE CITY, SUBJECT TO FINAL REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE CITY
ATTORNEY; AND AUTHORIZE THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO MAKE THE
NECESSARY BUDGETARY AND ACCOUNTING ENTRIES

WHEREAS, the last Housing Element of the General Plan (4th Update Cycle) was adopted
September
1, 2009 by City Council Resolution No. 2009-147 and was certified by the California
Department of Housing and Community Development Department (HCD) on December 16,
2009, and;

WHEREAS, Housing Elements are required by state law to be updated and brought current
every five to eight years, and;

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2015, City staff circulated a Request for Proposals (RFP) to prepare
the Housing Element Update to six planning and environmental consulting firms with local
experience preparing Housing Elements, and,;

WHEREAS, the firm Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc. of Pasadena CA, which previously
prepared the City’s Inclusionary Housing and Density Bonus Ordinances (2006), clearly stood
out with a complete and superior proposal, and;

WHEREAS, New World System (NWS) Expenditure Account 100.410.5600.615 currently
includes $37,900 for preparation of the Housing Element, and,;

WHEREAS, remaining funding for the Housing Element Update would be drawn from the
General Plan Fee Account 100.410.5600.615 in the amount of $29,026. Funds for this account
are collected with each issuance of building permits in the City for purposes of updating the
City’s General Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Marina does
hereby:

1. Approve an amendment to the FY 15/16 budget appropriating additional funds for
preparation of the City of Marina’s 5™ Cycle Housing Element Update;

2. Approve a consulting services agreement (“Exhibit A”’) between the City of Marina and
Veronica Tam and Associates Inc. of Pasadena, CA for the preparation of the Housing
Element update and update to the City of Marina’s Affordable Housing Ordinance
(Municipal Code Chapter 17.45);
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Resolution No. 2016-
Page Two

3. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contracts on behalf of the City, subject to final
review and approval by the City Attorney; and

4. Authorize the Finance Director to make the necessary budgetary and accounting entries.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Marina at a regular meeting duly
held on the 20" day of January 2016 by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk
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“EXHIBIT A” to Resolution 2016 - _

CITY OF MARINA
AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on January __ 2016, by and
between the City of Marina, a California charter city, hereinafter referred to as the "City,"
and Veronica Tm and Associates Inc., hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor." City
and Contractor are sometimes individually referred to as "party" and collectively as
"parties” in this Agreement.

Recitals

A. City desires to retain Contractor to prepare the City of Marina’s 5" Cycle
Housing Element Update and to update the City of Marina’s Affordable
Housing Ordinance.

B. Contractor represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, experience
and personnel necessary to properly perform the services as set forth herein.

C. City desires to retain Contractor to provide such services.
Terms and Conditions

For of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby. acknowledged and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein,
City and Contractor agree to the following terms and conditions:

1. Scope of Work.

(a) Contractor is hereby hired and retained by the City to work in a cooperative
manner with the City to fully and adequately perform those services set forth in Exhibits
“A” and “B” attached hereto (“Scope of Work”) and by this reference made a part
hereof. With prior written notice to Contractor, City may elect to delete certain tasks of
the Scopes of Work at its sole discretion.

(b) Contractor shall perform all such work with skill and diligence and pursuant to
generally accepted standards of practice in effect at the time of performance. Contractor
shall provide corrective services without charge to the City for work which fails to meet
these standards and which is reported to Contractor in writing within sixty days of
discovery. Should Contractor fail or refuse to perform promptly its obligations under this
Agreement, the City may render or undertake the performance thereof and the
Contractor shall be liable for any expenses thereby incurred.

(c) If services under this Agreement are to be performed by a design
professional, as that term is defined in California Civil Code §2782.8(b)(2), design
professional certifies that all design professional services shall be provided by a person
or persons duly licensed by the State of California to provide the type of services
described in Section 1(a). By delivery of completed work, design professional certifies
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that the work conforms to the requirements of this Agreement and all applicable federal,
state and local laws, and the professional standard of care in California.

(d) Contractor is responsible for making an independent evaluation and judgment
of all relevant conditions affecting performance of the work, including without limitation
site conditions, existing facilities, seismic, geologic, soils, hydrologic, geographic,
climatic conditions, applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations and all other
contingencies or considerations.

(e) City shall cooperate with Contractor and will furnish all information data,
records and reports existing and available to City to enable Contractor to carry out work
outlined in Exhibit “B." and Exhibit “C”. Contractor shall be entitled to reasonably rely on
information, data, records and reports furnished by the City, however, the City makes no
warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of any such information, data, records or
reports available to it and provided to Contractor which were furnished to the City by a
third party. Contractor shall have a duty to bring to the City's attention any deficiency or
error it may discover in any information provided to the Contractor by the City or a third
party.

2, Term of Agreement & Commencement of Work.

(a) Unless otherwise provided, the term of this Agreement shall begin on the date
of its full execution and shall expire on October 31, 2016 unless extended by
amendment or terminated earlier as provided herein. The date of full execution is
defined as the date when all of the following events have occurred:

(i) This Agreement has been approved by the City's Council or by the
board, officer or employee authorized to give such approval; and

(i) The office of the City Attorney has indicated in writing its approval of
this Agreement as to form; and

(i} This Agreement has been signed on behalf of Contractor by the
person or persons authorized to bind the Contractor hereto; and.

(iv) This Agreement has been signed on behalf of the City by the person
designated to so sign by the City's Council or by the officer or employee authorized to
enter into this Contract and is attested to by the Marina City Clerk.

(b) Contractor shall commence work on the Project on or by February 1, 2016.
This Agreement may be extended upon written agreement of both parties. Contractor
may be required to prepare a written schedule for the work to be performed, which
schedule shall be approved by the City and made a part of Exhibit “B” and Exhibit “C”,
and to perform the work in accordance with the approved schedule.

3. Compensation.

(a) City liability for compensation to Contractor under this Agreement shall only
be to the extent of the present appropriation to fund this Agreement. For services to be
provided under this Agreement City shall compensate Contractor in an amount not to
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exceed seventy-five thousand three hundred twenty-six Dollars ($75,326.00) in
accordance with the provisions of this Section.

(b) Invoice(s) in a format and on a schedule acceptable to the City shall be
submitted to and be reviewed and verified by the Project Administrator (see Section
5(a)) and forwarded to the City's Finance Department for payment. City shall notify
Contractor of exceptions or disputed items and their dollar value within fifteen days of
receipt. Payment of the undisputed amount of the invoice will typically be made
approximately thirty days after the invoice is submitted to the Finance Department.

(c) Contractor will maintain clearly identifiable, complete and accurate records
with respect to all costs incurred under this Agreement on an industry recognized
accounting basis. Contractor shall make available to the representative of City all such
books and records related to this Agreement, and the right to examine, copy and audit
the same during regular business hours upon 24-hour’s notice for a period of four years
from the date of final payment under this Agreement.

(d) Contractor shall not receive any compensation for Extra Work without the
prior written authorization of City. As used herein, "Extra Work" means any work that is
determined by the City to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project but
which is not included within the Scope of Work and which the parties did not reasonably
anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement.

(e) Expenses not otherwise addressed in the Scope of Services or the Fee
Schedule incurred by Contractor in performing services under this Agreement shall be
reviewed and approved in advance by the Project Administrator (Section 5(a)), be
charged at cost and reimbursed to Contractor.

(f) There shall be no charge for transportation within Monterey, Santa Cruz and
San Benito Counties required for the performance of the services under this Agreement;
travel to other locations must be approved in writing and in advance by the City, mileage
will be charged at the then current standard rate for business travel as set by the U.S.
Internal Revenue Service for such approved travel.

4. Termination or Suspension.

(a) This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part in writing by either
party in the event of a substantial failure by the other party to fulfill its obligations under
this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party, provided that no termination
may be effected unless the other party is given (1) not less than ten days written notice
of intent to terminate, and (2) provided an opportunity for consuitation with the
terminating party prior to termination.

(b) If termination for default is effected by the City, an equitable adjustment in the
price provided for in this Agreement shall be made, but (1) no amount shall be allowed
for anticipated profit on unperformed services or other work, and (2) any payment due
the Contractor at the time of termination may be adjusted to cover any additional costs to
the City because of the Contractor's default. If after the termination for failure of
Contractor to fulfill its contractual obligations, it is determined that the Contractor had not
failed to fulfill contractual obligations, the termination shall be deemed to have been for
the convenience of the City.
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(c) The City may terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time for its
convenience upon not less than thirty days prior written notice to Contractor. Not later
than the effective date of such termination or suspension, Contractor shall discontinue all
affected work and deliver all work product and other documents, whether completed or
in progress, to the City.

(d) If termination for default is effected by the Contractor or if termination for
convenience is effected by the City, the equitable adjustment shall include a reasonable
profit for services or other work performed. The equitable adjustment for termination
shall provide for payment to the Contractor for services rendered and expenses incurred
prior to the termination, in addition to termination settlement costs reasonably incurred
by Contractor relating to written commitments that were executed prior to the
termination.

5. Project Administrator, Project Manager & Key Personnel.

(a) City designates as its Project Administrator, Taven M. Kinison Brown
who shall have the authority to act for the City under this Agreement. The Project
Administrator or his/her authorized representative shall represent the City in all matters
pertaining to the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement.

(b) Contractor designates Veronica Tam as its Project Manager who shall
coordinate all phases of the Project. The Project manager shall be available to City at all
reasonable times during the Agreement term.

(c) Contractor warrants that it will continuously furnish the necessary personnel
to complete the Project on a timely basis as contemplated by this Agreement.
Contractor, at the sole discretion of City, shall remove from the Project any of its
personnel assigned to the performance of services upon written request of City.
Contractor has represented to City that certain key personnel will perform and
coordinate the work under this Agreement. Should one or more of such personnel
become unavailable, Contractor may substitute other personnel of at least equal
competence upon written approval of the City. In the event that City and Contractor
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, City shall be entitled to terminate
this Agreement for cause.

6. Delegation of Work.

(a) If Contractor utilizes any subcontractors, consuitants, persons, employees or
firms having applicable expertise to assist Contractor in performing the services under
this Agreement, Contractor shall obtain City's prior written approval to such employment.
Contractor's contract with any subcontractor shall contain a provision making the
subcontract subject to all provisions of this Agreement. Contractor will be fully
responsible and liable for the administration, completion, presentation and quality of all
work performed. If such persons are utilized, they shall be charged at cost. City
reserves its right to employ other contractors in connection with this Project.

(b) If the work hereunder is performed by a design professional, design
professional shall be directly involved with performing the work or shall work through his,
her or its employees. The design professional's responsibilities under this Agreement
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shall not be delegated. The design professional shall be responsible to the City for acts,
errors or omissions of his, her or its subcontractors. Negligence of subcontractors or
agents retained by the design professional is conclusively deemed to be the negligence
of the design professional if not adequately corrected by the design professional. Use of
the term subcontractor in any other provision of this Agreement shall not be construed to
imply authorization for a design professional to use subcontractors for performance of
any professional service under this Agreement.

(c) The City is an intended beneficiary of any work performed by a subcontractor
for purposes of establishing a duty of care between the subcontractor and the City.

7. Skill of Employees. Contractor shall ensure that any employees or agents
providing services under this Agreement possess the requisite skill, training and
experience to properly perform such services.

8. Confidential and Proprietary Information. In the course of performing services
under this Agreement Contractor may obtain, receive, and review confidential or
proprietary documents, information or materials that are and shall remain the exclusive
property of the City. Should Contractor undertake the work on behalf of other agencies,
entities, firms or persons relating to the matters described in the Scope of Work, it is
expressly agreed by Contractor that any such confidential or proprietary information or
materials shall not be provided or disclosed in any manner to any of Contractor’s other
clients, or to any other third party, without the City’s prior express written consent.

9. Ownership of Data. Unless otherwise provided for herein, all documents,
material, data, drawings, plans, specifications, computer data files, basis for design
calculations, engineering notes, and reports originated and prepared by Contractor, or
any subcontractor of any tier, under this Agreement shall be and remain the property of
the City for its use in any manner it deems appropriate. Contractor agrees that all
copyrights which arise from creation of the work pursuant to this Agreement shall be
vested in the City and waives and relinquishes all claims to copyright or intellectual
property rights in favor of the City. Contractor shall provide two (2) sets of reproducible
of the above-cited items, except for the computer data files which shall consist of one (1)
set. Contractor shall use all reasonable efforts to ensure that any electronic files
provided to the City will be compatible with the City's computer hardware and software.
Contractor makes no representation as to long-term compatibility, usability or readability
of the format resulting from the use of software application packages, operating systems
or computer hardware differing from those in use by the City at the commencement of
this Agreement. Contractor shall be permitied to maintain copies of all such data for its
files. City acknowledges that its use of the work product is limited to the purposes
contemplated by the Scope of Work and, should City use these products or data in
connection with additions to the work required under this Agreement or for new work
without consultation with and without additional compensation to Contractor, Contractor
makes no representation as to the suitability of the work product for use in or application
to circumstances not contemplated by the Scope of Work and shall have no liability or
responsibility whatsoever in connection with such use which shall be at the City's sole
risk. Any and all liability arising out of changes made by the City to Contractor's
deliverables is waived against Contractor unless City has given Contractor prior written
notice of the changes and has received Contractor's written consent to such changes.
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10. Conflict of Interest.

(a) Contractor covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its firm has
or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner
with the interests of the City or which would in any way hinder Contractor's performance
of services under this Agreement. Contractor further covenants that in the performance
of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an
officer, employee, agent or subcontractor without the express written consent of the City
Manager. Contractor agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance
of any conflicts of interest with the interests of the City in the performance of this
Agreement. Contractor shall represent the interest of the City in any discussion or
negotiation.

(b) City understands and acknowledges that Contractor may be, as of the date of
commencement of services under this Agreement, independently involved in the
performance of non-related services for other governmental agencies and private
parties. Contractor is unaware of any stated position of the City relative to such projects.
Any future position of the City on such projects may result in a conflict of interest for
purposes of this section.

(c) No official or employee of the City who is authorized in such capacity on
behalf of the City to negotiate, make, accept, or approve, or take part in negotiating,
making accepting or approving this contract, shall become directly or indirectly interested
in this contract or in any part thereof. No officer or employee of the City who is
authorized in such capacity and on behalf of the City to exercise any executive,
supervisory, or similar function in connection with the performance of this contract shall
become directly or indirectly interested personally in this contract or any part thereof.

11. Disclosure. Contractor may be subject to the appropriate disclosure
requirements of the California Fair Political Practices Act, as determined by the City
Manager.

12.  Non-Discrimination.

(a) During the performance of this Agreement the Contractor shall comply with
the applicable nondiscrimination and affirmative action provisions of the laws of the
United States of America, the State of California and the City. In performing this
Agreement, Contractor shall not discriminate, harass, or allow harassment, against any
employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), medical condition
(including cancer), age, marital status, denial of family and medical care leave and
denial of pregnancy disability leave. Contractor shall give written notice of its obligations
under this clause to labor organizations with which it has a collective bargaining or other
agreement.

(b) Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of
this Section in all subcontracts.
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13. Indemnification.

(a) Other than in the performance of professional services by a design
professional, which shall be solely as addressed by subsection (b) below, and to the full
extent permitted by law, Contractor shall (1) immediately defend (with independent
counsel reasonably acceptable to the City) and (2) indemnify the City, its Council,
boards, commissions, employees, officials and agents ("Indemnified Parties" or in the
singular "Indemnified Party") from and against all liabilities regardless of nature or type
arising out of or resulting from Contractor’s performance of services under this contract,
or any negligent or wrongful act or omission of the Contractor or Contractor’s officers,
employees, agents or subcontractors. Liabilities subject to the duties to defend and
indemnify include, without limitation, all claims, losses, damages, penalties, fines and
judgments, associated investigation and administrative expenses; defense costs
including but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees; court costs; expert witness fees;
and costs of alternate dispute resolution (“Liabilities”). The Contractor’s obligation to
indemnify applies unless it is adjudicated that its liability was caused by the sole active
negligence or sole willful misconduct of an indemnified party. If it is finally adjudicated
that liability is caused by the comparative active negligence or willful misconduct of an
Indemnified Party, the Contractor's indemnification obligation shall be reduced in
proportion to the established comparative liability of the Indemnified Party.

(b) To the fullest extent permitted by law (including without limitation California
Civil Code Sections 2782.8), when the services to be provided under this Agreement by
Contractor are design professional services to be performed by a design professional, as
that term is defined under said section 2782.8, the design professional shall (1)
immediately defend (with independent counsel reasonably acceptable to the City) and
(2) indemnify the City and any Indemnified Party for all Liabilities regardless of nature or
type that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful
misconduct of design professional, or the acts or omissions of an officer, employee,
agent or subcontractor of the design professional. The design professional’s obligation to
indemnify applies unless it is finally adjudicated that the liability was caused by the sole
active negligence or sole willful misconduct of an Indemnified Party. If it is finally
adjudicated that liability is caused by the comparative active negligence or willful
misconduct of an Indemnified Party, then design professional’s indemnification obligation
shall be reduced in proportion to the established comparative liability of the Indemnified

Party.

(c) All obligations under this section are to be paid by Contractor as incurred by
City. The provisions of this Section are not limited by the provisions of sections relating
to insurance including provisions of any worker's compensation act or similar act.
Contractor expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statues or laws as to City,
its employees and officials. An allegation or determination of comparative active
negligence or willful misconduct by an Indemnified Party does not relieve the Contractor
from its separate and distinct obligation to defend the City. Contractor agrees to obtain
executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth here in this
section from each and every subcontractor, sub tier contractor or any other person or
entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of Contractor in the performance or subject
matter of this Agreement. In the event Contractor fails to obtain such indemnity
obligations from others as required here, Contractor agrees to be fully responsible
according to the terms of this section. Failure of City to monitor compliance with these
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requirements imposes no additional obligations on City and will in no way act as a
waiver of any rights hereunder.

(d) If any action or proceeding is brought against any Indemnified Party by
reason of any of the matters against which the Contractor has agreed to defend the
Indemnified Party, as provided above, Contractor, upon notice from the City, shall
immediately defend any Indemnified Party at Contractor's expense by counsel
reasonably acceptable to the City. An Indemnified Party need not have first paid for any
of the matters to which it is entitled to indemnification in order to be so defended.

(e) The review, acceptance or approval of the Contractor's work or work product
by any Indemnified Party shall not affect, relieve or reduce the Contractor’s
indemnification or defense obligations. This obligation to indemnify and defend City, as
set forth herein, is binding on the successors, assigns, or heirs of Contractor and shall
survive the completion of the services or the termination of this Agreement or this
Section.

14. Insurance.

(a) As a condition precedent to the effectiveness of this Agreement and without
limiting Contractor's indemnification of the City, Contractor agrees to obtain and maintain
in full force and effect at its own expense the insurance policies set forth in Exhibit “D”
“Insurance” attached hereto and made a part hereof. Contractor shall furish the City
with original certificates of insurance, manually autographed in ink by a person
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, along with copies of all required
endorsements. All certificates and endorsements must be received and approved by the
City before any work commences. All insurance policies shall be subject to approval by
the City Attorney and Risk Manager as to form and content. Specifically, such insurance
shall: (1) protect City as an additional insured for commercial general and business auto
liability; (2) provide City at least thirty days written notice of cancellation, material
reduction in coverage or reduction in limits and ten days written notice for non-payment
of premium; and (3) be primary with respect to City's insurance program. Contractor's
insurance is not expected to respond to claims that may arise from the acts or omissions
of the City.

(b) City reserves the right at any time during the term of this Agreement to
change the amounts and types of insurance required herein by giving Contractor ninety
days advance written notice of such change. If such change should result in substantial
additional cost of the Contractor, City agrees to negotiate additional compensation
proportional to the increased benefit to City.

(c) All required insurance must be submitted and approved the City Attorney and
Risk Manager prior to the inception of any operations by Contractor.

(d) The required coverage and limits are subject to availability on the open
market at reasonable cost as determined by the City. Non availability or non affordability
must be documented by a letter from Contractor's insurance broker or agency indicating
a good faith effort to place the required insurance and showing as a minimum the names
of the insurance carriers and the declinations or quotations received from each. Within
the foregoing constraints, Contractor's failure to procure or maintain required insurance
during the entire term of this Agreement shall constitute a material breach of this
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Agreement under which City may immediately suspend or terminate this Agreement or,
at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance to protect City's interests and pay any
and all premium in connection therewith and recover all monies so paid from Contractor.

(e) By signing this Agreement, Contractor hereby certifies that it is aware of the
provisions of Section 3700 ef seq., of the Labor Code which require every employer to
be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in
accordance with the provision of that Code, and that it will comply with such provisions
at all such times as they may apply during the performance of the work pursuant to this
Contract. Unless otherwise agreed, a waiver of subrogation in favor of the City is
required.

15. Independent Contractor. The parties agree that Contractor, its officers,
employees and agents, if any, shall be independent contractors with regard to the
providing of services under this Agreement, and that Contractor's employees or agents
shall not be considered to be employees or agents of the City for any purpose and will
not be entitied to any of the benefits City provides for its employees. City shall make no
deductions for payroll taxes or Social Security from amounts due Contractor for work or
services provided under this Agreement.

16. Claims for Labor and Materials. Contractor shall promptly pay when due all
amounts payable for labor and materials furnished in the performance of this Agreement,
so as to prevent any lien or other claim under any provision of law from arising against
any City property (including reports, documents, and other tangible matter produced by
the Contractor hereunder), against the Contractor's rights to payments hereunder, or
against the City, and shall pay all amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act
with respect to such labor.

17. Discounts. Contractor agrees to offer the City any discount terms that are
offered to its best customers for the goods and services to be provided herein, and apply
such discounts to payment made under this Agreement which meet the discount terms.

18. Cooperation; Further Acts. The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another,
and shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be
necessary, appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement.

19. Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the parties as to proper
interpretation or application of this Agreement, the parties shall first meet and confer in a
good faith attempt to resolve the matter between themselves. If the dispute is not
resolved by meeting and conferring, the matter shall be submitted for formal mediation to
a mediator selected mutually by the parties. The expenses of such mediation shall be
shared equally between the parties. If the dispute is not or cannot be resolved by
mediation, the parties may mutually agree (but only as to those issues of the matter not
resolved by mediation) to submit their dispute to arbitration. Before commencement of
the arbitration, the parties may elect to have the arbitration proceed on an informal basis;
however, if the parties are unable so to agree, then the arbitration shall be conducted in
accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association. The decision of the
arbitrator shall be binding, unless within thirty days after issuance of the arbitrator's
written decision, any party files an action in court. Venue and jurisdiction for any such
action between the parties shall lie in the Superior Court for the County of Monterey.
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20. Compliance With Laws.

(a) Each party's performance hereunder shall comply with all applicable laws of
the United States of America, the State of California and the City including but not limited
to laws regarding health and safety, labor and employment, wage and hours and
licensing laws which affect employees. This Agreement shall be governed by, enforced
and interpreted under the laws of the State of California. Contractor shall comply with
new, amended or revised laws, regulations or procedures that apply to the performance
of this Agreement.

(b) If the Project is a "public work," or prevailing wages are otherwise required,
Contractor shall comply with all provision of California Labor Code section 1720 et seq.,
as applicable, and laws dealing with prevailing wages, apprentices and hours of work.

(c) Contractor represents that it has obtained and presently holds all permits and
licenses necessary for performance hereunder, including a Business License required
by the City's Business License Ordinance. For the term covered by this Agreement, the
Contractor shall maintain or obtain as necessary, such permits and licenses and shall
not allow them to lapse, be revoked or suspended.

21.  Assignment or Transfer. This Agreement or any interest herein may not be
assigned, hypothecated or transferred, either directly or by operation of law, without the
prior written consent of the City. Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any
assignees, hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of
such attempted assignment, hypothecation or transfer.

22, Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall
be in writing and shall be personally delivered, sent by facsimile ("fax") or certified mail,
postage prepaid with return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

To City: City Manager
City of Marina City Hall
211 Hillcrest Avenue
Marina, California 93933
Fax: (831) 384-9148

To Contractor: Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc.
107 Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212
Pasadena, CA 91105
Fax (626) 304-0005

Notice shall be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or transmitted by
facsimile or, if mailed, three days after deposit in the custody of the U.S. Postal Service.
A copy of any notice sent as provided herein shall also be delivered to the Project
Administrator and Project Manager.

23. Amendments, Changes or Modifications. This Agreement is not subject to
amendment, change or modification except by a writing signed by the authorized

representatives of City and Contractor.

10
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24. Force Majeure. Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof, neither Contractor
nor City shall be held responsible or liable for failure to meet their respective obligations
under this Agreement if such failure shall be due to causes beyond Contractor's or the
City's control. Such causes include but are not limited to: strike, fire, flood, civil disorder,
act of God or of the public enemy, act of the federal government, or any unit of state of
local government in either sovereign or contractual capacity, epidemic, quarantine
restriction, or delay in transportation to the extent that they are not caused by the party's
willful or negligent acts or omissions, and to the extent that they are beyond the party's
reasonable control.

25, Attorney's Fees. In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute relating to
this Agreement, or the breach thereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover
from the losing party reasonable expenses, attorney's fees and costs.

26. Successors and Assigns. All of the terms, conditions and provisions of this
Agreement shall apply to and bind the respective heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns of the parties. Nothing in this paragraph is intended to affect
the limitation on assignment

27.  Authority to Enter Agreement. Contractor has all requisite power and authority
to conduct its business and to execute, deliver and perform the Agreement. Each party
warrants that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right
and authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective party.

28. Waiver. A waiver of a default of any term of this Agreement shall not be
construed as a waiver of any succeeding default or as a waiver of the provision itself. A
party's performance after the other party's default shall not be construed as a waiver of
that default.

29. Severability. Should any portion of this Agreement be determined to be void or
unenforceable, such shall be severed from the whole and the Agreement will continue as

modified.

30. Construction, References, Captions. Since the parties or their agents have
participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement
shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against
any party. Any term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed
calendar days and not work days. The captions of the various sections are for
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment or describe
the scope, content or intent of this Agreement.

31. Advice of Counsel. The parties agree that they are aware that they have the
right to be advised by counsel with respect to the negotiations, terms and conditions of
this Agreement, and that the decision of whether or not to seek the advice of counsel
with respect to this Agreement is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each of the
parties hereto. This Agreement shall not be construed in favor or against either party by
reason of the extent to which each party participated in the drafting of this Agreement.

32. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which
shall constitute an original.

11
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33. Time. Time is of the essence in this contract.

34, Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties
with respect to the matters as set forth in this Agreement, and no other agreement,
statement or promise made by or to any party or by or to any employee, officer or agent
of any party, which is not contained in this Agreement shall be binding or valid.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Contractor and the City by their duly authorized
representatives, have executed this Agreement, on the date first set forth above, at
Marina, California.

CITY OF MARINA CONTRACTOR
By: By:

Name: Name:

Its: Its:

Date: Date:

Attest: (Pursuant to Reso: 2016 - )

By:

City Clerk

Approved as to form:

By:

City Attorney

12
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Exhibit A
- SCOPE OF WORK -

For updating the City of Marina’s
General Plan 5" Cycle Housing Element
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CITY OF MARINA
HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE

Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc.
107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212
Pasadena, CA 91105

(626) 304-0440

In
Association with

Rincon Consultants, Inc.

437 Figueroa Street, Suite 203
Monterey, CA 93940.

(831) 333-0310
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VERONICA TAM AND ASSOCIATES

November 8, 2015

Taven M. Kinison Brown, Acting Planning Services Manager
City of Marina — Planning Services Division

Community Development Department

211 Hillcrest Avenue, Marina, California 93933

Subject: Proposal for the City of Marina Housing Element Update
Dear Mr. Brown:

Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc. (VTA) is pleased to submit this proposal to prepare the Housing Element
Update for the City of Marina.

Established in 2005, VTA is a California cotporation based in Pasadena. We specialize in providing housing
related services to local jurisdictions. VTA has substantial experience working on Housing Elements and
other housing-related studies. Our staff has previously been involved in more than 100 Housing Element
updates throughout the State during past update cycles. For the fifth update cycle pursuant to SB 375, VTA
has already completed more than 40 Housing Elements in jurisdictions in several regions - San Diego
Association of Governments (SANDAG), Southemn California Association of Governments (SCAG),
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), and Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments
(AMBAG).

Given our substantial Housing Element expetience, we have an understanding of the State Department of
‘Housing and Community Development’s (HCD) cutrent policy focus, review criteria, and interpretation of
recent changes to State law. We are able to advise our clients of specific comments to anticipate from HCD
and to strategize a response that would be appropriate to the community. We work closely with HCD staff
to resolve difficult issues and to coordinate the review schedule. We maintain an excellent track record of
achieving certification status on the Housing Elements we prepared.

We look forward to discussing our proposal with the City. Please contact me if you have questions or need
additional information. I can be reached at (626) 304-0440 extension 1, ot veronica.tam@vtaplanning.com.

107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212 P (626) 304-0440
Pasadena, CA 91105 F (626) 304-0005
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A. Introduction

Project Team

For the Marina Housing Element Update, Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc. (VTA) will serve as lead
consultant with Rincon Consultants, Inc. providing support to prepare the environmental clearance
documents. Person authorized to negotiate the contract on behalf of VTA is:

Veronica Tam, AICP, Principal
107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212
Pasadena, CA 91105

(626) 304-0440 x 1 | veronica.tam@vtaplanning.com
Approach

The fifth cycle Housing Element update for jurisdictions within AMBAG region must be adopted within 120
days of the statutory deadline of December 15, 2015, as established by SB 375. Missing this adoption
deadline (no later than April 13, 2016) would place the City on a four-year update cycle. We understand the
City would not be able to initiate a contract until January 2016. Based on our discussions, we further
understand that the City has elected to take the time necessary to prepare an adequate Housing Element and
accept the four-year Housing Element update requirement.

B. Qualifications

Capabilities and Experience

Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc. (VTA) is a California cotporation with its office in Pasadena, California.
VTA has been providing housing and community development consulting to local jurisdictions throughout
California since 2005. Qur services include:

Housing Element updates

Zoning revisions for housing-related issues

HUD Consolidated Plan, fair housing studies, and related reports
HUD Grants administration and technical assistance
Environmental clearance for housing-related plans and projects

Our clients range from small communities (such as the cities of Del Mar and Avalon) to large metropolitan
areas (such as the City and County of Los Angeles). Following is a sample list of Housing Element updates
we have prepared.

Housing Elements

®  Alhambra ®  Fresno County B Porterville

B Bell Gardens B Glendora ®  Rancho Santa Margarita

®  Buena Patk ®  Hawthorne ® Redondo Beach

®  Burbank ¥ Hespena B Salinas

8 Camarillo B Hercules ®  San Bernardino

®  Chino ®  TJrvine B San Marcos
107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212 P (626) 304-0440
Pasadena, CA 91105 F (626) 304-0005
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B Corona B La Canada Flintridge ®  San Marino

®  Coronado B Lake Forest ®  Santa Clara

B Costa Mesa ®  La Mesa B Santee

®  Cupertino ®  Lawndale B Seaside

®  Del Mar ®  Lomita B  Simi Valley

®  Dublin B Long Beach " South Gate

B ElCajon ®  Los Angeles County ®  Tracy

® El Centro B Modesto M Vista

®  El Segundo ®  Monterey County " Walnut

®  Escondido " Pinole ®  West Hollywood
Organization Chart

City of Marina
City Council
Planning Conunission

Community
Development/Planning Services

VTA
Vereonica Tam
Project Manager

Housing Element
VTA
jessica Suimanjaya

CEQA Clearance
Rincon
Richard Paulton

Mayra Navarro
Megan Jones

Bill Trimble

Key Personnel

Veronica Tam, AICP, Principal. Ms. Tam will oversee preparation of the Marina Housing Element.
Veronica Tam has expertise in the areas of housing policy development and community development
planning. She has 20 years of experience preparing a range of housing and community development plans
and studies. Specifically, she has prepared more than 100 Housing Elements for communities throughout
California. Currently, she is completing the Housing Element updates for the City of Salinas and Monterey
County; both have already received conditional approval from HCD and have been scheduled for adoption.
She is also completing a multi-jurisdictional Housing Element in Fresno County, also scheduled for adoption
in January/February 2016.

Jessica Suimanjaya, AICP, Senior Planner. Ms. Suimanjaya has assisted with Housing Element updates
for numerous jurisdictions, including Buena Park, Camarillo, Costa Mesa, Rancho Santa Margarita, Simi
Valley, and Monterey County, among others. Ms. Suimanjaya has been involved in all aspects of the Housing

107 8. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212 P (626) 304-0440
Pasadena, CA 91105 I (626) 304-0005
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Element update and has served as project manager for several Housing Element updates. Currently, she is
completing the Housing Element updates for cities of San Clemente and Tracy.

Mayra Navarro. Ms. Navarro will assist in the preparation of the Housing Element. Since joining VTA in
October 2014, Ms. Navarro has participated in multipie housing studies, including Fair Housing studies for
the cities of Salinas and San Bernardino, and the San Diego tregion, as well as the Housing Element for
Salinas. Currently, she is completing the Fair Housing Assessment for the cities of Glendora and Pomona.

Bill Trimble, Senior Planner. Mr. Trimble has experience as a public sector planner for more than 20
years. His work has focused on community-based planning. In the City of Pasadena, he was responsible for
updates of the City’s Housing and Land Use Elements, as well as for various major development projects and
housing-related zoning code amendments. Since joining VTA in 2012, Mr. Trimble has assisted in several
Housing Element updates, including for the City of La Canada Flintridge and Gonzales. Currently, he is
completing the environmental clearance document for the Tracy Housing Element update.

Subconsultant - Rincon Consultants, Inc.

Rincon Consultants, Inc. is a multi-disciplinary environmental sciences, planning, and engineering consulting
firm with more than 85 professionals in offices located in eight California offices: Monterey, San Luis
Obispo, Ventura, Riverside, Carlsbad, Oakland, Sacramento, and Fresno. Rincon has been incotporated since
1994 and holds the tax identification number of 77-0390093. Rincon provides quality professional services to
both public and private sector clients. Out skilled professionals have many years of experience in urban, land
use, and environmental planning; regulatory compliance; biological resource evaluation and habitat
enhancement; soil evaluation and remediation, and related studies; and problem-solving services in geology,
hydrology, and environmental hazards evaluation.

For the Marina Housing Element update, Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) will prepare the environmental
clearance documents, from its Monterey office located at: 437 Figueroa Street, Suite 203, Monterey, CA
93940, (831) 333-0310.

Stephen Svete. Mr. Svete is a founding Principal of Rincon Consultants, and served as the firm’s President
from 2000 to 2011. He is currently a Vice President and the Ditector of the Planning Services group. In this
capacity, he oversees a range of urban planning and land use studies, as well as community involvement and
environmental analysis work. He has directed successful environmental and planning projects ranging from
focused central city corridor revitalization studies, to citywide general plans, to annexation studies in rural
areas throughout California. Mr. Svete has developed an expertise in the area of active transportation, trails,
and open space and recreation systems. He is a noted planning commentator, and for 11 years served as
Contributing Editor to California Planning & Development Report.

Megan Jones. As a Senior Planner in Rincon’s Environmental Sciences and Planning Group in Monterey,
Ms. Jones works on planning and environmental projects in the California Central Coast region. Ms. Jones
also manages operation of Rincon’s Montetey Office. Ms. Jones is responsible for general plan and specific
plan preparation and environmental analysis and review, particularly California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) compliance documentation. Ms. Jones has
education and experence in public policy, environmental studies, geography, and environmental economics
and policy.

107 8. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212 P (626) 304-0440
Pasadena, CA 91105 F (626) 304-0005
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C. Scope of Work

Task1: Evaluation of Current Housing Element

The Housing Element must include an evaluation of the effectiveness and appropriateness of the housing
programs contained in the City’s current adopted Housing Element. This review must take into
consideration the market conditions and funding environment, with the elimination of redevelopment and
reduced funding available at the State and Federal levels.

Task 2: Demographic and Housing Needs Assessment

The current Marina Housing Element was adopted on September 1, 2009. Most housing and demographic
data contained in the Flement were based on the 2000 Census. We will prepare a complete housing
assessment and needs analysis consistent with State Housing Element law and HCD’s new Completeness
Review Checklist, using 2010 Census, American Community Sutveys (ACS), and other current data as
available. The Housing Needs Assessment will contain the following topics to satisfy Government Code
Section 65583(a) and meet SB 375 requirements.

Task 3: Housing Constraints

We will identify potential governmental and non-governmental constraints to housing production, including
environmental and infrastructural constraints. This analysis must contain a review of factors that may
potentially constrain the development, improvement, and preservation of housing in Marina. Factors to be
reviewed include market, governmental, environmental, and infrastructural constraints.

As no significant changes to the Housing Element law have been passed since adoption of the 2009-2014
Housing Element, we anticipate update to this section of the Housing Element would be limited. However,
based on our recent experience, HCD places a strong emphasis on farmworker housing and employee
housing requirements pursuant to the State Employee Housing Act. The Marina Housing Element will be
revised to describe how the City complies with the Employee Housing Act. In addition, due to the statewide
drought conditions, another recent focus of HCD i1s the compliance with SB 1087 — priotity allocation of
water and sewer services for affordable housing projects.

Task4: Housing Resources and Opportunities
The Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) by AMBAG identifies a production goal of 1,308 units for

the City of Marina, with the following income distribution: 315 vety low income units; 205 low income units;
238 moderate income units; and 550 above moderate income units. The RHNA covers a planning petiod
from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2023. Housing units permitted or approved on or after January
1, 2014 can be credited toward the City’s RHNA. The Resources and Sites analysis will focus on site
suitability for housing to meet the RHNA, drawing from sites identified in the 2009-2014 Housing Element.
We will work with staff to identify new sites/opportunities as necessary to meet the RHNA.

Task 5: Housing Plan
Based upon the analyses and research conducted in Tasks 1 through 4, we will update the 2009-2014 Housing

Element for Marina.- The updated Housing Element will include all required components under State law,
along with relevant appendices. For each program included in the Housing Element, we will establish the
timeframe for implementation, specific objectives, funding sources, and responsible agencies. The programs
will satisfy requirements of Government Code Sections 65583(b) and (c).

Task 6: _ Public Review Draft Housing Element

We will prepare an Administrative Draft Housing Element for review by staff. The Administrative Draft will
be revised to address comments from staff to formulate the Screen Check Draft and Public Review Draft
Housing Element.

107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212 P (626) 304-0440
Pasadena, CA 91105 F (626) 304-0005
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Deliverables:
B Administrative Draft (electronic copy)
®  Public Review Draft (electronic copy)
®  HCD Review Draft (one hard copy for HCD)

Task 7: _ Public Participation (up to 3 meeti

Pursuant to State law, the City must conduct public outreach during the development of the Housing
Element. Our scope and budget includes up to three public meetings to discuss the Housing Element prior
to submittal to HCD. We anticipate the following meetings:

®  Planning Commission Study Session to kick off the Housing Element update process. In this
meeting, we would also invite the public, developers, service providers and other community
stakeholders to provide input on needs and program suggestions. We will work with staff to develop
an outreach list. Special invitations would be sent to service providers, community stakeholders, and
other relevant parties.

®  Planning Commission Public Hearing to review the Draft Housing Element.

8 (City Council Public Hearing to review the Draft Housing Element.

We will revise the Draft Housing Element to reflect Planning Commission and City Council comments prior
to sending the Element for HCD review.

Task 8: HCD Review

Typically, HCD has 60 days to review the draft Housing Element. Given the tight schedule, we will request
an expedited review (probably 30 days). We will serve as the City’s representative and liaison to HCD during
the review. We will be the primary contact for HCD and communicate with HCD staff as necessary to
answer any questions about the document and resolve any issues.

Deliverables:
%  Completeness Review Checklist
®  Implementation Review

Task 9: _Environmental Clearance

Task 9.1: Administrative Draft IS-ND - Rincon will prepare an internal review (Administrative Draft) IS-
ND. The Administrative Draft IS will address all of the items on the environmental checklist. Where they are
readily available, existing technical studies, including the Housing Element and associated background
reports, will be used. We assume that the analysis will be programmatic in nature and that the impacts of
specific housing projects that may be facilitated by the Housing Element would be addressed as part of future
site-specific environmental reviews. No special technical studies are proposed to be conducted at this time.
As appropriate, the analysis will point to existing General Plan policies and other standard procedures that
address potential environmental impacts. If necessary, programmatic mitigation will be developed to address
identified significant impacts. Rincon will submit an electronic copy of the Administrative Draft IS-ND in
PDF and Word format.

Task 9.2: Public Review Draft IS-ND - Rincon will respond to City comments on the Administrative
Draft IS-ND and prepare the Public Review Draft IS-ND. If necessary, we will provide a single screencheck
version of the Public Review Draft IS-ND prior to publication. Rincon will be responsible for mailing of the
IS-ND to the Clearinghouse and responsible agencies as well as all noticing required under CEQA. Rincon
will complete the required State Clearinghouse Notice of Completion (NOC) form and preparing a Notice of
Intent (NOI) to adopt an ND.

107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212 P (626) 304-0440
Pasadena, CA 91105 F (626) 304-0005
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Task 9.3: Final IS-ND - Upon receipt of public comments on the Draft IS-ND, Rincon will prepare draft
responses to comments for City review (although responding to comments is not technically required for
NDs, normal practice is to prepare written responses). If mitigation measures are identified, the
Administrative Final will include a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP). We assume that
printing copies of a Final IS-ND will not be necessary. We assume that the City will be responsible for filing a
Notice of Determination (NOD) and paying any applicable filing fees. Rincon will assist in filling out the
NOD form.

Task 9.4: Public Hearing - Rincon’s project manager will attend one public heating on the project. If
desired, we will make a presentation to the Planning Commission and/or City Council summarizing the
environmental review process and IS-ND conclusions.

Task 10: _Final Housing Element and Adoption
We will attend the public hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council for the adoption of the

Housing Element.

Public Meetings (2):
®  One (1) Planning Commission Public Hearing and one (1) City Council Public Hearing

Deliverables:
®  Final Adopted Housing Element (electronic copy and one hard copy for HCD)

D. Project Cost

The following is our estimate for the costs involved to complete the Marina Housing Element on an
accelerated schedule.

VTA Rincon
Suimanjayal  Navarrof
Tam Trimble GIS Principal  Sr. Prof. Prof. GIS Clerical
Housing Elemant Update $ 150 $ 110 § M| 195 $ 145 5 95 % 90 § 65| Total
Task 1:  Evaluation of Current Housing Element 2 8 16 $ 262
Task2:  Demographic and Housing Needs Assessment 12 20 § 9400
Task3:  Housing Constraints 12 40 $ 6200
Task4:  Housing Resources and Opporiunities 8 40 20 $ 7400
Task5:  Housing Plan 8 16 $ 2960
Task6:  Public Review Draft 12 20 12 $ 5080
Task7:  Public Parficipation (up b 3 meefings) 18 18 8 $ 5400
Task8: HCD Review 20 32 $ 652
Task9:  Enviromental Clearance

9.1: Adminstafive Drak IS-ND 3 12 26 4 2[$ 5285

9.2: Public Review DraftIS-ND 1 10 8 1% 2470

9.3: Final IS-ND

Responses o Comments 2 9 $ 169

MMRP (if required) 1 3 $ 480

9.4: Public Hearing (1) 6 $ 870
Miscellaneous (Printing, Travel, Postage) $ 526

Task 10: Adoption Hearings (2) 12 4 $ 220
ProjectManagement 20 2 § 119 4180

Subiofal: 124 198 116 9 42 37 4 4% 63326

Miscellaneous (Printing, Travel, Postage) | $ 3200

Total 124 198 16 9 42 37 4 4s 665%

Note: California Deparimentof Fish and Wildlife Fee is not included. Ifrequired, an additional $2,260 would be added to the budget

107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212 P (626) 304-0440
Pasadena, CA 91105 F (626) 304-0005
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E. Project Schedule

Below is a tentative schedule. We will refine the schedule with staff at project kick off.

Project Initiation January 2016
Housing Element Update February — April 2016
Planning Commission Study Session March 2016

Planning Commission Review of Draft Housing Element May 2016

City Council Review of Draft Housing Element June 2016

Environmental Clearance

May - July 2016

HCD Review (Expedited 30-Day Review)

June —July 2016

Planning Commission Hearing

August 2016

Council Adoption Hearing

August 2016

F. References

Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc.

1. 2015-2023 Salinas Housing Element
Jennifer Coille, Project Manager

Special Projects Division, Department of Community and Economic Development

(831) 758-7493 | Jennifer.coile@ci salinas.ca.us

VTA Staff: Veronica Tam, Jessica Suimanjaya, Bill Trimble

2. 2015-2023 Monterey County Housing Element

Jane Royer Barr, Program Manager, Economic Development

(831) 755-5389 | BarrJ@co.monterey.ca.us

VTA Staff: Veronica Tam, Jessica Suimanjaya, Mayra Navarro

3. 2013-2021 Encinitas Housing Element

Manjeet Ranu, Acting Director of Planning and Building

(760) 633-2712 | mranu@encinitas.ca.gov
VTA Staff: Veronica Tam

Rincon Consultants, Inc.

1. 2015-2023 Montetey County Housing Element IS-ND

Jacqueline Onciano, County of Monterey

(831) 755-5193 | oncianoj@co.monterey.ca.us
Rincon Staff: Megan Jones

2. Dunes Townhomes IS-MND, Local Coastal Plan contract planning, Pedestrian and Bicycle

Master Plan

Theresa Szymanis, City of Marina

(831) 884-1289 | tszymanis@ci.marina.ca.us
Rincon Staff: Megan Jones, Stephen Svete

107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212
Pasadena, CA 91105

P (626) 304-0440
F (626) 304-0005
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3. Monterey Bay Sanctuary Scenic Trail Network EIR
Cory Caletti, Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission
(831) 460-3201 | ccaletti@sccrtc.otg
Rincon Staff: Megan Jones, Stephen Svete

G. Conflict of Interest

VTA does not have any financial, business or other relationships with the City that may have an impact on
the outcome of this contract or any resulting project.

H. Insurance

VTA maintains the following insurance coverage:

"  General Liability: $1,000,000 per claim / $2,000,000 aggregate

® Professional Liability: $1,000,000 per claim / $2,000,000 aggregate

®  Automobile Liability: §1,000,000

®  Worker Compensation: $1,000,000, as required by law
107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212 P (626) 304-0440
Pasadena, CA 91105 F (626) 304-0005
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EDUCATION

MA, Urban Planning, University of
California, Los Angeles

BES, Urban and Regional Planning
(Economics Minor), University of
Waterioo, Canada

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
American Institute of Certified Planners

American Planning Association

AWARDS

2014 APACA

Award of Merit — Hard Won Victories:
2013-2021 El Cajon Housing Element

2014 San Diego Section, APACA
Comprehensive Planning, Small
Jurisdiction: 2013-2021 El Cajon
Housing Element

2009 APACA

Award of Merit - Comprehensive
Planning, Large Jurisdiction: 2008-2014
Los Angeles County Housing Element

2009 Los Angeles Section, APACA
Comprehensive Planning, Large
Jurisdiction: 2008-2014 Los Angeles
County Housing Element

2002 Northern Section, APACA
Focused Issues: Contra Costa County
Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing

2001 Northern Section, APACA
Advocacy Planning: East Palo Alto
Housing Element

2000 APACA

Qutstanding Planning: El Cajon
Integrated Housing Element and
Consolidated Plan

2000 San Diego Section, APACA
Outstanding Planning: El Cajon
Integrated Housing Element and
Consolidated Plan

VERONICA TAM, AICP
PRINCIPAL

RESUME

Ms. Tam has expertise in the areas of housing policy
development and community development planning. She has
over 20 years of experience preparing a range of housing and
community development plans and studies for jurisdictions

throughout California.
RELATED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Housing Elements

Alhambra Escondido

Arcadia Glendora

Avalon Gonzales

Bell Gardens Hawthorne

Buena Park Hayward

Burbank Hercules

Camarillo Hesperia

Carlsbad Imperial Beach
Chino Irvine

Corona La Canada Flintridge
Coronado Lake Forest

Costa Mesa La Mesa

Cupertino Lawndale

Del Mar Lomita

Dublin Modesto

El Cajon Pinole

El Centro Rancho Santa Margarita
El Segundo Redondo Beach
Consolidated Plans

Alhambra La Mesa

Apple Valley/Victorville  Long Beach
Carlsbad Salinas

El Cajon San Bernardino
Glendora Santee

Fair Housing Studies
Apple Valley/Victorville  Los Angeles

Chino Palm Springs
Glendale Pasadena
Lake Forest Perris

Long Beach Salinas

Special Studies

Salinas

San Bernardino
San Fernando

San Marcos

San Marino

San Ramon

Santa Clara
Santee

South Gate
Seaside

Simi Valley

Tracy

Vista

Walnut

West Hollywood
Los Angeles County
Monterey County
San Diego County

Santa Clarita
Simi Valley
Monterey County
Orange County
Ventura County

San Bernardino
Santa Clarita
Monterey County
San Diego County
Ventura County

= Regional Housing Needs Allocation Assistance for the cities of Arcadia,

Lawndale, and Indian Wells
=  Marina Affordable Housing Ordinance

®  Zoning revisions to comply with SB2, AB 2634, and SB 520 for the cities of

Port Hueneme, South Gate, and San Fernando

Veronica Tam and Associates

107 8. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212, Pasadena, CA 91105

P (626) 304-0440 F (626) 304-0005
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EDUCATION
MA Urban Planning, University of
California, Los Angeles

BA Communication Studies,
University of California, Los Angeles

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS
American Institute of Certified Planners
American Planning Association, Member

AWARDS

2014 APACA

Award of Merit — Hard Won Victories:
2013-2021 El Cajon Housing Element

2014 San Diego Section, APACA
Comprehensive Planning, Small
Jurisdiction: 2013-2021 El Cajon Housing
Element

SKILLS

Geographic Information Systems
AutoCAD

Photoshop

Microsoft Office

Windows and MAC

JESSICA SUIMANJAYA, AICP
SENIOR PLANNER

RESUME

Ms. Suimanjaya is dedicated to working in the field of
affordable housing planning. She graduated with a Masters in
Utrban Planning from the University of California, Los Angeles.
Her coursework focused on physical planning, community
development and housing. Since joining VTA in 2008, she has
participated in and managed numerous housing projects.

RELATED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Heousing Elements

Alhambra Escondido
Avalon Glendora
Buena Park Hayward
Camarillo Hesperia
Coronado Irvine

Del Mar La Mesa
Dublin Pinole

El Segundo

Fair Housing Studies

Apple Valley/Victorville  Los Angeles

Chino Palm Springs
Glendale Pasadena
Lake Forest Perris

Long Beach Salinas

Consolidated Plans and Annual Reports

Alhambra La Mesa

Apple Valley/Victorville  Long Beach
Carlsbad Salinas

El Cajon San Bernardino
Glendora Santee

Veronica Tam and Associates

Rancho Santa Margarita

Redondo Beach

San Fernando
Simi Valley
South Gate
Tracy

Vista

Walnut

West Hollywood

San Bernardino
Santa Clarita
Monterey County
San Diego County
Ventura County

Santa Clarita
Simi Valley
Monterey County
Orange County
Ventura County

107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212, Pasadena, CA 91105

P (626) 304-0440

F (626) 304-0005
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EDUCATION
Master in Urban and Regional Planning,
University of California Los Angeles

BA Architecture,
University of California, Berkeley

SKILLS

Adobe Creative Suite
Geographic Information Systems
AutoCAD

AWARDS

2014 APA California

Academic Award of Excellence -
Cultivate Los Angeles

2014 APA Los Angeles
Academic Award of Excellence -
Cultivate Los Angeles

RESUME

MAYRA NAVARRO
PLANNER

Ms. Navarro joined VTA in 2014. She holds a Masters degree in
Urban and Regional Planning from the University of California,
Los Angeles and an undergraduate background in Architecture
from the University of California, Berkeley.

VERONICA TAM AND ASSOCIATES
As a planner, Ms. Navarro has contributed to the preparation of
the following reports:

Fair Housing Studies

Pomona San Diego County
Salinas Ventura County
San Bernardino

Consolidated Plans and Annual Reports
Carlsbad Salinas Orange County
LaMesa San Bernardino Ventura County

PRIOR EXPERIENCE

While working with the Housing Authority of the City of Los
Angeles (HACLA), Ms. Navarro worked closely on the Jordan
Downs Redevelopment. She contributed in developing and
executing programs within the social component of the
redevelopment, engaging the community through ongoing
outreach, and providing research on best practices in similar
low-income housing redevelopments.

While working in the Design and Construction services
department, she also contributed to agency-wide ADA
upgrades at HACLA project sites, provided project
management services during the renovation of the HACLA
headquarters, and provided design services for the
development of low-income, senior housing.

Veronica Tam and Associates
107 8. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212, Pasadena, CA 91105
P (626) 304-0440 F (626) 304-0005
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RESUME

\ TN . BILL TRIMBLE
m ;
; SENIOR PLANNER

EDUCATION o Bill Trimble’s professicnal background includes more than 22
BA, Humanities, University of California, ) B
Berkeley years of local government planning for land use and housing.
His work has focused on community-based planning, with an
PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS emphasis on public participation. In the City of Pasadena, he
American Planning Association ible f dat £ the Ci H 3 dLand U
Los Angeles Region Planning History was responsible for updates of the City’s Housing and Land Use
Group Elements, as well as for various major development projects and

housing-related zoning code amendments. Representing both
his own and other jurisdictions, he analyzed land use and
housing need projections with regional and sub-regional
technical advisory committees.

Veronica Tam & Associates

As a Senior Planner with VTA, Mr. Trimble assists in the
preparation of local Housing Elements:

Buena Park Glendora Long Beach
Camarillo Gonzales Pinole
Chino Hercules South Gate

Fresno County  La Canada Flintridge Rancho Santa Margarita

Prior Experience

Mr. Trimble served with the City of Pasadena planning staff
from 1990 to 2012, including seven years as a senior planner. He
managed the two most recent updates of the City’s Housing
Element and the 2004 update of the Land Use Element. Other
housing-related activities included zoning code amendments,
demography, and projections. His responsibilities ranged in
scale from a fence on a single-family property to the Southern
California region as a whole.

Long participation in sub-regional and regional organizations,
including the SCAG Plans and Programs Technical Advisory
Committee, encouraged appreciation of the relationships
between local and regional priorities.

Before becoming a local government planner, Mr. Trimble
worked 16 years with college students and faculty in campus
ministry at universities in Los Angeles, New Haven, and
Albuquerque.

Veronica Tam and Associates
107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212, Pasadena, CA 91105
P (626) 304-0440 F (626) 304-0005
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Exhibit B
- SCOPE OF WORK -

For updating the Marina Municipal Code
(MCC) Chapter 17.54, Affordable Housing
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VERONICA TAM AND ASSOCIATES

Jamuary 11, 2016

Taven M. Kinison Brown, Acting Planning Services Manager
City of Marina — Planning Services Division

Community Development Department

211 Hillcrest Avenue, Marina, California 93933

Subject: Proposal for Supplemental Scope — Zoning Code Amendments
Dear Mr. Brown:

Veronica Tam and Associates, Inc. (VTA) is pleased to provide this proposal to assist the City with housing-
related zoning code amendments as a supplemental scope to the City’s Housing Element Update. We
understand that during the course of the Housing Element update, the City or the State Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD) may determine that certain zoning code amendments may be
necessary or appropriate in order to comply with state law and/or enhance housing opportunities in the
community.

Based on our cursory review of the City’s Zoning Code, the following amendments are necessary:

® Density Bonus provisions regarding replacement housing and extended length of affordability
control pursuant to AB 2222,

* Employee housing, whete housing for six or fewer employees is considered as a single-family
residential use pursuant to the Employee Housing Act.

e Farmworker housing, where housing for farm labor comprising of 12 units or 36 beds is considered
an agricultural use pursuant to the Employee Housing Act.

¢ Definition of transitional housing. The definition contains in the City’s Zoning Code may be too
narrowly defined, not consistent with the definition in the Government Code.

In addition, we understand the City may also revisit its inclusionary housing requirements or other housing-
related provisions in the Zoning Code. As the precise scope of the amendments cannot be determined at this
time, we propose a supplemental budget for works to be completed on a time-and-materials basis. We
estimate the following budget breakdowns:

e Code amendments — 40 hours @ $150/hour
e Planning Commission and City Council meetings (2) — 12 hours @ $150/hour
¢ Travel Expenses - §1,000

Total not-to-exceed amount is estimated at $8,800. However, this budget assumes that City will be
preparing/processing the environmental clearance (most likely 2 CEQA exemption would be adequate) for
the code amendments.

We look forward to working with the City. Please contact me if you have questions or need additional

informatipn. I can be reached at (626) 304-0440 extension 1, or veronica.tam@vtaplanning.com.
Respectfylly,

Veétonica Tam, AICP )

Principal
107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212 P (626) 304-0440
Pasadena, CA 91105 F (626) 304-0005
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Exhibit C - Insurance

Contractor agrees to provide insurance in accordance with the requirements set forth
herein. If Contractor uses existing coverage to comply with these requirements and that
coverage does not meet the requirements set forth herein, Contractor agrees to amend,
supplement or endorse the existing coverage to do so. Contractor shaii furnish the City
with original certificates of insurance, manually autographed in ink by a person
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and
endorsements must be received and approved by the City before any work commences.
The City reserves its right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance
policies at any time. The following coverage will be provided by Contractor and
maintained on behalf of the City and in accordance with the requirements set forth
herein.

Commercial General Liability (primary). Commercial general liability insurance
covering Contractor's operations (and products where applicable) is required whenever
the City is at risk of third party claims which may arise out of Contractor's work or
presence on City premises. Contractual liability coverage is a required inclusion in this
insurance.

General liability insurance coverage shall be at least as broad as ISO form CG 00 01 10
01 and approved in advance by the City Attorney and Risk Manager. Total limits shall
be no less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit per occurrence for
general liability, bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. If commercial
general liability insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Project or the general aggregate
limit shall be two million dollars ($2,000,000). Contractor must give written notice to the
City of any pending claim, action or lawsuit which has or may diminish the aggregate. If
any such claim or lawsuit exists, Contractor shall be required, prior to commencing work
under this Agreement, to restore the impaired aggregate or prove it has replacement
insurance protection to the satisfaction of the City Attorney and Risk Manager.

City, its Council, boards and commissions, officers, employees, agents and volunteers
shall be added as additional insured, and the policy shall be endorsed with a form
equivalent to 1ISO form CG 20 10 10 93, that contains the provisions required by this
contract. Coverage shall apply on a primary, non-contributing basis in relation to any
other insurance or self-insurance, primary or excess, available to the City or any agent of
City. Coverage is not expected to respond to the claims which may arise from the acts
or omissions of the City. Coverage shall not be limited to the vicarious liability or
supervisory role of any additional insured. Coverage shall contain no contractors'
limitation endorsement. There shall be no endorsement or modification limiting the
scope of coverage for liability arising from pollution, explosion, collapse, underground
property damage or employment-related practices.
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Umbrella Liability Insurance. Umbrella liability insurance (over primary) shall apply to
bodily injury/property damage, personal injury/advertising injury, at a minimum, and shall
include a “drop down” provision providing primary coverage above a maximum
$25,000.00 self-insured retention for liability not covered by primary policies but covered
by the umbrella policy. Coverage shall be following form to any underlying coverage.

Coverage shall be provided on a “pay on behalf’ basis, with defense costs payable in
addition to policy limits. There shall be no cross liability exclusion and no contractor's
limitation endorsement. Policies limits shall be not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000) per occurrence and in the aggregate, above any limits required in the
underlying policies shall have starting and ending dates concurrent with the underlying
coverage.

Business Auto. Automobile liability insurance is required where vehicles are used in
performing the work under this Agreement or where vehicles are driven off-road on City
premises, it is not required for simple commuting unless City is paying mileage.
However, compliance with California law requiring auto liability insurance is a contractual
requirement.

If automobile insurance is required for work under this Agreement coverage shall be at
least as broad as 1SO form CG 00 01 10 01 including symbol 1 (Any Auto) approved by
the City Attorney and Risk Manager. Coverage shall be endorsed to stated that the City,
its Council, boards and commissions, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall
be added as additional insured with respect to the ownership, operation, maintenance,
use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, -leased, hired or borrowed by the
Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible with a form equivalent to ISO form
CG 20 10 10 93. Limits shall be no less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined
single limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Starting and ending
dates shall be concurrent. If Contractor owns no autos, a non-owned auto endorsement
to the commercial general liability policy described above is acceptable.

Workers’ Compensation/Employers’ Liability. Workers' Compensation and
Employer's Liability insurance are not required for single-person contractors. However,
under California law these coverages (or a copy of the State's Consent to Self-Insure)
must be provided if Contractor has any employees at any time during the period of this
Agreement. Policy(s) shall be written on a policy form providing workers’ compensation
statutory benefits as required by law. Employers’ liability limits shall be no less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident or disease and shall be scheduled under any
umbrella policy described above. Unless otherwise agreed, policy(s) shall be endorsed
to waive any right of subrogation as respects the City, its Council, boards and
commissions, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.

Property Insurance. Property insurance, in a form and amount approved by the City
Attorney and Risk Manager, is required for Contractors having exclusive use of premises
or equipment owned or controlled by the City. City is to be named a Loss Payee “As Its
Interest May Appear” in property insurance in which the City has an interest, e.g., as a
lien holder. Fire damage legal liability is required for persons occupying a portion of City
premises.

C-2
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Errors and Omissions/Professional Liability. Errors and Omissions or professional
liability coverage appropriate to Contractor's profession, in a form and amount approved
by the City Attorney and Risk Manager, will be specified on a project-by-project basis if
Contractor is working as a licensed professional. Contractor shall maintain such
insurance for a period of five years following completion of the project. Such insurance
shall be in an amount of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per claim and in
annual aggregate. Design professionals shall maintain such insurance in place until the
expiration of the warranty period of the Project.

Contractor and City further agree as follows:

a) This Exhibit supersedes all other sections and provisions of this Agreement to
the extent that any other section or provision conflicts with or impairs the provisions of
this Exhibit.

b) Nothing contained in this Exhibit is to be construed as affecting or altering the
legal status of the parties to this Agreement. The insurance requirements set forth in
this Exhibit are intended to be separate and distinct from any other provision in this
Agreement and shall be interpreted as such.

¢) All insurance coverage and limits provided pursuant to this Agreement shall
apply to the full extent of the policies involved, available or applicable. Nothing
contained in this Agreement or any other agreement relating to the City or its operations
limits the application of such insurance coverage.

d) Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained in this Exhibit
are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other requirements, or a waiver of
any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Specific reference to a given
coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only and is not intended by any party to
be all inclusive, or to the exclusion of other coverage, or a waiver of any type.

e) For purposes of insurance coverage only, this Agreement will be deemed to
have been executed immediately upon any party hereto taking any steps that can be
deemed to be in furtherance of or toward performance of this Agreement.

f) All general or auto liability insurance coverage provided pursuant to this
Agreement, or any other agreements pertaining to the performance of this Agreement,
shall not prohibit Contractor, Contractor's employees, or agents from waiving the right of
subrogation prior to a loss. Contractor hereby waives all rights of subrogation against
the City.
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g) Contractor’s insurance shall be written by an acceptable insurance provided,
as determined by the City, which satisfies the following minimum requirements: An
insurance carried authorized and admitted to do business in the State of California and
maintaining an agent for service of process within the state. Such insurance carrier shall
maintain a current “A.M. Best’ rating classification of “A-“or better and a financial size of
$10 million to $24 million (Class V) or better, or a Lloyds of London program provided by
syndicates of Lloyds of London and other London insurance carriers, providing all
participants are qualified to do business in California and the policy provides for an agent
for process in the state. Self-insurance will not be considered to comply with these
insurance specifications. Workers Compensation and Employer’'s Liability shall be
provided by an A-V rated carrier or by the California State Compensation Fund. If
provided by a carrier other than California State Compensation Fund, Contractor shall
provide proof of the carrier’s A-V rating to the City.

h) In the event any policy of insurance required under this Agreement does not
comply with these requirements or is canceled and not replaced, City has the right but
not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by City
will be promptly reimbursed by Contractor.

i) Contractor agrees to provide evidence of the insurance required herein,
satisfactory to City Attorney and Risk Manager, consisting of certificate(s) of insurance
evidencing all of the coverages required and an additional endorsement to Contractor’s
general liability and umbrella liability policies. Certificate(s) are to reflect that the insurer
will provide at least thirty days written notice of cancellation, material reduction in
coverage or reduction in limits and ten days written notice for non-payment of premium.
Contractor agrees to require its insurer to modify such certificates to delete any
exculpatory wording stating that failure of the insurer to mail written notice of cancellation
imposes no obligation, and to delete the word “endeavor® with regard to any notice
provisions. Contractor agrees to provide complete copies of policies to City within ten
days of City's request for said copies.

i) Contractor shall provide proof that policies of insurance required herein
expiring during the term of this Agreement have been renewed or replaced with other
policies providing at least the same coverage. Such proof will be furnished at least two
weeks prior to the expiration of the coverages.

k) Any actual or alleged failure on the part of the City or any other additional
insured under these requirements to obtain proof of insurance required under this
Agreement in no way waives any right or remedy of City or any additional insured, in this
or any other regard.

I) Contractor agrees to require all subcontractors or other parties hired for this
Project to provide workers' compensation insurance as required herein and general
liability insurance naming as additional insureds all parties to this Agreement.
Contractor agrees to obtain certificates evidencing such coverage and make reasonable
efforts to ensure that such coverage is provided as required here. Contractor agrees to
require that no contract used by any subcontractor, or contracts Contractor enters into
on behalf of City, will reserve the right to charge back to City the cost of insurance

C-4
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required by this Agreement. Contractor agrees that upon request, all agreements with
subcontractors or others with whom Contractor contracts with on behalf of City will be
submitted to City for review. Contractor acknowledges that such contracts or
agreements may require modification if the insurance requirements do not reflect the
requirements herein. Failure of City to request copies of such agreements will not
impose any liability on City, its Council, boards and commissions, officers, employees,
agenis and voiunteers.

m) If Contractor is a Limited Liability Company, general liability coverage must be
amended so that the Limited Liability Company and its Managers, Affiliates, employees,
agents and other persons necessary or incidental to its operation are insureds.

n) Contractor agrees to provide immediate notice to City of any claim or loss
against Contractor that includes City as a defendant. City assumes no obligation or
liability by such notice, but has the right (but not the duty) to monitor the handling of any
such claim or claims if they are likely to involve the City.

o) Coverage will not be limited to the specific location or individual entity
designated as the address of the Project. Contractor agrees to have its coverage
endorsed so that all coverage limits required pursuant to this requirement are available
separately for each and every location at which Contractor conducts operations of any
type on behalf of City. Contractor warrants that these limits will not be reduced or
exhausted except for losses attributable to those specific locations and not by losses
attributable to any other operations of Contractor.

p) Contractor agrees not to attempt to avoid its defense and indemnity
obligations to City, it's Council, boards and commissions, officers, employees, agents
and volunteers by using as a defense Contractor's statutory immunity under workers'
compensation or similar statutes.

r) Contractor agrees to ensure that coverage provided to meet these
requirements is applicable separately to each insured and that there will be no cross
liability exclusions that preclude coverage for suits between Contractor and City or
between City and any other insured or Named Insured under the policy, or between City
and any party associated with City or its employees.

s) Contractor shall maintain commercial general liability, and if necessary,
commercial umbrella liability insurance, with a limit of not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000) each occurrence for at least three years following substantial completion of
the work.
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January 15, 2016 Item No. 8](1)

Honorable Mayor and Members City Council Meeting
of the Marina City Council of January 20, 2016

CITY COUNCIL TO CONSIDER RECEIVING INVESTMENT REPORTS
FOR THE CITY OF MARINA AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR MONTHS ENDED
OCTOBER 31, NOVEMBER 30, AND DECEMBER 31, 2015

REQUEST:
It is requested that the City Council:

1. Consider receiving Investment Reports for the City of Marina and City of Marina as
Successor Agency to the Former Marina Redevelopment Agency for months ended
October 31, November 30, and December 31, 2015.

BACKGROUND:

On December 7, 2010, the City Council adopted Resolution 2010-195, amending the Investment
Policy and Management Plan. As amended, the policy's 'Investment Reporting' section requires
the Finance Department to provide the City Council and City Manager with quarterly investment
reports that include all portfolio investments including investments held by trustees. The Policy
requires that reports be issued within thirty (30) days after the end of each quarterly reporting
period. The reports are no longer required to be filed with the California State Treasurer.

ANALYSIS:

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court issued an opinion upholding Assembly
Bill 1X26, which dissolved all California redevelopment agencies effective February 1, 2012.
Simultaneously, pursuant to AB1X26, the City of Marina became successor agency to the
Marina Redevelopment Agency, to wind down the Agency's activities and assume the Agency's
housing assets and obligations. Therefore, the attached investment reports include the City of
Marina's and the City of Marina as Successor Agency to the Marina Redevelopment Agency's
reports (“EXHIBIT A”). These include unreconciled balances of City and Successor Agency
investments held by financial institutions as reported on their monthly statements. Cash balances
on Exhibit B are subject to change due to fiscal-year-end and audit adjustments that cannot be
anticipated as of the date of this report, and may therefore differ from beginning balances shown
for the only of July cash balances report.

Due to the recent New World System financial system implementation, there are pending journal
entries which affect the general ledger balances. These journal entries will be posted in the
upcoming months. It is anticipated that the March 2016 investment Staff Report will include the
General Ledger balances (formerly “EXHIBIT B”) and Negative Cash Balances Summary
(formerly “EXHIBIT C”).

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

CONCLUSION:
This request is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action.
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Lily Suarez
Account Technician
City of Marina

REVIEWED/CONCUR:

Lauren Lai, CPA
Finance Director
City of Marina

Layne P. Long
City Manager
City of Marina
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EXHIBIT A
Page 10f4
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
From: Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician
RE: Investment Report
Manth Ended October 31, 2015
INVESTMENT SUMMARY:
uation Amount
Imprest Cash City of Marina Market 5,800.00
Checking/Savings Account/Certificate of Deposit Rabobank Market 5,225,047.53
Local Agency Investment Fund State of California Market 14,173,985.84
Paying Agent Union Bank/Wells Fargo Market 1,717,186.24
Total Investments 21,122,119.61

I hereby cerfify that sufficlent investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet
the City of Marina's anticipated expenditure requirements for the next six (6) months.
{California Government Code Section 53646)

e i

Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

S:Mnvestment Reports\FY15-16\Investment Report 15-16 Master
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EXHIBIT A
Fage 2of4
CITY OF MARINA
IMVESTMENT AND EARMINGS REPORT
MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2015
Beginning Balznge Change Ending Balance
INSTITUTION Maturity  Rala {3 Amount Deposils Withdrawals: Amount Maturity Rate {%) Cost Book Value Markel Valug
Petty Cash NA 5,800.00 0.00 0.00 5.800.00 NiA 5.800.00 5,900.00 5,900.00
Rahobank
Revolving Loan - NoteWorld FHISEIR NiA, 0.20% 171,758.085 2023 .06 171,786.28 NiA 0.20% 171,786.28 171,786.28 171,786.28
Imtares| Checking Account® FIOSIAZ  Sweep 0.00% 022,382.50 1,447 898 5h -1.483.648.08 87663298  Sweep 000% §76,632.08 876,632.98 876,632.98
Woney MarketBond Proceads 73139564 g, 0.20% 4,175941.81 68646 0.00 4 176,628.27 73 0.20%: 4,176,620.27 4,176,628.27 4176,628,27
Public Chacking DRO5278169 0 0.00 600 0.00
Tokal-Rabohank 5,270,(182.36 1,448.613.25 -1,493,648.08 5,225.047.53 §,225.047 53 5,225,047.53 5,225.047.53
Local Agency Investment Fund {LAIF) §8-27-509 NiA 0.34% 14,162,582 60 1140324 0.00 14,173,085.84 NA 0.38% 417398584 1417358584 1417398584
Paying Agent - Union Bank or Welis Fargo
05 GO Library BP7RIGO0  Sweep variatls 0.40 000 1.00 100 Sweep virigbk .00 100 1.00
Martina Abrams B 2008 Fynd 72 B7TI797700.06  Sweep vaiable 320,415.90 i8,753.40 .00 38816980 Sweep variabla 389,169.80 389,169.80 389,169.80
Marna Atrams B 2006 Fund 57 E71757711-14  Swoep yeziabls 661,884.37 540G 0.00 BE1.889.77  Sweop varisblo 661 88977 661,889.77 £61,8R0.77
Marina Greens AD BHIEI2400  Swesp variahie 0.00 Do 0.0 800 Swesp variable .00 0.00 000
Marina Landing AD 671166601  Sweep variahle 0.00 LG 0.00 000  Swesp variable 4,60 8.00 0.00
98 GO Refunding EHIBITI0  Swesp variahle 448 G.Co 0.40 448 swesp variahle 448 448 448
2015 GO Refunding 6712126601 Sweop vatlably 1.00 (i3] 0.00 1.00  Swsep vartable 1.00 1.00 1.00
2015 GO Refunding-Escrow BH2126802  Swaep variabk 0.00 0.00 (.00 0.00  Sweep vartable 0.00 Q.00 0.00
2015 GO Refunding-issuance 6712129503 Swaep variabie 17,519.45 1.00 0.00 1701245 Sweep vartable 17,519.45 17, 519.45 17.518.45
2015 GO Refunding-Proceeds STI2120804  Swoep variabla 000 okl 0.00 000  Swesp varlable 5.00 0.00 0.00
Fensian Cbligation Bonds 22054700 Swaep variabla 548 59541 533 0.00 84860074  Sweep variable 648,600.74 548,600.74 648,600.74
Totat Trustee Accounts 1,648,420.61 B8H,764.63 1.00 1.717.186.24 1,717,186.24 1,717,186.24 §,717.186.24
TOTAL 21,086,985.57 1.528,781.12 -1,403,647.08 21,122,119.61 21122 119617 212211861 21.122.118.61

* The Interest Bearing Checking and LAIF accounts contain idle funds of the City of Marina and the City of Marina as Sutoessor Agancy lo the Marina Redevelopment Agency, The interest checking account is afionated 1o sach entity on the basis of
the accounling transactions recorded for the pocled chetking account. LAIF ancounts are registered and accounted for in the separate names of each entity. Revolving Loan, Money Market & Trustes accounts contain Gity resources, only,

S¥nvestment Reports\FY 15-16\nvestment Report 15-18 Master
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Ta: Marina City Covnell a5 Successor Agency 1o the Marina Redevelopment Agency
From: Lily Suarez, Accaunting Technician

RE:  Investmen{ Repor
Manth Ended Octobar 31, 2015

INVESTMENT SUMMARY:
Valuation
fterest Checking Account* Rabaobank Market
Lacal Agency Investrient Fund State of California Market

Tolal Invesiments

I hereby cerlify that sufficient investment iiguidity and anticipated revenuas are avaitable lo meat
the Sucoassor Agency's anticipated expenditure requirernents for the next six (5] months.
{Caifomia Govemment Code Saction 53646)

Ly duarsy

Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

EXHIBIT A

Amount
173,858.90
562.832.72

73648862

Page 3 of 4

Sinvestment Reports\FY15-16\nvestment Report 15-18 Master
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EXHIBIT A
CITY OF MARINA AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
INVESTMENT AND RARNINGS REPORT Page 4 of 4
MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2045
Beginning Balance Change Ending Balance

INSTITUTION Maturity  Rate {3} Amoent Deposils Withdrawals Amaunt Malunity Rale (%) {ost Book Yalee Market Valus
Ratibank

Interest Chacking Acoount® 73005032 Sweep 0.00% 467 664.15 0.00 -283.808.25 17385520  Sweep (80% 173,855.90 173,855.80 173,855.90

Total-Rabobank 467 664.15 0 -293,608.25 173,855.90 . 173,855.90 173,855.90 173,855.90

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) £5-27-003 NiA 0.33% 562,180.07 452 65 0.00 562,632.72 HiA B 36% 562 632.72 562,632.72 562,632.72
TOTAL 1,029.844.22 452.65 -293,808.25 736.488.62 736,488.62 736,480.62 736,488.62

v The Inlerest Bzaring Chacking and LAIF accounts contair idle funds of Ihe City of Marina and the City of Marina as Successor Agency ta the Marina Redevelopment Agency. The Interest checking acoount is allocated fo-cach enfity en the basis of
the accounting transactions recorded for the pooled checking actount. LAIF accounts are registered and accounted for in the separale names of each enlily. Revolving Loan, Money Market & Trustee accounts oontai City resources, only.

S:\avestment ReportsiF Y1 5-16linvesiment Report 15-16 Master
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To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

From: Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

RE: Investment Report

Month Ended November 30, 2015

INVESTMENT SUMMARY:

Imprest Cash

Checking/Savings Account/Certificate of Deposit

Local Agency Investment Fund
Paying Agent

Institution

City of Marina

Rabobank

State of California

Union Bank/Wells Fargo
Total Investments

| hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet
the City of Marina's anticipated expenditure requirements for the next six (6) months.

(California Government Code Section 53646)

i i

Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

EXHIBIT A

Valuation

Market
Market
Market
Market

67 €7 9 9

Amount
5,800.00
4,261,409.94
14,173,985.84
1,375,194.97

19,816,490.75

Page 10f4
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CITY OF MARINA
INVESTMENT AND EARNINGS REPCRT
MONTH ENDED NOYEMBER 30, 2015

INSTITUTION

Petly Cash

Rabahank
Revelving Loan - NoteWorld
interest Checking Account*

Monsy Market/Bond Proceeds
Pubk: Chackinig

3085112
3085032
73130564
O805278159

Total-Rabobank:

Locaf Agency Investment Fund {LAIF)

Paying Agenl - Union Bank or Walls Fatgo

05 GO Library

Marina Abrams B 2006 Fund 72
Marina Abrams B 2006 Fund 57
Marina Greens AD

Marina Landing AD

98 GO Refunding

2015 GO Refunding

2015 GO Refunding-Escrow
2015 GO Refunding -Issuance
2015 GO Refunding-Proceads
Pension Obligation Bands

98-27-509

6111751600

BF11707700-08
BI17RTII1-14

711638400
4711689801
671617300
GT12128401
8712120602
BF 12179603
6712129604

22264700

Total Trestes Accounts

TOTAL

EXHIBIT A
Page 2af4
Beginning Balance Changs Ending Balance
Maturity  Rate (%) Amguni Deposits Withdrawals Amaunt Malurity Rate (%) Cost Book Value Warke! Value
W& 5,800.00 .00 0.00 5,900.00 N/A 5,900.00 5,800.00 5,900.00
Nip, 0.20% 171,786.28 918 0.00 171.815.46 N 3,200 171,815.46 171.815.46 17181546
Swaap (.00% 876,632.98 2,314.148.82 2,263,382 50 912,399.21  swesp {4 00% 912,389.2§ 912,309.2 812,398.21
NiA 0.20% 4.175,828.27 EB7 O -1.000,000.00 317719527 NiA 020% 3177.195.27 317718527 3177.195.27
1] 0.00 .00 0.00
5,225,047 53 2,319.745.00 -3,283,382.58 4,251,409.94 4,261,408.94 4,261 409.94 4,261,409.94
Mis 1.36% 14,173,985.84 .06 0.00 14,173,885.84 NA $.37% 1417398584 14473498584 1517398584
Swesp variable 0.00 .00 000 100 Swesp variabla 1.00 .00 1.00
Sweap varistle 388,169.80 QGG -342 002 40 4716740  Sweep variakie 4716740 47,167 .40 47,167.40
Sweep variable 661,889.77 538 0.00 B61,895.35  Sweep varizbia 661,895.35 £i61,895.35 661,895.35
Swasp variabe 0.00 4.00 0.00 000 Sweep varlakle 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sweep yariakle 2.00 0.00 0.00 000  Swaep varlakle 0.00 0.00 0.00
Swean vailabla 448 .00 0.0 448 Sweep variatla 448 4.48 444
Swaep varicta 1.00 (X} .00 100 Sweep variahte 1.00 1.00 100
Sweap varisile 0.00 602 0.00 0.00  Sweep vatatle 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sweep varishle 17,519.45 0G0 0.00 1751945 Swasp vartable 17 518.45 17,519.45 17,519.45
Swesp valable 0.00 1.00 G.00 0.00  Sweep varlabie .00 0.00 .00
Sweoep werlahlie G48,600.74 2119 -15.64 B48,606.23  Swaep varlabla 548,606.29 548,608.29 648,606.20
1,717,185.24 207 -342 018.04 1,375,194.97 1.375,194.97 1,.375,194.97 1,375,194.97
21,123,118.61 31977277 -3,625,400.63 19,816,490.75 19,816,490.75 1581648075  18,816,490.75

* The Interest Baaring Checking and LAIF accounts contain idke funds of the Gity of Marina and the City of Marina as Successor Agency to the Marina Redevelopment Agency, The inferast checking account is aliocaled lo each enlity on the basis of

the accounting lransactions recerded fur the pooled checking account. LAIF accounts are registered and accounted for in the separate names of each enlily. Revolving Loan, Money Market & Trustee acoounts contain City resources, only.

124



To: Marina City Council as Successor Ageney 1o the Marina Redevelopment Agency
From: Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

RE. Investment Report
Month Ended November 30, 2015

INVESTMENT SUMMARY:
Insfitution
Interest Checking Account* Rabobank
Local Agency Investment Fund State of California

Total Investments

*

| hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to mest
the Successer Agency's anticipated expenditura requirements for the next six (6) months.
{California Government Code Section 53648)

Ly duarey

Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

EXHIBIT A

Valuation

Market
Market

$
3

3

Amount
173467.90 *
562,632.72

736,100.62

Negative Rabobank Inferest Checking Account balance due to fiming of transfer befween Marina RDA Successor Agency Rabobank and LAIF accounts. Resolved in December,

Page 3of4
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EXHIBIT A
CITY OF MARINA AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
INVESTMENT AND EARNINGS REPORT Page 4 of 4
MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2015
Beginning Balance Chanige Ending Balance

INSTITUTION Malurity  Rate (%) Amount Daposits Withdrawals Amount Maturity Rate (%} Cost Book Valus Matket Value
Rabobank

Interest Checking Account® 73095032 Sweep 0.00% 173,855.90 0400 -388.00 17346790 sweep 0.00% 173,467.90 173,467.90 173,467.90
Local Agency hvestment Fund (LAIF) 85-27-003 N4 0.36% £62,632.72 0.00 0.00 £62,632.72 NiA 0.37% 562,632.72 562.632.72 562,632.72
TOTAL 736,488.62 0.00 -388.00 736,100.62 736,100.62 736,100.62 736,100.62

. Negalive Rabobank [nkerest Checking Accaunt halance due to liming of transfer betwean Marina RDA Successor Agency Rebobank and LAIF accounts. Resolved in December.

3

Tha Interest Bearing Checking and LAIF accounts contain idle funds of the City of Marina and the Glty of Marina as Successor Agency 1o the Marina Redevelapment Agency. The Intarest checking account is siflocatet to each entity on the basis of
the aocolnting transactions recorded for the pooled checking account, LAIF accounts are registered and accounted for in the separate names of each entity. Revolving Loan, Money Market & Trustee accounts contain City resourcas, only,
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To: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
From: Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

RE: Investment Report
Month Ended December 31, 2015

INVESTMENT SUMMARY:
Institution
Imprest Cash City of Marina
Checking/Savings Account/Certificate of Deposit Rababank
Local Agency Investment Fund State of California
Paying Agent Union Bank/Wells Fargo
Total Investments

| hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available to meet
the City of Marina's anticipated expenditure requirements for the next six (6) months,
(California Government Code Section 53646)

ey hinisy

Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

EXHIBIT A
Valuation Amount
Market $ 5,800.00
Market $ 459862065
Market § 14173985.84
Market $ 1,470,617.99
$ 20,249,124.48

R

Page 10of4
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CITY OF MARINA
INVESTMENT AND EARNINGS REFORT
MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 3t, 2015

INSTITUTION

Pelly Cash

Rahabank
Revolving Loan - NoteWorld 73095112
Inlerest Checking Account® 73095032
Monay Market/Bond Froceeds 73139564
Pube Checking 08053278159

Total-Rabobank

Local Agency Investrment Fund {(LAIF} 88-27-509

Paying Agent - Union Bank or Walls Fargo
05 GO Library BTTEI500
Marina Abrams B 2006 Fund 72 STHTSTTONE
Matina Abrams B 2006 Fund 57 BTUIFRITI 14
Marina Greens AD 6711538400
arina Landing AD 5711669601
58 GO Refunding 6711647200
2015 GO Refunding BT 1205
2015 GO Refunding-Escrow BT 12120502
2015 GO Refunding-[ssuance 8712126608
2015 GO Refunding-Proceeds B712120604
Pension Qbligation Bonds ~RIBAT0-T0N

Tatal Trustee Accounts

TOTAL

EXHIBIT A
Page 2 of 4
Eeginning Batance Change Ending Palance
Maturity  Rate (%) Amount Deposits Withdrawals' Amount Maturity Rate (%) Cost Book Value Market Value
MIA 5,900.00 0.00 .08 5,800.00 MIA 5,500.00 5,800.00 £.800.00
A 0.20% 17181546 2918 0.00 171, B44.65 WA 020% 171,844 65 174,844.65 171,844 85
Swaep 0.00% 912,399.21 6,764 870 37 -3,928.023.05 3,749,246.52  Swesp (31.00% 3,749,248 52 3,749,246.52 3,749,246 52
A 0.20% 3,177,195.27 334 2 +2,500,000.00 677,529.48 Jita 020% 677,529.48 677 .529.48 677,529.48
0 0.00 0.00 0.00
4,961,409.94 6,765,233.77 -5,428.023.06 4 548,620,65 4,598,620.65 4.598,620.85 4,598,620.65
Wik 0.3r% 14,173,985.84 183 0.00 14,173,385.84 Na 040 14,173.085.84 1417308584  14,173,085.84
Sweep variabie 1.00 00 000 100 Swoep variabla 1.00 1.00 1.00
Sweep variahls 47,167 40 134,678.43 .00 18184583 swenp vartahls 181,845 .83 181 B45.83 181,845.83
Swaep variabia 661,895.35 LW 0.00 B61,90461  Sueep variable 661,904 61 £61,504.61 £61,904.61
Sweep variab 0.00 Q.60 0.00 000 sweap verlshle 040 0.00 0.00
Swesp variable 0.00 0.00 0.00 000  Sweep variabla 0.00 000 6.00
Sweep varizble 448 000 0.00 4,48 Sweep varinbla 4.48 4.48 448
Sweep variable 1.00 Q40 0.00 100 Swesp varlabla
Swoap vaiiable 0.00 R0 .00 000 sweep variable
Sweep varizhia 17.519.45 000 .00 1751945 swesp vartabla
Sweep variabh 000 .02 .00 000 Sweep vzlatle
Swesp variake 648,606.29 520 -30,260.87 £09,341.62  Sweep varlble £03,341.62 £09,341.62 £609,341.62
1.375,194.97 13463288 -39,260.87 1.470,617.98 1,453,097.54 1,453.087 54 1,453,097 54
19.816,490.75 B,609,926.66 -§.467,292.83 20,240,124 48 20,231,604.03  30.231,604.03 20,231 60403

' The tnterest Bearing Checking and LAIF accounts contain idle lunds of the City of Marina and the Cily of Marina as Suecessar Agency to the Marina Redevelopment Agency. The Interest chacking acoaunl is allocated 1o each entity on (he basis of

the accaunting transactions recorded for the pooked chetking accounl, LAIF accounts are registered and accounted for in the saparate names of sach entity. Revalving Loan, Money Marke! & Trustee accounts contain ity resaurces, oniy.
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To: Marina City Council as Successor Agency to the Former Marina Redevelopment Agency
From: Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

RE; Investment Report
tdonth Ended December 31, 2015

INVESTMENT SUMMARY:
Institution
Interest Checking Account* Rabobank
LLocal Agency Investment Fund State of Calffornia

Tota! Investments

*  Megafive Rabobank Interest Checking >89\_a balance due te timing of fransfer between Marina RDA Successor Agency Rabobank and LAIF accounts. Resolved in December.

{ hereby certify that sufficient investment liquidity and anticipated revenues are available fo mest
the Suecessor Agency's anticipated expenditure requirements for the next six {6) months.
{Caiifornia Government Code Section 53646)

Ay uaiey

Lily Suarez, Accounting Technician

CITY OF MARINA AS SUCCESSOR AGENGY TO THE MARINA REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

EXHIBIT A

Valuation Amount
Market $ 858,508.41
iarket 3 56263272

$ 142114113

Pane Jof 4
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INVESTMENT AND EARNINGS REPORT
MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

INSTITUTION
Rabobank
Interast Chacking Acoounl®

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

TOTAL

EXHIBIT A
Page 4 of 4
Beginning Balance Change Ending Bafance
Maturiy  Rata (%) Amnguint Deposits Withdrawals Amount Malurity  Rale (%) Cast Haok Vafug Marke| Value
73005032 Sweep 0.00% 173,467.90 T17,653.00 3251249 858,508.41  Swsep 0.00% 858,508.41 858,508.41 858.500.41
65-27-003 NA 0.37% 562.632.72 040 0.00 562,632.72 NAA 0.40% 562,632.72 §62,632.72 582,632.72
736,100.62 717.653.00 -32,612.49 1.421,141.13 1421,141.13 1.421,141.13 142114143

* The [nterast Bearing Chacking and LAIF accounts contain idfe funds of the Clty of Marina and the Gity of Marina as Successer Agency I the Masina Redevelapment Agency. The Interest chacking account is allocated fo each entity on the basis of
the accaunting lransactions recordad for the pooled checking account. LAIF accounts are registered and accounted for in the separate rames of each entfty. Revolving Loan, Maney Market & Trustes accounts contain City rasources, only.
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January 15, 2016 Iltem No. 81(2)

Honorable Mayor and Members City Council Meeting
of the Marina City Council of January 20, 2016

CITY COUNCIL CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 2016-,
RECEIVING AND FILING CITY OF MARINA AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REQUEST:
It is requested that the City Council:

1. Consider adopting Resolution No. 2016- receiving and filing City of Marina audited
Annual Financial Reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

BACKGROUND:

After each fiscal year, independent auditors examine and test the underlying controls, fiscal
records and financial transactions from which the City’s Annual Financial Reports are prepared,
and issue their opinion on the basic financial statements contained in the reports.

The purpose of the audit is to determine whether, in the auditor's opinion, the financial
statements present fairly in all material respects the City’s financial position and results of
operations for the fiscal year; whether the City is in compliance with significant laws, regulations
contracts and grants; and to evaluate the City's system of internal controls.

ANALYSIS:

The auditors, Mann, Urrutia, Nelson CPAs, issued unqualified (“clean”) opinion as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2015, on the City of Marina financial statements dated January 6, 2016.
(EXHIBIT A). The audit report states “In our opinion, the financial statements referred above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison statements for
the general fund and the other major funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.”

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the financial reports include: Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A); Basic Financial Statements (including Notes to Financial
Statements); Required Supplementary Information; and Supplementary Information.

The auditors' unqualified opinions on the City's 2014-15 financial statements are indicative of
superior financial records, an accomplishment made possible through exceptional expertise,
dedication and commitment to excellence on the part of Finance Consultant Richard B.
Standridge, CPA and Finance Department staff, Accounting Technicians Monika Collier, Lily
Suarez and Janet Villavisencio.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None
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CONCLUSION:
This request is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action.

Respectfully submitted,

Lauren Lai, CPA
Finance Director
City of Marina

REVIEWED/CONCUR:

Layne P. Long
City Manager
City of Marina
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RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA
RECEIVING AND FILING THE CITY OF MARINA AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

WHEREAS, after each fiscal year independent auditors examine and test the underlying controls,
fiscal records and financial transactions from which the City’s Annual Financial Reports are
prepared, and issue their opinion on the basic financial statements contained in the reports, and;

WHEREAS, the purpose of the audit is to determine whether, in the auditor's opinion, the
financial statements present fairly in all material respects the City’s financial position and results
of operations for the fiscal year; whether the City is in compliance with significant laws,
regulations contracts and grants; and to evaluate the City's system of internal controls, and;

WHEREAS, the auditors, Mann, Urrutia, Nelson CPAs, issued unqualified (“clean’) opinion as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, on the City of Marina's financial statements dated
January 6, 2016, and;

WHEREAS, the audit report states “In our opinion, the financial statements referred above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison statements for
the general fund and the other major funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,” and;

WHEREAS, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the financial reports include:
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A); Basic Financial Statements (including Notes
to Financial Statements); Required Supplementary Information; and Supplementary Information,
and;

NOW, THEREFORE IT BE RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Marina:

1. Receive and file the City of Marina audited Annual Financial Reports (EXHIBIT A) for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Marina at a regular meeting duly
held on the 20" day of January 2016, by the following vote:

AYES, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN, COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk
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EXHIBIT A

City of Marina, California
Basic Financial Statements
fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015
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CITY OF MARINA

Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended
June 30, 2015
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IMDEPERDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Marina, California

Feport on the Financial Statements

We have sudited the accompanying financiat statemenis of the govermmental activities, the business-type activities,
gach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marina as of and for the yesr entded
June 30, 2015, and the related notes o the fnancial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Mansgement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managemaent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial stalements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepled in the Uniled Statey of America; this includes the design, implementalion,
and maintenance of intemat control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial stalements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud orerror,

Auditor's Responsibiiity

Gur responsibility is to express an opinion on these fnancial statements based on our sudit. We conducted our audit
i accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Biates of America and the standards
appiicable o financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller Genaral of the
United Siates. Those stendards require that we plan and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assuranee about
whether the financial sfatements are free from material misstatement,

An audd involves performing procedures fo obialn audit evidence sbout the amounts and disclosures In the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the audifors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
matanial misstatement of the financial slatements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the sudior considers infernal confrol refevant to the erdify's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order {o design audit procedures that are approptiate in the circumstances, but not for the pumpase of
expressing an opinion on the effeciiveness of the entity’s internal confrol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion
An audit alse includes evaluating the approoriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant acoounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overell presentation of the financial

statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have oolained is sufficient and appropriste 1o provide a basis for our audit
CpIHon.

Opinion

In our opindon, the financial statements referred to above present faity, In all material respects, the respective
financiat posiiion of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, sach major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Marina, as of Junse 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, whers applicable, cash flows thereo! for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepled In the United States of America.

WYL RAUMCPAS . DO
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Cther Matiers
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information as fisted in the table of contents be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financhal statements, is reguired by the
Governmaerntal Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historicatl context. We have applied ceriain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the Unlled States of America, which consisted of inguiries of management aboutl the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic fnancial stetements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion of provide any assurance on the information because the HEmited
procedures do nat provioe us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Cthar Information

Our audif was conducted for the purposs of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Maring's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
the budgetary comparison schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not g required part of
the basic finsncial stetements.

The combining and individuaf nonmajor fund financial siaternents and the budgetary comparison schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate direcly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial siatements. Such information has besn subjected fo the auditing
procedures appiied in the audit of the basic financial siatements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underdying accounting and other records used o prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
aoeordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opirion, the combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the scheduie of expenditures of fedaral awards are fairly stated
in all materal respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 6, 2016, on our
consideration of the City of Maring's infernal confrol over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
cartain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and ofher matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal controt over financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of
that testing, and not i provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audlt perdormed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of
Marina's internal condrol over financial reporting and compliance.

T Ut T CPAs

Wann, Urrutia, Nelson CPAs & Associates LLP
Sacramento, California
January 6, 2016
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CITY OF MARINA
211 Hillerest Avenue
Marina, CA 83933
831-884-1278; FAX 831-384-9148

WV O ITArTNA. Ca. Us

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This saction of The City of Marina {the ‘City’) annual financial report presents management's discussion and analysis of the
City's financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, It should be read in conjunction with the City’s financial
stalements, which follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

@ The City’s net position at June 30, 2015 was $86,508,388, a $8.6 million, 9.0% decreass from June 30, 2014, net
position of $95,091,826. Although normal operations including long-term debt reductions and capital assets additions
produced 2 $4.6 million increase in net position, two prior-period adjustments totaling $13.2 million resulted in the net
decrease of $8.6 million stated above. One prior-period adjustment of $0.3 miliion resulted from a change in aceounting
procedures for the Law Enforcement Frontline Grant, while a $12.9 million adjustment was necessary to comply with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 58, which mandated a one-time adjustment fo record the
City's acluarially-determined net CaiPERS pension liabilily at June 30, 2015. For additional information on prior-period
adjustments, see Notes to Financial Statements No. 1 & 10

s During Fiscal 2014/15, City-wide revenues (excluding infrafund and interfund transiers} of $37.7 million exceedad City-
wide iolal expendiiures and expenses (excluding intra/interfund transfers) of $35.4 million by 3$2.3 million. Total FY
2014715 revenues {excluding infrafinterfund transfers} of $37.7 miliion increased by $3.6 million from the previous year
total of $28.1 million. The majority of this increase was due to $7.9 million bond proceeds resuling from a new general
obligation bond issue which refunded the 2005 Library Bends. The remaining $1.7 milion was mostly due to a large
increase in grants for capital projects. Properly, sales, frenchise, transient ococugancy and motor vehicle taxes, and other
revenues fluctuated only slightly, within normal operating variances. City-wide FY 2014/15 expenditures increased by
$7.4 milition, frorn $28 million in FY 2013/14 10 $35.4 million in FY 2014/15. Costs of refinancing the Library Bonds {olaled
$8.2 million, while tofal other expenditures dropped by about 50.8 milfion inciuding stight draps in costs for public safety,
economic and community development and public improvemant projects.

¢ On-going General Fund revenues comprise propery, properly tax in lisu of motor vehicle axes, sates, iransient

occupancy taxss and franchise taxes; state subventions, granis; charges for services and ofher program revenues, and
" miscelianeous general revenues. General Fund revenues, exciuding inferfund transfers in, for fiscal year Z014/15

deciined slightly to $17.5 million from $18.0 miilion the previous year or about 2.7%, which management considers a
normat operating fluctustion. This decline was the result of 2 one-time sale of real property during fiscal 2013/14 of 1.1
miltion, partiy compensated for by 30.26 milfion and $0.24
miflion increases in sales and transient cccupancy taxes, Figure A: Reguired Components of the
respectively. Other generat fund revenues fluclusted in non- City's Annual Financial Repore
materat amounts. Tolal generat fund revenues of $17.5 million
comprised: rents, license, fees & other charges for services e .
$3.9 million; grants & confbributions $0.5 million; property taxes $4.8 | Mamsgonont’s |

|
‘Smwmmé{mm
i

i1 Basic Required
millior; sales tax 4.8 milion; fransient cccupancy tax $2.4 million [ Diseaasion | Fmancist Suppismentary
franchise tax $0.8 milion; fines & forfeifures $0.2 million; investment
eamings & other general revenues $0..3 million. | Aentiads L

e The cost of govemment activities naturally fluctuates from yeardo-yaar,

due to program changes, policy decisions and the normal ebb and fow e e
of business transactions; however, for Secal 2014/15, General Fund .-~ e
expendiiures rermained virtually unchanged from the previous year. - i
General fund expenditures of $17.2 million for fiscal 2014415 were
categorized as follows: general government $2.5 million; public safety
$10.5 million; recreation & cultural acliviies $0.9 millior; economic &
community develbpment $1.0 million and public works $2.3 million.

& The City's General Fund reported a fund balance al June 30, 2015 of
$8.8 miltion, unchangsd from the previous year, While general fund
revenues of $17.5 million excesded expenditures of $17.2 milion by $0.3 )
million, a pror peried adjustment of $.3 million (see prior perind Summary a\@ Detali
adjustment disciosure above) offsat that increase, resuling in no net
change to ending fund balance.

Serving a World Class Community
5
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CVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual repart cansists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section}, the basic financial statements,
and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different

views of the City.

¢ The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and shori-term information about the City’s overall

financial status.

s The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the government, reporting the City's operations in more detail

than the government-wide statements.

¢ The governmental funds sialements present general govemment services financed in the short term and balances

available for future spending.

s Propristary fund staterments present financial information about Airport and Abrams B Housing activities, which the City

operates and accounts for similar to a commercial business.

Figure B. Major Features of the City's Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
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The financial statements aiso include notes that further explain and provide more detail about some of the information in the
financial statements. The financial statements are followed by & section of required supplementary information that further
explains and supports the financial statement information.  Figure A demonstrates how required parts of this annual report are
arranged and shows how they relate to one another. Figure B summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements,
including the portion of the City government they cover and the types of information they contain.  The remainder of this

overview section of management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and cantents of each of the statements,

Government-wide Statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods simifar to those used by
private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government's assets and liabilities. Al of the current

year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide statements report the City's net position and how it has changed. Net position, the difference between the
City's assets and liabilities (with respect fo individual funds, this is commoniy called 'Fund Balance™), helps to measure the City's
financial health or position. Increases or decreases in the City's net position mighi, but does not necessarily, indicate whether itg
financial health is improving or deteriorating. To properly evaluate the City's overall health, one must also consider many
nonfinancial factors such as the City Council's policies, goals and objectives, management's implementation plans; staffing

G
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tevels, naturally-occurring changes in the City's revenue base and non-discretionary cost structure; and the local, state and
national economies. This means that, on their own, neither net position nor the general fund and other fund balances
nacessarily indicate the health of the City. Rather, these amounts reflect the City's commitment lo mainiain essential
government services and programs at acceptable levels and to mest new needs as they arise. The general fund balance of
more than $8.8 million equals about half of a full year's recurring revenues.

The government-wide financial statements of the City include Governmental activities. Most basic City services are included
here, such as legislative, general government, public safety, public works, economic & community development, recreation and
cultural services, capital and infrastructure improvements and long-term debt service. Taxes, licenses and permits, charges for
services, fines and penafties, operaling and capital grants, rents and invesiment earnings, and revenues from other
governments finance these activities. For additional information on the City's component units. see Note 1 in the City of
Marina's Notes o Financial Statements.

Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the City’s most significant (Major) funds, not the City as a
whole. Funds are fiscal accounting entities that track specific revenues and expenditures. Management creates funds to
segregate and manage rescurces to carry on specific activities or demonstrate that restricted rescurces are properly utilized.
Some funds are mandated by law (Streets Fund), some by bond covenants (Debt Service); some by special agreement
(Assessment District Maintenance Funds); and some to better manage discrete activities (impact Fee Fund). The City employs
the following types of funds:

«  Governmenial - Most services are accounted for in governmental funds, focusing on (1) how cash and other assets that
are readily convertible o cash flow in and out and (2) year-end balances available for spending. Governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view that shows the rescurces that can be spent in the near future on City
programs. Because this information does not include the long-term focus of government-wide statements, management
provides information o explain relationships among them.

s Proprietary - Airport operations and Abrams B Housing, for which the City measures results of operations similar o a
commerdial activity, are reporied in the Marina Municipal Airport and Abrams B Housing enterprise funds. Propristary
funds, like government-wide statements, provide iong and short-term financial information.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL ANALYS!IS OF THE CITY AS AWHOLE

Total net posttion of $86,505,369 at June 30, 2015 is detailed in Table 1, and results of operations and budget comparisons in
Tables 2 & 3, respectively. The information in Tables 1, 2 & 3 is presented somewhat differently than in the financial statements
to enable a more comprehensive picture of the City's assels, liabilities, revenues, expenditures and budgetary compliance.
(NOTE: More detalled information is contained in the financial statements and notes thereta). For exampie, for Management
Discussion & Analysis purposes infernal balances are not eliminaled, prepaid costs and deferred revenues have not been
recharacterized as ‘Deferred Quiflows and Inflows,” and interfund transfers both in and out are fully disclosed, since they are
budgeted fransactions, and a meaningful analysis is not possible when these important transactions are eliminated from the
reports, or when funds are misleadingly combined as required by GASB-54. Although classified and summarized differently for
different purposes, Nef Position and results of operations are, of course, the same in both presentations since they both
represent the same financial transactions.
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Table 1

MNet Position
{in thousands, rounded)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2014 2015 2014 2018 2014 2018
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 18,588.4 18,588.0 51478 52027 237383 247908
Prepaid Expenses 12.0 - 533.0 611.1 545.0 6111
internal Balances 15,414.0 14,488.8 100.7 50.0 15,5147 14,538.8
Cther Receivables 2.551.7 28963 86.6 46.7 2,638.3 2,943.0
Fuet inventory - - 62.6 28.5 62.8 26.5
Total Current Assets 36,5681 36,973.1 5.830.8 5.837.0 42,496.9 42.910.2
Noncurrent Assels
Long-term Notes & Loans 508.3 1,045.0 85.0 85.0 583.3 1,130.0
Deferred Qutflows - PERS - 2,1894 - - - 2. 186 .4
Land, Bldgs & Eguipment 60,0509 62,578.4 68,7505 69,7505 1288014 1323289
(Accumuiated Depreciation)  -18,166.2 -20,543.7 -12,733.0 137794 -31.8899.2 -34,323.1
Total Noncurrent Assets 41,393.0 45.268.1 57,102.5 56056.1 98 485.5 101.325.2
Total Assels 77.958.1 82.242.2 63,033.3  61.893.1 140,992.4 144,235 4
Lizbilitles
Cusrent Liabilities
Accounts Payable 1,755.9 1,022.0 72.5 474 1,828.4 1,069.1
Acocrued Liabilites 1,713.8 1.846.0 A37.2 3864 20510 22325
Unearned Revenue 104.3 26.8 357 - 140.0 26.8
Deferred Inflows - PERS - 37355 - - - 3,7365
Deposits & Other Liabilities 3139 5258 27.0 27.0 340.9 5528
Internal Balances 2,048 4 1,862.2 13,466.3 12,646.6 155147 14,538.8
Total Current Liabilities 5.836.3 9,048.3 13,838.7 13,107 .1 18,875.0 22,.185.5
Long-term Liabilities
MNotes Payahle - - - - - -
Unavailable Revenue 2.0131 1,734.5 - - 2.013.1 11,7345
Net Pension Liability - 11,3951 - - - 11,385.1
Leases Payable 164.5 92.8 - - 164.5 82.8
Bonds 22.575.0 21,2150 - - 22,5750 21,2150
Compensated Absences 1,273.0 1.137.1 - - 1,273.0 1.137.1
Totat Long-term Liabilities 26,025.6 355745 - - 26.025.6 35574.5
Total Liabilities 31.861.8 44,622 .8 13,938.7 13,1071 458006 57,730.0
Net Position 45,0972 37.619.4 48084.6 48 886.0 95,0818 86.505.4
Net Investment in Capital Assels 26,2851 22,196.9 43,5513 43,3Z24.5 53,8464 65,5214
Restricted 7.082.8 8,194.8 - - 7.0828 8,194.8
Unrestricted 186195 72277 55433 5561.5 24,1628 12,789.2
Total Met Position 45 697.2 37,619.4 400046 48 8880 85 091.8 86.505.4

Government Accounting Siandards Board {GASB) Statement No. 54 establishes categories of ending fund balance in
Governmental Funds. 'Restricted’ fund balances are balances of funds whose resources can only be used for purposes
'...stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation”, for example, bond indentures and Gas
Tax Laws. GASB claims the new categories enhance the usefulness of net position measurements by disclosing the extent to
which a governmert must observe constrainis imposed on the use of resources reported in govaernmental funds and the exient
te which resources are available for discretionary purposes. Since most governmental funds contain resources that are limited in
some fashion to a specific use, a significant portion of year-end fund balance is classified as ‘Restricted’ even though those
resources are available for exactly the purpose for which they were obtained, rendering the GASB's classification scheme more
confusing than lluminating.

Changes in net position. (Table 2}

» REVENUES Governmental Funds revenues for fiscal 2014715, excluding intra/interfund transfers and one-time bonded
debt refinancing inflows, showed a modest increase from the previous year of about $1.5 million, from $24 million to
$25.5 million, virtually alt of which resuited from increased federal, state and local grants for capital projecis. At the
same fme, properly taxes remained constant from fiscal 2013/14, while motor vehicle and gas taxes decreased by
about $0.17 million, sales taxes increased by about $0.26 million, transient cccupancy taxes increased by about $0.24
million and franchise taxes increased by slightly less than $0.1 million. Other individual revenue sources fluctuated
within variances considered by management to be normal, As Table 2 shows, enterprise operating revenues remained
relatively unchanged from the prior year.

« COSTS Governmental Fund costs, excluding interfintra-fund transfers and one-time long-term debt refinancing costs
for 2014-15 were $22.6 million, down slightly from $23.5 million in the previous year. As Table 2 indicates, general
govarnment and public safety costs increased slightly, while economic development, recreation and debi service
{interest) costs declined in essentially equal total amounts. Debt service interest costs declined due to the lquidation of
two limited obligation bond issues and refinancing of the 2005 fibrary bond issue. Variations in other governmental
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activity cosis are considered by management to be normal varigtions due to changes in the operating environment and
program reguirements. Enterprise costs remained essentially the same as the previous year.

Tahble 2

Change in Net Position
{in thousands, rounded}

Governmental Business-lype
Activities Activities Total
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
Revenues
Frogram Revenues:
Charges for Services 8,625.0 §,521.0 4,163 8 4.263.8 13,788 8 10,7848
Program Income 26085 39346 - 38.7 26085 38703
General Revenues:
Taxes 13,403.8 13,859.3 - - 13,403.8 13.858.3
Other Revenues 1.352.8 1,271.3 5.9 - 1,358.7 12713
Transfers In 28744 3,810.9 4.8 - 2,979.2 38108
Long-term Debt Proceeds - 7,852.0 - - - 7.852.0
Total Revenues 26,9645 372491 41745 4,268.5 31,130.0 41,548.6
Expenditures
General Government 23333 25130 - - 23333 25130
Public Safety 10,208.2 10,5519 - - 10,551.9 10,551.9
Economic Development 1,800.8 1,448.5 " - 1,800.8 1,448.5
Recreation 1.080.2 8951 B - 1,080.2 8451
Public Works 2,686.1 2,908.7 - - 2,686.1 2.908.7
Public Improvements 3.153.5 2,798.5 - - 31535 2,788.5
Debt Service 2,256.0 1,649.7 B - 2.256.0 1,649.7
Enterprise Operations - - 44910 4,327 1 4.491.0 4,327 1
Transfers Out 24334 3,679.4 5458 1816 28792 3.860.4
Long-term Debt Refinancing - 8,253.7 - - - 82837
Total Expenditures 259525 34,696.5 5,036.8 4,568.1 30,8863 39,204 8
Revenueas Over
{-wnder Expenditures 1,012.0 2,552.6 -B62.3 -208.8 1497 23440
Net Position Beginning 42,8059 45,0G67.2 50,5882 49,0846 83,4811 95,0918
Priar Periot Adjustment - -13.212.8 -628.3 -628.3 ~13,212.8
Capital Asset Contributions - - - - - -
MNet Capital Assets incr(decr) 1.394.8 1,150.0 - - 1,384.8 11500
Debt {increasejdecrease §94.5 1,132.1 - - 6845 1,132.1
Net Position Ending 45 997.2 37,6819.4 489,094.6 48 886.0 95,091.8 86 508.4

GENERAL FUND BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS
The General Fund budget was revised during the year in response to program changes, in accordance with procedures

established by the City Councit when it adopted the original budget, as set forth in Table 3. Actual General Fund revenues were
aimost $0.8 miflion greater than the final budget, while expenditures were $0.5 million under budget.
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Table 3

General Fund Budget Changes & Actual-Budget Comparison
(in thousands, rounded)

Budget Council Budget Favorable
as Approved as {-fnfavorabie
Adopted Amendmenls Amended Actual Wariahce
Ravenuas

Taxes 11,643.2 444 4 12,087.6 12,669.0 581.4

Licenses & Permits 401 .5 5687 4582 5151 56.9

rines & Penalties 183.6 -1.1 1825 1943 2.4

investment Eamings 30.0 - 30.0 270 -3.0

Chrgs for Sves/Program Rev 3.481.7 2724 3,764 1 3.880.2 1281

Other Revenues 8787 -G43.0 327 236.4 2037
Total Revenues 16,4257 120.4 16.555.1 175322 9771
Expendifures

General Government 26407 3040 2,544 7 2.507.3 437 .4

Public Safety 10,623.3 775 10,700 8 10,5519 1489

Economic/Community Davelop 8351 47.1 B&6.2 9939 -107.7

Recreation G251 - 9251 892.7 324

Public Works 2,306 4 -32.9 22735 2.259.2 4.3
Totat Expenditures 17,3346 3087 17,7303 17,2050 525.3
Ravenues Over{linder}

Expeanditures -508.¢ -268.3 -1 1752 327.2 1.502.4
Mat interfund Transfers infOub) 473.6 -G23.1 -148 .5 -98.0 815
Revenues Over{lnder}

Expenditures, Transfers &

Cther Financing Sources 4353 -B58 4 -1.3247 s e 15530

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DERT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2015, the City has more than $132 million capital assets (cost before depreciation} including land, equipment,
vehicles, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, rental housing and airport facilities, (See Tabis 4). The City's 2015/18 budget
provides for various public improvements. Additional capital expenditures might be approved by the City Council during the
2015116 fiscal year. Many costs will be provided by federal, state and other grants. Additionat information about the City's capital
assels is presented in the notes o financial statements.

Table 4

Capital Assets
{irr thousands, rounded)

Gavernmental Busingss-type
Activities Activity Totat
2014 2015 2014 2813 2814 M5
Land 1,751.0 17810 388000 369000 38,651.0 386510
Buiidings and Improvements 351058 3B M7T7 328687 326667 87,7726 67.,784.4
Vehicles & Equipment 62413 5.408.0 183.8 1838 64251 65918
infrastructure 18,8527 183017 - - 168527 19,3017
Totals at Historical Cost 800809 825784 637505 897505 1268014 132328¢%
Accurulated Depreciation -18,166.2 20,5437 -12,7330 1377984 -31,880.2 343234
Net Capital Assels 40,8847 42.034.7 570175 B59711 978022 880058

Long Term Debt

A4 year-end the City had slightly more than 322 million in boends, capital leases and compensated absences (vested benefits
payable fo employees) outstanding, as shown in Table 5. During fiscal 2014/15, the 2015 General Chligation Library Bonds
were fully recdeemed, in the total amount of $7 925 000 by a new 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bond issue of $7.640 000
in order to obtain lower interest rates, fower life-of-the-issue interest costs, and more favorable debt service terms. During fiscal
2014715, in addition to the redeemed library bonds, the City paid $1.075000 against other pre-existing long-term debt.
Compensated absences decreased by $135.867 as a result of employees esarning slightly less compensabie time off than they
used.

10
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Table 5

Long-term Debt
{in thousands, rounded)

Governmental Business-lype
Activities Activilies Total
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
Bonds Payable 22.878.0 21.215.G - - 22,5750 21,215.0
Leases Payable 164.5 g2.8 - - 1645 92.8
Compensated Absences 12731 1,137.1 - B 1.273.1 1,137
Total Long-Term Debt 240126 22,4445 - - 240128 22,4449

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

On November 2, 2010, Marina voters approved two tax measures, temporarily raising the transient occupancy tax rate from 10%
1o 12% and also temporarily increasing the sales {ax rate by 1%, for the purpose of preserving funds for generai city services
such as police, fire, strest repair, parks maintenance and recreation and community programs. On November 4, 2014, by a 73%
0 27% margin, Marina voters approved Measure E, eliminating the termination date of the temporary transient occupancy tax
rate increase, and permanently setling the rate at 12%. Also on November 4, 2014, by a margin of 77% to 23%, voters approved
Measure F which extended the temporary 1% sales tax for an additiona! ten years, schedufing the additional 1% tax to expire on
March 31, 2026,

Various economic and fiscal indicators were considered, and numerous assumptions necessarily made, when adopting the
2015/16 general fund budget. Amounts available for appropriation for general fund purposes in the 2015/16 budget include an
estimated 2014/15 fund balance carry-forward of $7.6 million, and projected 2015/16 revenues of $18.0 million. Budgeted
expenditures for 2015/16 total $17.8 million. If 2015/16 revenues and expenditures are realized as budgeted, the fund balance
available for City’s General Fund purposes will increase by about $0.2 million, to $7.8 milfion at June 30, 2016. If, during the
remainder of fiscal 2015/16 it becomes sufficiently clear that budgeted revenues and/or expenditures should be adjusted, the
City Council will adopt additional budget amendments. While the City and Agency have made great progress with the dissolution
of the Marina Redeveiopment Agency, as chronicled below, there remains uncertainties regarding future tax increment financing
and Agency abiigations.

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X 26 (“the BillI") that provides for the dissolution of
all redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action impacted the reporting entity of the City of Marina that
previousty had reported a redevelopment agency within the reporting entity of the City as a blended component unit,

The Biil provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of local government will agree
to serve as the "successor agency” to hold the assets until they are distributed to other units of state and local government.

After enactment of the law, which cccurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of California cannot enter
into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject to the contro! of a newly esiablished oversight board, remaining assets
can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence at the date of dissolution (including the completion of any
unfinished proiects that were subject to legally enforceable contractual commitmenis).

In future fiscal years, successcr agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay the estimated
annual instaliment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment agency untit all enforceable obligations of
the prior redeveiopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been liquidated,

The Bill directs the State Controlier of the State of California fo review the propriety of any transfers of assets between
redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011, If the public body that received such
transfers is not contractually commitied o a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of those assets, the State Condroller
is required to order the available assets to be transferred tc the public body designated as the successor agency by the Bill

Management belleves, in consultation with legal counsel, that the cbiigations of the former redevelopment agency due 1o the
City are valid enforceable obligations payabie by the successor agency trust under the reguirements of the Bill. The City's
position cn this issue is not a position of settled faw and there is considerable legal uncertainty regarding this issue. It is
reasonably possible that a legal determination may be made at a later date by an appropriate judicial authority that would
resolve this issue unfavorably to the City.

In & letter dated October 8, 2013, the California Department of Finance (DOF) ordered the City of Marina Successor Agency
{Agency} to remit to the County Auditor-Controller $1,286,118, determined by the Department o be unencumbered funds in
accordance with Health and Safety code Section 34170.8(f). The City disputed, and continues to dispute the Department's
determination of the amount of unencumbered funds and currently has pending a lawsuit against the Department on this matter.

On November 22, 2013, o avoid threatened legal action, the Agency remitied $583,719 to the Monterey County Auditor-
Controller in partial payment of the amount demanded by DOF. In letters dated October 30, 2013 and Neovember 22, 2013, the
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Agency rejterated iis non-waiver of constitutional, statutory, legal, and equitable rights and expressiy reserved any and all rights,
privileges, and defenses available under law and equity. The lawsuit fited by the Agency against DOF remains pending.

As a result of the litigation, the Court decided the Agency may retain $586,326, which was derived from land sale proceeds and
previously fransferred 1o the General Fund. Additionaily, the DOF issued a revised letter dated May 22, 2014 in which DOF
ordered the Agency to remit to the County Auditor-Controller $633,263 {comprised of $583,719 prior payment to County Auditor
Controller, $51,160 disaliowable transfer, -$1,616 reconciliation of beginning balances). On November 6, 2014, the Agency
remitted the final payment of $48,544,

in conclusion, the DOF issued a ietter dated November 12, 2014 stating the DOF has completed the Finding of Compietion for
the City of Marina Successor Agency. Pursuant tc Heaith and Safety Code (HSC) section 34179.7, the DOF has verified that
the Agency has made full payment of the amounts determined under HSC section 34179.6, subdivisions (d) or {e) and HSC
section 34183.5.

Furthermaore, within the DOF Finding of Completion, the Agency may now do the foliowing:

« Place loan agreements between the former redevelopment agency and sponsoring entity on the ROPS, as an
enforceable obligation, provided the oversight board makes a finding that the loan was for legitimate redevelopment
purposes per HSC section 34181.4 () (1). Loan repayments will be governed by criteria in HSC section 34181.4 (a)
{2).

+« LUtilize proceeds derived from bonds issued prior to January 1, 2011 in a manner consistent with the original bond
covenants per H3C section 34191 .4{(¢).

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is intended to provide cilizens, taxpayers, customers, credifors, stakeholders and other interested parliss
with an overview of the City's finances, and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives and the resources
it manages. Questions about this report and requesis for additional financial information should be addressed to the City of
Marina, Finance Department, 211 Hillcrest Avenue, Marina, California, 93933,

12
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CITY OF MARINA

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015

Governmental Business-type
ASSETS Activities Activities Totals
Cash and Investments $ 18,984,650 % 4010743 % 22,995,393
Cash (Restrictad) 603,295 1,191,981 1,795,286
Prepaid bExpenses 12,000 611,068 623,068
Accrued Receivables 2,884,285 46,668 2,830,953
inventory - 26,531 26,531
internal Batances (net) 12,596 635 (12,586,635}
Notes & Loans Receivable 1,045,013 85,000 1,130,613
Capital Assets:
Land 1,750,963 36,900,000 38,650,963
Other Capiai Assets, Net of Dapreciation 40,283,678 19,071,144 59,354,822
Total Capital Assets 42,034,641 55,871,144 98,005,785
TOTAL ASSETS $ 78,160,519 & 49346510 § 127.507,029
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows - PERS Pension Costs g 2,189,387 § - % 2,189,387
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 1,021,890 % 47123 & 1,069,113
Other Accrued Payables 434,195 386,421 820,616
Accrued Interest Payable 107,315 - 107,315
Other Post Employment Benefits 1,304 561 - 1,304,581
Deposits And Other Liabilities 525,811 26,951 552,762
Unearned Revenue 28,797 - 26,797
Net Pension Liability - PERS Pension Plans 11,395,078 - 11,385,078
Long-Term Liabilities: Due Within One Year 1,048,815 - 1.048,815
Bue in More Than One Year 21,386,039 - 21,396,038
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 37,260,601 § 460,495 % 37,721,096
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Unavailable Revenue-State of CA 58-90 Claims 301,561 - 301,561
Unavailable Revenue-CDRBG Business & Homes Loans 576,300 - 578,300
Unavailable Revenue-interfund Loans 855,635 - 856 635
Deferred Inflows - PERS Pension Costs 3,735,455 - 3,735,455
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS $ 5,469,951 % - % 5,469,051
NET POSITION
Net investinent in Capital Assets 3 22196868 § 43324510 & 65,521,378
Restrictad For:
Debt Service 603,608 - 503.608
Public Improvements 6,513,715 6,513,715
Recreation and Grani-Funded Programs 837.282 - 837,282
Public Works 240,159 240,159
Unrestricted 7,227,722 5,561,505 12,788,227
TOTAL NET POSITION 3 37,619,354 § 48 886 015§ 86,505,369

The notes {o financial statements are an integral part of this statement

13-
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CITY OF MARINA

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Functions/Programs

Operating
Expenses/
Expenditures

Program Revenues

Charges
for Services &

Program Revenue

Operating Grants
and
Contributions

Capital Grants
and
Contributions

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Economic & Community Development
Recreation & Cuttural Activities
Public Improvements
Debt Service (Interest & Admin Costs)
Total Governmental Activities
Business-type Activilies:
Marina Municipal Airport
Abrams B NonProfit Corporation
Total Business-type Activities
Totals

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement

$ 2984155 &% 573,764  § 2,700 -
10,128,248 603,046 416,470 -
2.887.311 1,761,589 - -
1,424,974 2.898.850 - -
1,088,775 178,301 18,874 -
896,127 1,056,078 2,286,975
1,407,245 1,215,804 - -

§ 20797835 § 8277532 § 438,044 2,288,975
1,720,158 1,207,336 30,000 -
2,606,946 3,062,129 -
4,327,104 4,268,465 30,000 -

$ 25124939 3§ 12,546,997  § 468,044 2,286,975

-14-

General Revenues:

Sales Tax
Property Tax

Transtent Cecupancy Tax

Franchise Tax

Transfers from Proprigtary Funds (net}

investiment Eamings

Other General Revenues

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position

Prior-Pertod Adjustments
Totat Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year
Net Pesition - End of Year
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Net (Expense)} Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
3 {240769Y & 3 {2,407.691)
{9,108,732) {(9,108,732)
{1,135,322) {1.135322)
1,473,576 - 1,473,576
(872.600) - (872,600}
2,448,926 - 2,446,826
(191,441) - (181,441}
$ (8795284 § - i (8,795,284}
- (4828223 (482 822}
- 455,183 455,183
{27,639) (27,639}
$ ({9.795284) % {27.639) 3 (9.822,023)
4,849,207 - 4 848,207
5,109,408 - 5,109,408
2,395,263 - 2,395,263
823,764 823,764
180,976 {180,976) -
28,416 - 28,416
1,242,920 - 1,242 920
$ 14,629,954 g {180,976) 3 14,448,578
$ 4834870 & {208,615} § 4 626,055
(13,212,512} - (13,212,512}
(8,377,842} (208,615} (8,586,457}
45997196 49,054,630 95,091,826
$ 37619354 3 48886015 3 86,505,369

-4
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CITY OF MARINA
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2015

Major Funds

ASSETS General CDBG Projects Impact Fee
Cash and Investments $ 7,764,837 & 171,672 $ 6,455,761
Cash {Restricted) 51 - -
Prepaid Expenditures 12,000 - -
Accrued Receivables 1,641,257 - 2.886
Due from Fiduciary Funds - - -
Due from Other Funds (Short-term Cash Flow Loans) 171,956 - -
Advances to Other Funds 75,000 - -
Notes Receivable 468,713 499,800 -

TOTAL ASSETS $ 10,133,814 & 671,472 3 6,488,647

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 3 937,302 % 2.500 $ -
Other Accrued Payables 434,164 - -
Due to Other Funds (Short Term Cash Flow Loans} - 171,958 -
Deposits and Other Liabililies 552,608 - -
Advances From Clher funds (Long Term) 50,000 - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 1,974,104 3 174,456 $ -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - State of CA SB-80 Claims ) 301,561 % - 3 -
Unavaiable Revenue - CDBG Business & Home Loans - 499,800 -
Unavailable Revenue - Interfund Loans - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 5 301,581 $ 498,800 3 -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable $ 715668 % - -
Restricted 396,081 - 6,498,647
Commitied 603,705 - -
Assigned - - -
Unassigned 6,142,694 (2,784) -
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 3 7858148 % (2,784 % 6,498,647
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCE  § 10,133,814 % 671,472 $ 6,498,647

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this staterment
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Major Funds Non-major Total
City Capital Abrams B Bonds Governmental Goveramentat
Projects Debt Service Funds Funds

3.683,080 - 869,290 18,984 650
- 114,153 489,091 603,285

. ) - 12,000
1,211,501 - 28,639 2,884 283
- . - 171,856

856,835 11.780,000 - 12,721,835

- - 76,500 1,045,013
5,751,226 11,904,153 1,463,520 36,422 832
40,015 - 42,173 1,021,890

- - - 434,194

- - - 171,958

- - - 552,608

75,060 - - 125,000
115,015 - 42173 2,305,748

- - - 301,561

- - 76,500 576,300

856,635 11,790,000 - 12,646,635
856,635 11,790,000 76,500 13,524,496

- - - 715,869

- 114,153 1,185,883 8,194,764
4,779,576 - 158,964 5,542,245
- - - 6,138,810
4,778,576 114,153 1,344,847 20,592,588
5,751,226 11,904,153 1,463,520 36,422 832

-15-
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CITY OF MARINA

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

{o the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015

Fund Balance - Total Governmentai Funds

Amounts reported for governmantai aclivities in the
statement of net assets are different because:
l.ong-term Accounts Receivabie are treated as Deferred inflows
in Governmental Funds, but as revenue in the Statement of Net Position
Deferred Outflows of PERS Pension Costs are treated as a compoenent of
long-term debt which is not reported in the Funds Balance Sheet
Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the funds:
General Capital Assets
Less: Accumuiated Depreciation

Long-term liabilities, accrued unmatured bond interest & OPEB Unfunded
Annual Required Contribution are not due and payable in the current period,
and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Compensated Absences

Bonds Payable

Accrued Bond Interest Payable

OPEB Unfunded Annual Required Contribution

Capilal Leases

Deferred Inflows of PERS Pension Costs are treated as a component of

long-lerm debt which is not reported in the Funds Balance Sheet

Net Pension Liability - PERS Pension Plans is reporied as a component of

long-term debt which is not reported in the Funds Balance Sheet

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes fo financial statements are an integral part of this statement

R

62,678,270
{20,543,729)

(1,137,080)
(21,215,000}
(107,318}
(1,304,561}
(92.773)

$

20,592,588

14,790,000

2,189,387

42,034,641

(23.856,729)

(3,735,455)

(11,395,078

3

37,619,354
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CITY OF MARINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Major Funds

General CDBG Projects Impact Fee
REVENUES
Taxes $ 12,668,022 3 - $ -
Fines and Penalties 104 540 - -
Licenses & Permils 515,123 - -
invesiment Eamings 26,961 409 10,858
Charges for Services, Grants & Other Program Revenues 4,016,198 75,244 2.315,109
Other General Revenues 236,379 - -
Total Revenues 3 17,658,123 3 75,653 $ 2,325,767
EXPENDITURES
General Government % 2,512,974 3 - $ -
Public Safety 10,551,880 - -
Public Works 2,259,238 - -
Economic & Community Development 1,188,007 180,413 656
Recreation & Cultural Services 892 687 - -
Public improvements - - -
Debt Service - Principal Retirement - - -
Debt Service - Interest and Other Dabt Service Costs - - -
Total Expenditures $ 17,404 786 5 180,413 $ 656
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER {UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ 253,337 3 {104,760) 3 2,325,111
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Long-Term Debt Proceeds & Bond Premium 3 - 3 . 3 -
Long-Term Debt Defeasement & Bond Premium - - .
interfund Transfers In 624 452 13,072 798,432
Interfund Transfers (Out} {173,162} {7,500) (833,000}
Total Other Financing Scurces{Uses) 3 451,290 3 8572 3 (1386,568)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)} OF REVENUES AND OTHER SQURCES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES $ 704,627 3 {89,188} $ 2,188,543
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,404,374 36,404 4,310,104
Prior Period Adjustment (250,852) - -
Fund Balance Beginning of Year - Restated 7,163,822 96,404 4,316,104
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR % 7,858,149 b {2,784} 3 6,498 647

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Major Funds Non-major Total

City Capital Abrams B Bonds Governmental Governmental
Projects Debt Service Funds Funds
& - $ - 8 1,190,288 3 13,869,210
- - - 194,540
- - - 515,123
- 36 3,862 41,926
2,137,870 820673 367,413 8,732,507
1,003,132 - 3.409 1,242,920
$ 3,141,002 $ 820,708 3 1,564,872 § 25,686,226
3 - $ - $ - $ 2,512,974
- - - 10,551,880
- - 647,451 2,606,688
- - 79,430 1,448,508
- - 2413 895,100
2,528,197 - 194,751 2,722,948
71,757 345,000 245,000 661,757
3,818 4715M1 588,234 1,063,563
3 2,603,772 $ 816,511 $ 1,757,279 $ 22,763,417
3 537,230 5 4,198 b {192,307) $ 2,822,809
5 - $ - $ 7,851,870 $ 7,851,970
- - (8,253,686} (8.253,688)
1,186,460 - 528,748 3,148,165
(796.432) - (1,107,839} {3,017,733)
$ 380,028 $ - 3 {980,606} $ {270,284)
$ 927,258 $ 4,198 5 {1,172,913) 3 2,552,525
3,852,318 109,955 2,517,760 18,290,915
. - - (250,852)
3,852,318 109,655 2,517,760 18,040,063
$ 4,779,576 3 114,153 $ 1,344,847 8 20,582,588
AT
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CITY OF MARINA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 2,301,873
{revenues and other financing sources in excess of expenditures and other financing uses)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities is Different Because:

Capital outlay is an expenditure in the government funds
financial statements, but the costs of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense in the Statement of Activities.

Capital Asset Acquisitions Net of Dispositions 3 2,757.000
Depreciation Expense {1,607.012) 1.145.088
Net change in Pension Cost - GASB-68/71 20,514

Principal portion of Notes Receivable payments are recorded as revenues
in governmental funds, but the payment reduces an asset in the
Statement of Net Position: Note Principal Payments Received (348,666)

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure

in the government funds financial statement, but the

repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement

of net position. Compensated absences reduce net position but are not
included in governmental funds liabilities. Accrued unpaid bond interest &
GPEB Unfunded Annual Required Contribution reduces net position buf are not
recorded as governmential funds expenditures

Repayment of General Long-term Debt Principal, Net of New Debt $ 1,431,758
OPEB Unfunded Annual Required Coniribution (240,681}
Decrease in Compensated Absences Liability 135,967
Decrease in Accrued, Unpaid Bond Interest 131,265 1,458,309

Prior-Period Adjustment, PERS Pension costs are not recorded in the

Governmental Fund Balance Sheet, but is reported as an adiustment of

beginning city-wide Net Assets (12,961,660}
Change in Net Position of Governmentat Activities $ (8,377,842}

The notes to financial stafements are an infegral part of this statement
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CiTY OF MARINA

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cash and Investments
Cash {Restricted}
Prepaid Expenses
Accrued Receivables

Due from Other Funds {Cash Flow Loans)

Inventory
Advances to Other Funds
Capital Assets, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Payables

Unearned Revenue

Deposits & Other Liabiliies

Advances from Other Funds
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Airport Abrams B
Operating Housing
Fund Fund Total
$ 1,090,317 2,920,426 4,010,743
- 1,191,891 1,191,991
- 611,068 611,068
43,919 2,749 46,668
26,531 - 26,531
135,000 - 135,000
44 817 664 11,153,480 55,971,144
3 46,113,431 15,879,714 61,883,145
$ 47123 - 47123
11,626 374,795 386,421
26,951 - 26,951
- 12,646,635 12,646,635
$ 85,700 13,021,430 13,107,130
$ 44,817,665 (1,493,155) 43 324 510
1,210,066 4,351,439 5,561 505
$ 46 027 731 2,858,284 48,886,015

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement

-16-

162



Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

CITY OF MARINA

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Airport Abrams B
Operating Housing
Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Rental income $ 719,143 $ 3010841 $ 3,729,784
Aviation Fuel Sales 357,478 - 357,478
Other Income 158,469 48,081 206,550

Total Operating Revenues $ 1,235,090 $ 3,058,722 5 4,293,812
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salanies and Benefits 5 161,543 5 - 3 191,643
Services and Supplies 193,626 557,195 750,821
Interest Expense - 470,412 470,412
Cost of Sales - Aviation Fuel 294 886 - 294,886
Rent - 385619 385,819
Repairs and Maintenance 194,223 772,026 956,249
Utilities 56.64% 87.668 144,317
Taxes 11.468 65,360 76,828
Depreciation and Amortization 777,763 268,665 1,046,428

Total Operating Expenses 3 1,720,158 $ 26064845 3 4,327 103
CPERATING INCOME (1.OSS) 3 (4850687 % 451 777 g {33291}
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Eamings & 2.245 $ 3,408 & 5,653
interfund Transfers Cut {180.,876) - {180,976}

Total Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses) 3 {178,731y & 3,408 $ {175,323}
NET INCOME {L.OSS) 3 (663,799) § 455,184 3 (208,615}
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 46 691,530 2,403,100 49,0584 630
Prior-Period Adjustment - - -
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR RESTATED 46,691,530 2,403,100 49,694 630
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 46,027,731 $ 28587284 $ 48,888,015

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF MARINA

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Paymenis 1o Suppliers
Payments tc Employees
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers (To) From Other Funds {(net)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal Payments on Advances (to)from other Funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
investment Earnings

Net increase (Decrease} in Cash
Cash - Beginning of Year

Cash - End of Year

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Airport Abrams B
Operating Housing
Fund Fund Total
1,271,307  § 3,106,815 $ 4,378.222
{775,158) (2,417.477) (3,192,635)
{186.454) - (188,454}
308,695 3§ 689,438 § 996,133
(180,976) % - % {180,578)
50,708 § (819.664) § {768,856)
50,708 & (819,664) § (768,956)
2245 § 3,408 % 5,653
181672 % (126,818) & 54,854
908,645 4,239 235 5,147,880
1000317 § 4112417  § 5202734

{continued}
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CITY OF MARINA

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Abrams B
Housing
Fund Total

5481777 % (33,291)

268,665 1,046,428
(78,102} (78,102}
4,090 39,943

- 36,069
{1.085) (20,312}
44,103 8,398

Airport
Operating
Fund
Reconciliation of Operating Income {Loss} to Net Cash Provided
{Used) by Operating Activities:
Cperating Income {Loss) 3 {485.068)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided {Used) by
Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense 777,763
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Prepaid Expenses -
Accounts Receivable 35,853
inventory 36,069
Accounts & Accrued Payables {19,247}
Unearned Revenue & Deposits {35,705}
MNet Cash Provided (Used} by Operating Activities $ 309,685

§ 689438 5 999133

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement

B2

{concluded)
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CITY OF MARINA

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Prepaid Expenses
Accrued Receivables
Long-Term Receivable - Siafe of California
Capital Assets - Land
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounis Payable
Accrued Payabies
Bue to City of Marina Funds
Bonds Payahle:
Due within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes Received in Advance

NET POSITION (Held in Trust for Successor Agency 1o the

Marina Redevelopment Agency}

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement

23

Successor
Agency to
Redevelopment
Agency

$

1,064,378
11,633
397
490,000
800,000

2,466 413

3,218
192
328,713

20,000
476,000

822,123

696,137

948,153
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CITY OF MARINA

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015

ADDITIONS

Property Taxes

investment Earnings

Property Tax In-Lieu

Transfer fro City of Marina
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS

ROPS Payments:
Programs Costs

Legal & Professional Fees
Employee Costs

Occupancy & Operating Costs

Totat Deductions
Change in Net Position

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement

-24-

Successor
Agency to
Redevelopment
Agency

$  1.207,955
1,458

29,139

49,544

$ 1,288,098

$ 1,108,206
32,662
160,456
66,742

$ 1,368,086

$ {78,970}
1,028,123

S 048153
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CITY OF MARINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General and Other Major Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
investment Earnings
Charges for Services & Other Program Revenue
Other General Revenue
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Public Safety

Public Works

Economic & Community Development
Recreation & Cultural Services
Public Improvements

Debt Service - Principal
[Debt Service - Interest & Gther

Total Expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Inter{intraifund Transfers In
inter{intrajfund Transfers Out

Totat Other Financing Sources{ises)

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES

General Fund

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES §

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR
Prior-period Adjustment

Fund Balance Beginning - Restated
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

Variance

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
§ 11643200 § 12087800 § 12,668,922 § 581,322
401500 458,200 515,123 56,823
183,600 182,500 194 544G 12.040
30,000 30,000 26,861 13,039}
3,696,561 3,868,999 4,016,158 47,199
675,675 32,675 236,378 203,704

$ 16,630,536 § 16,759,974 § 17,658,123 5 898,149
§ 2640750 % 2864750 0§ 2512974 3 451,776
10,623,350 10,700,850 10,551,880 148,870
2,308,350 2,273,450 2,259,239 14,211
1,031,150 1,140,250 1,188,008 {47,756}
825,100 925,100 692,687 32,413

$ 17526700 5 18,004,400 § 17404786 § 500,614
$ (896,164 & (1,244,428 3§ 253,337 $ 1,497 763
3 806,243 & 763412 % 624,452 & {138,860)
{108,870 {387 117) (173,162) 193,855

$ 499373 & 396295 8§ 451,290 3 54,995
{396,791) § (848,131} § 704,627 $ 1,552,758

$ 6661104 F 6661104 § 7.404374 % 743,270
- - {250,852} (250,852

$ 5661104 § 6,661,104 § 7,153,522 $ 482,418
$ 6,264,313 § 5812973 § 7858149 g 2,045 176

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CDBG Projects Fund

Impact Fee Fund

Variance Variance

Criginal Final Positive Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Budget Budget Actual {Negative}
& - - 8§ - % - § - 5 - % - 8 -
- - 408 409 - 7,500 10,658 3,158
579,240 579.240 75,244 (503,966} 3,847,900 2,102.000 2,315,108 213,109
$ 579,240 579,240 § 75683 § ({503 587} $ 3,947,900 $ 2108500 § 2325767 & 216,267
5 - - § $ - $ - 5 - 8 - & -
560,840 560,840 180,413 380,427 - - 656 {656)
$ 560,840 560,840 § 180,413 § 380,427 $ - $ -8 856§ (656)
$ 18,400 18,400 § {104,760 $ (123,180} $ 3,847,900 $ 2108500 5 2325111 $ 215811
$ - 13.072 & 13072 8 - 3 500,000 § 844477 5 796,432 % {48,045)
{7.500) {7,500} {7,500} - {800,000} {933,600} (933,500} .
] {7.500) 5572 % 5572 8§ - $ (400,000) § (885237 § (136568} & {48,045}
$ 10,900 23872 & (99188) § {(123.160) $ 3,547,900 $ 2020977 $ 2,188,543 167,568
$ 68516 68516 3 96,404 § 27,888 $ 4,308,047 $ 4.309.047 3 4310104 3 1,057
$ 68516 68518 % 96,404 5 27,868 3 4,300,047 $ 4308047 $ 4310104 § 1,087
$ 79416 92,488 % (2.784) § (85272 3 7,856,047 $ 6330024 8 6498647 § 168,623
(continued}
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CITY OF MARINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General and Other Major Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Penalties
investment Eamings
Charges for Services & Program Revenues
Other General Revenue
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Pubtic Safety

Public Warks

Economic & Community Development
Recreation & Cultural Services

Public improvements

Debt Service - Principal

Debt Service - Interest & Other

Total Expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Interfund Transfers In
Irterfund Transfers Out

Total (ther Financing Sources{Uses}

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR
Prior-period Adjustment

Fund Batance Beginning - Restated
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

The noles to financial statements are an integral part of this statement

City Capital Projects Fund

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
$ - 3 $ -
2,288,975 2,286,975 2.137.870 {149,105)
885,994 1,264,026 1.003.132 (290,834}
§ 3,182,969 & 3581001 3,141,002 $ (439,889
$ § - - $ -
4,567,729 2,668,954 2,628,196 140,758
69,878 69,878 71,757 {1.879)
5,608 5,698 3,819 1,879
§ 4,643,305 § 2,744 530 2,803,772 b 140,758
§ (1,480336) 3 536,471 537,230 $ {288,241
$ 1057105 5 1447447 1,186,460 § {260,887y
(567, 105) (873,534} (796,432) 177,102
$ 480,000 % 473.913 390,028 E {83.885)
§  (870,336) 1,310,384 927,258 5 (383,128)
§ 3255698 § 3255889 3,852,318 3 596,615
$ 32585699 § 3255689 3,852,318 8 596,618
$ 2285363 5 4,566,083 4,779,576 & 213,493

25

170



Abrams-B Bonds Debt Service Fund

Variance
Criginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
. $ . g R
- - 36 36
829,708 829,708 820,873 (9,035}
828,708 3 824,708 820,709 $ (8,999}
. 5 . . 3 .
345,000 345,000 345,000 -
484,708 484,708 471,511 13,197
820,708 3 B29.708 816,511 3 13,197
3 - 4,198 3 4,198
. 3 . 3 R
R g . B 5 .
- g - 4,198 & 4,198
101,451 3 101,451 109,855 ) 8,504
101,451 3 101,451 109,855 5 8,504
101,451 5 101,451 114,153 3 12,702
{concluded
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CITY OF MARINA
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2015

1 - The Reporting Entity

The City of Marina was incorporated in 1975 under the iaws of the State of California, and operates
under a Council - Manager form of government. The City provides a full range of municipal services
including police, fire, public works, recreation & culture, community development and general
administration.

These financial statements present the financial status of the City and its component units. The
component units discussed in the following paragraph are included in the City’s reporting entity
because the City is financially accountable for their operations and because the City and both
compoenent units share the same governing body.

The Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation was formed to account for operation of a 192-unit multi-family
housing development, known as Abrams B Apartments, under a 50-year ground lease from the City
of Marina, which owns the property. The ground lease is reported as a capital asset (a leasehold
interest) on the balance sheet of the Abrams B Housing Fund. Although a legally separate entity, the
Corporation is reported on a biended basis as part of the primary government.

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill IX 26 (“the Bill") that
provides for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action
impacted the reporting entity of the City of Marina that previously had reported a redevelopment
agency within the reporting entity of the City as a blended component unit.

The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of
local government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hoid the assets until they are
distributed to other units of state and local government.

After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of
California cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject to the control of a
newly established oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations
in existence at the date of dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were
subject to legally enforceable contractual commitments).

In future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is
necessary to pay the estimated annual instaliment payments on enforceable obligations of the former
redevelopment agency untit all enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been
paid in full and all assets have been liquidated.

The Bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to review the propriety of any transfers of
assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011,
If the public body that received such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the
expenditure or encumbrance of those assets, the State Controller is required to order the available
assets to be transferred {o the public body designated as the successor agency by the Bill.

Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations of the former
redevelopment agency due io the City are valid enforceable obligations payable by the successor
agency trust under the requirements of the Bill. The City’'s position on this issue is not a position of
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CITY OF MARINA
Notes to Financiat Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2015

settled law and there is considerable legal uncertainty regarding this issue. It is reasonably possible
that a legal determination may be made at a later date by an appropriate judicial authority that would
resolve this issue unfavorably to the City.

In a letter dated October 9, 2013, the California Depariment of Finance (DOF) ordered the City of
Marina Successor Agency {Agency) to remit to the County Auditor-Controlier $1,286,116, determined
by the Department to be unencumbered funds in accordance with Health and Safety code Section
34170.6(f). The City disputed, and continues to dispute the Department’s determination of the amount
of unencumbered funds and currently has pending a lawsuit against the Department on this matter.

On November 22, 2013, o avoid threatened legal action, the Agency remitted $583,719 to the
Monterey County Auditor-Controller in partial payment of the amount demanded by DOF. In letters
dated October 30, 2013 and November 22, 2013, the Agency reiterated its non-waiver of
constitutional, statutory, legal, and equitable rights and expressly reserved any and all rights,
privileges, and defenses available under law and equity. The lawsuit filed by the Agency against DOF
remains pending.

As a result of the litigation, the court decided the Agency may retain $586,326, which was derived
from land sale proceeds and previously transferred to the general fund. Additionally, the DOF issued
a revised letter dated May 22, 2014, in which DOF ordered the Agency to remit to the County Auditor-
Controller $633,263 (composed of $583,719 prior payment to the County Auditor-Controller, $51,160
disallowable transfer less $1,616 reconciliation of beginning balances. On November 6, 2014, the
Agency remitted the final payment of $49,544.

In conclusion, the DOF issued a letier dated November 12, 2014, stating the DOF has completed the
Finding of Compietion for the Marina Successor Agency. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code (HSC)
section 34179.7, the DOF has verified that the Agency has made full payment of the amounts
determined under HSC section 34179.6, subdivisions (d) or () and HSC section 34183.5

Furthermore, within the DOF Finding of Completion, the Agency may now do the following:

Place loan agreements between the former redevelopment agency and sponsoring entity on the
ROPS, as an enforceable abligation, provided the oversight board makes a finding that the loan was
for legitimate redevelopment purposes per HSC section 34191.4(b}1). Loan repayments will be
governed by criteria in HSC section 34191 .4(a)(2).

Utilize proceeds derived from bonds issued prior to January 1, 2011, in a manner consistent with the
original bond covenants per HSC section 34191 .4(c).

Implementation of Government Accounting Standards Board Statements

Effective July 1, 2015, the City implemented the following accounting and financial reporting
standards:

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The GASB asserts that this Statement will improve
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CITY OF MARINA
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2015

accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions by requiring
recognition of the entire net pension liability and a more comprehensive measure of pension expense.
This Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, and deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit
pensions, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project
benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute
that present value to periods of employee service. The City believes it is in full compliance with the
requirements of this statement for the City's fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 71

In November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date. This statement addresses an issue regarding application of
the transition provisions of Statement No. 68 (see above) and eliminates the source of a potential
significant understatement of restated beginning net position and expense in the first year of
implementation of Statement 68. The provisions of this pronouncement are effective simultaneous
with the provisions of Statement 68, and have been impiemented for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015.

Future Government Accounting Standards Board Statements

These statements are not effective until fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2015, or later. The
City has not yet determined the effects of these pronouncements on the financial statements.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72

In February, 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Vaiue Measurement and Application.
This statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting
purposes, and for applying fair value to certain investments, and disclosures related to all fair value
measurements. The GASB alleges that this statement will enhance comparability among
governments by requiring measurement of certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a consistent
and more detailed definition of fair value and accepted valuation technigues, and will also enhance
fair value application guidance and related disclosures in order to provide information to financial
statement users about the impact of fair value measurements on a government's financial position.
The City has not determined what impact, if any, this pronouncement will have on its financial
statements. Application of this statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2015,

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 73

In June, 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets that are not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. This statement establishes requirements for defined
benefit and defined contribution pensions that are not within the scope of Statement No. 68, as welt
as for the assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions. It also amends certain
provisions of Statements No. 67 and Statement No. 68. The GASB alleges that this statement will
improve financial reporting by establishing a single framework for the presentation of information
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CITY OF MARINA
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2015

about pensions, which will enhance the comparability of pension-related information reported by
employers and nonemployer contributing entities. The City has not determine what impact, if any, this
pronouncement will have on its financial statements. Application of this statement is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after June 15, 2016 except for provisions that affect assets accumulated for the
purposes of providing those pensions, or are within the scope of Statements 67 or 68, are effective
for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2015.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 74

In June, 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit
Plans Other Than Pension Plans. This statement will supersede or amend numerous previous
statements pertaining to non-pension post-empioyment benefit plans, and is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The City has not determined what impact, if any, this
pronouncement will have on its financial statements.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75

In June, 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postempleyment Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions. The GASB alleges that this statement will
improve accounting and financial reporting for postemployment benefits (OPEB) and improve
information provided about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This
statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The City has not determined
what impact, if any, this pronouncement will have on its financial statements.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 76

in June, 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments. This statement will identify the hierarchy of generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), which consists of the sources of accounting principles used
to prepare financial statements of state and local governments and the framework for selecting those
sources. The GASB alleges that this statement will improve financial reporting by providing the
opportunity for broader public input on implementing guidance, by emphasizing the importance of
analogies to authoritative literature when the accounting treatment for an event is not specified in
authoritative GAAP, and by requiring the consideration of consistency with the GASB Concepts
Statements when evaluating accounting treatments specified in nonauthoritative literature. This
statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The City has not determined
what impact, if any, this pronouncement will have on its financial statements.

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77

In August, 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. This statement
requires governments that enter into tax abatement agreements to disclose the following information
about the agreements: (i) brief descriptive information such as the tax being abated, the authority
under which tax abatements are provided, eligibility criteria, the mechanism by which taxes are
abated, provisions for recapturing abated taxes, and the types of commitments made by tax
abatement recipients; (ii) the gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the period; and (iii)
commitments made by the government, other than to abale taxes, as part of a tax abatement
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CITY OF MARINA
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2015

agreement. The GASB alleges that this statement will improve financial reporting by giving users of
financial statements essential information that is not consistently or comprehensively reported to the
public at present, and make those transactions more transparent. This statement is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The City has not determined what impact, if any, this
pronouncement will have on its financial statements.

2 - Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applied to governmental agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and

financial reporting principles. Following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities,
which report information on all activities of the primary government and its component unit. The effect
of interfund activity has been eliminated from these statements. The Statement of Net Position
presents all assets, including capital assets, as well as short and long-term liabilities. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely on fees and charges for services.

The statement of activities ostensibly demaonstrates the extent to which direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function; and 2) grants and
contributions restricted to meeting operational or capital requirements of a particular function as well
as interest earned on those revenues. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues,
including taxes, are general revenue.

Fund Financial Statements provide information separately for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds and proprietary funds are reported separately with non-
major governmental funds combined in a single column.

Fund Accounting

The City's accounts are organized by funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity
with a self-balancing set of accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.

Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the City's operating fund and accounts for all financial resources except those
accounted for in a separate fund due to third-party or management restrictions.
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CITY OF MARINA
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of revenue sources that are restricted to specific
purposes other than major capital projects and debt service.

Capital Projects Funds account for revenues and expenditures for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities.

Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-
term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds account for activities that are financed and operated similar to private business,
where the intent is that the costs, including depreciation, of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be recovered primarily through user charges. The City accounts for the
operation of its airport, and the Abrams B Apartments, on this basis.

Major Funds: Generally Accepted Accounting Principles require that fund financial statements
disclose each major fund separately, and that all non-major funds be aggregated. The General Fund
is always a major fund. Other major funds are those whose assets, liabilities, revenues and/or
expenditures exceed ten percent (10%) of the City's governmental funds total for that category, and
also exceed five percent (5%) of city-wide lotals including enterprise funds for that category. The
following five funds are classified as major funds: General Fund which accounts for all on-going
general governmental activities not reported in other funds, Abrams-B Bonds Debt Service Fund,
which accounts for resources restricted to retirement of Abrams-B Bonds principal and interest, and
payment of those debt obligations; the Impact Fee Fund, which accounts for fees collected pursuant
to state law for mitigation of the effects of development on City facilities, services and infrastructure;
the City Capital Projects Fund, which accounts for resources committed to acquisition and/or
construction of general capital assets and infrastructure; and the CDBG Projects Fund which
accounts for resources and activities related to various U.S. Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) programs.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what transactions are reported in a fund. Basis of accounting refers to
when revenues and expenditures, and the related assets and liabilities, are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of
measurement made, regardiess of the measurement focus applied. Government-wide financial
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental Fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
they become both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available if they are
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collectibie within the current period or soon encugh thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the City considers revenues o be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred if
payable within the aforementioned 60-day availability period, except for debt service payments, and
expenditures related to claims, judgments and compensated absences, which are recorded when
payment is due.

Maijor revenue sources susceptible to accrual include substantially all property taxes, laxpayer-
assessed taxes, such as sales and use, business license, transient occupancy, franchise fees and
gas taxes, interest, special assessments levied, state and federal grants and charges for current
services. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.

Use of Estimates

Financial statement preparation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America occasionally requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Deposits

See Note 4.

Property Taxes

Article XIi| of the California Constitution (Proposition 13) limits ad valorem taxes on real property to
one percent of value plus taxes necessary to pay indebtedness approved by voters prior to July 1,
1978. The Article also established the 1975/76 assessed valuation as the base and limits annual
increases to the cost of living, not to exceed two percent, for each year thereafter. Property may also
be reassessed to full market value after a sale, transfer of ownership, or completion of new
construction. The State is prohibited under the Article from imposing new ad valorem, sales, or
transaction taxes on real property. Local government may impose special taxes, except on real
property, with the approval of two-thirds of the qualified electors.

All property taxes are collected and allocated by the County of Monterey to the various taxing entities.
Property taxes are determined annually as of January 1 and attach as an enforceable lien on real
property as of July 1. Taxes are due November 1 and February 1, and are delinquent if not paid by
December 10 and April 10, respectively.

Receivables and Payables

Property, sales and use taxes related to the current fiscal year are accrued as revenue and accounts
receivable if considered available (received within 60 days of year end.) Federal and State grants are
considered receivable and accrued as revenue when reimbursable costs are incurred.

Long-term loans receivable are recorded to avoid understatement, but offset by deferred revenue
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because the resources are not available for appropriation.

Balances representing lending/borrowing transactions between funds at the end of the fiscal year are
reported as due to/due from (short-term) or advances from/to other funds (long-term). Determination
as to whether interfund receivables/payables are short or long term, particularly when formal loan
documents do not exist, depends on the facts and circumstances of each transaction and to some
extent is necessarily a matter of subjective judgment on the part of Financial Management.
Irrespective of the short-or-long-term classification, the total receivable/payable will be correctly
stated.

Allowance for Doubitful Accounts

The City recognizes bad debts, on the rare occasion when a bad debt arises, using the direct write-off
method due to the uncertainty of recording an allowance in advance, and the public impact of
presenting such information on an estimated basis. While accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require that the allowance method be used to reflect bad debts, the
effect of using the direct write-off method does not differ materially from the results that would be
obtained if the allowance method were followed, and Management considers the direct write-off
method {o be superior.

Inventories and Prepaid ltems

The aviation fuel inventory held by the Airport proprietary fund is stated at cost using the First-In-First-
Out (FIFO) valuation method. Materials and supplies used by governmental funds are recorded as
expenditures at the time they are purchased or obtained. Occasionally, payments to vendors relate to
costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items; such items are
generally not material in amount overall.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are stated at historical cost, or at estimated
replacement cost where original cost was not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at
estimated fair market value on the date contributed, if ascertainable. The City possesses certain
capital assets that were acquired by capital lease, and are recorded as capital assets at cost. The
City capitalizes assets whose acquisition or construction cost equals or exceeds:

Equipment $ 10,000
Buildings and Improvements 100,000
Infrastructure 200,000

Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
which range from four to forty years.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences represent the vested portion of accumulated vacation, sick leave and
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compensatory time off. The liability for accumulated leave includes all salary-related payments that
are directly and incrementally connected with leave payments to employees. In governmental fund
types, the cost of vacation and sick leave benefits is recoghized when payments are made fo
employees.

Upon termination, employees are paid 100% of accrued vacation feave and compensatory time off.
Personal Time Off (PTO) and sick leave is paid in accordance with the applicable employee
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) or individual employment contract. A long-term liability of
$1,137,080 for accrued benefits was recorded at June 30, 2015.

Long -Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statement, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable statement of net position.
Except for interfund obligations, long-term debt is not reported in governmental funds.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used during the year for budgetary control. Encumbrances lapse at year
end.

Fund Balance

The difference between the assetls plus deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities plus deferred
inflows of resources of a governmental fund is referred to as fund balance or, in the government-wide
statements, as net position. (See Note 10 disclosures). Occasionally, a fund's liabilities plus deferred
inflows of resources exceed its assets plus deferred outflows of resources, resulting in a deficit fund
balance. Following are the deficit fund balances at June 30, 2015, and short explanations:

CDBG Projects Fund: - $2,784 - CDBG program caosts typically occur before grant reimbursements
are received.

Prior-Period Adjustment: See Note 10, Fund Balances and Net Assets

internal Activity Eliminations

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles require that with certain exceptions, the effects of interfund
activity be eliminated from the government-wide financial statements by means of consolidation. At
June 30, 2015 the City had recorded numercus interfund receivables/payables/transfers between
various funds. (See Note 9) For financial reporting purposes, the City discloses all interfund activity in
the fund financial statements, but as required by GASB Statement No. 34, eliminates activity between
individual Governmental Funds and between individual Enterprise Funds, then eliminates interfund
activity between governmental and proprietary funds by disclosing the offsetting amounts as 'Internal
Balances' with a resulting zero balance in the statement of net position and statement of activities.
Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
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to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Local
Government of Example’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans)
and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
investments are reported at fair value.

3 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgetary Information

The City foliows these procedures annually in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. The City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing
the ensuing July 1, which includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them, including
anticipated revenues and fund balance carry-forwards.

2. The City Council reviews the proposed budget at special scheduled sessions which are open to
the public. The Council also conducts a public hearing on the proposed budget to obtain comments
from interested persons.

3. Priorto July 1, the budget is adopted by Council resolution.

4. From the effective date of the budget, which is adopted and controiled at the department level, the
amounts stated therein as proposed expenditures become appropriations to the various City
departments. The City Council may amend the budget by resolution during the fiscal year. The City
Manager may authorize transfers of revenues and appropriations within and between departments of
the General Fund, and within and between projects/departments of any fund.

5. The Finance Director records budget adjustments and realignments as necessary for carryover
balances, encumbrances and continuing contracts to eliminate unfavorable budget variances.

4 - Cash and Deposits

Cash and investments reported in the financial statements at June 30, 2015 consist of:

Deposits With Financial Institutions $ 6,513,674
Local Agency investment Fund (LAIF) 14,152,578
Cash Held By Bond Trustees & Fiscal Agents * 4,118,528
Imprest Cash 5,900

Total Cash and Deposits $ 24,790,680

* See following disclosures under ‘Cash with Bond Trustees and Fiscal Agents'
The City follows the practice of pooling cash of all funds except cash held by rental agents and cash
required to be held by outside agents under the provisions of bond indentures or grants. Interest

earned on pooled cash is allocated to the various funds based on average balances. Earnings on
cash held by fiscal agents are credited to the related fund.
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Cash Defined

Cash includes money held by the City and on deposit with financial institutions that can be withdrawn
without notice. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in
value due to fluctuations in interest rates.

Cash Deposits

The California Government Code requires financial institutions to secure deposits made by state or
local governmental agencies by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law, unless waived by the government agency. (GC §§53652 &
53653) The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of
the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also aliows financial institutions to
secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the
secured public deposits. All deposits held in the City's name by financial institutions comply with state
law. In addition, as operating manager of the Abrams B Non-Profit Corporation's rental activity,
Alliance Properties Management Company holds approximately $2,188,881 cash on behalf of the
Corporation in the City's name.

Cash with Bond Trustees and Fiscal Agents

At June 30, 2015, Cash with Bond Trustees comprised the following:

Wells Fargo Government Money Market Fund 5 51
Blackrock Institutional Money Market Funds 1,599,124
Total Cash with Bond Trustees $ 1,599,175
Cash with Rental Agent: Bank of America Demand Deposit 2.519,353
Total cash with Bond Trustees and Fiscal Agent $ 4118528

Cash held by trustees on behalf of bond holders are governed by provisions of the indentures rather
than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.
Generally, the indentures allow a wide range of investments including investments in money market
mutual funds rated AAAmM, AAAM-G, or Aaa by Standard & Poors and/or Moody's. During fiscal 2014-
15, all investments held by trustees complied with indenture requirements. Cash held by fiscal agent
in demand deposit accounts complied in all respects with security and coliateralization requirements
of the California Government Code:

Investments Authorized by the City's Investment Policy

The City's Investment Policy and Management Plan restricts individual deposits to financial
institutions maintaining offices within the City of Marina. Further, unless collateralized as provided in
Government Code Sections 53651 & 53652, the maximum amount of Certificates of Deposit that can
be placed with any single institution is $100,000. At June 30, 2015, all City deposits were placed with
Rabobank in Marina, and the City had no certificates of deposit.
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With respect to investments, the policy adopts the State of California’s provisions relating to local
agencies set forth in Government Code: §16429.1 authorizing a local agency to deposit cash with the
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF); $53635 authorizing a local agency to pool
deposits with other local agencies and establishing permitted investments for the pool; and §53601
permitting local governments to invest independently and establishing permitted investments.

While the City's investment policy identifies safety of principal as the foremost objective of the
investment program and states that the 'City shall seek to preserve principal by mitigating...credit risk
and market risk... ." it contains no specific provisions intended to limit exposure to interest rate risk or
concentration of credit risk aside from those contained in the aforementioned Government Code
sections. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates wiil adversely affect the
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity
of its value to changes in market interest rates. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment
will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. Concentration of credit risk recognizes that
additional risk attaches to a disproportionately large proportion of an investment portfolio placed with
a single institution. The City's investment policy limits investments with a single institution (exclusive
of government agencies such as LAIF) to no more than 25% of the portfolio. During 2014-15, no
investments were placed with any one issuer that exceeded 25% of the total portfolio.

The City's investment policy assigns authority and responsibility to manage the City's investment
portfolio to the Finance Director. Pursuant to such authority, during fiscal 2014-15 the only
investments were placed with the California LAIF, which is regulated by the California Government
Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. City deposits in this pool are
reported in the accompanying financial statements at cost which approximates fair value. Deposits
may be withdrawn without interest or principal penalties on short notice and are more similar to cash
than an investment. City deposits with the LAIF at June 30, 2015, totaled $14,152,578, and
Successor Agency deposits with the LAIF totaled $561,783.

5 - Notes Receivabie

Notes receivable of $499,800 in the CDBG Projects Fund comprise: $37,927 small business loans
made for the implementation of a business assistance program; $100,000 first-time homebuyer
assistance loans that bear annual interest rates ranging from 5% to 6%, with various repayment
plans; and a $361,873 HOME Investment Partnership Program loan to a California nonprofit public
benefit corporation for the purpose of assisting with gap financing of a 21-unit rental housing
development. This note bears simple interest at 3% and is repayable from 'residual receipts’ starting
the first calendar year after project completion. As of 6/30/2015, no payments on the loan have been
received by the City.

CDBG Housing Fund notes receivable of $76,500 consist of loans made for low-income housing
purchase and rehabilitation. Loans are collateralized by deeds of trust on the purchased or improved

properties, bear annual interest rates ranging from 3% to 7%, and require no repayment until transfer
of property title, or the loan reaches maturity.
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Governmental (General) Capital Assets changed during FY 14-15 as follows:

t.and (non-depreciable)

Buildings & Improvements

Equipment
infrastructure

Cost of Depreciable Assets

L.ess; Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings & improvements

Equipment
Infrastructure

Total Accumulated Depr'n

Net Depreciabie Assets

Capital Assets, Net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2015
$ 1,750,962 § - % - % 1,750,962

35,105,940 11,754 - 35,117,694
6,241,301 396,169 (229,497) 6,407,973
16,952,662 2,349,078 19,301,740
58,299,903 2,757,001 (229,497} 60,827,407
(11,995,417) {794,570) - (12,789,987)
(5,077,423) {385,798) 229,497 {5,233,724)
(2,093,372) (426,645) (2,520,017)
(19,166,212) {1,607,013) 229,497 (20,543,728)
39,133,691 1,149,088 - 40,283,679
$40,884,6563 51,149,988 % - $42,034,641

Depreciation expense was charged o governmentai functions as follows:

General Governmaent $ 443,645
Public safety 354,858
Public Works 71,963
Economic & Community Development 5,985
Recreation & Cuiltural Services 208,303
Public Improvements 522,259

Total depreciation expense  §_1.607.013
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Business Activity-Type Assets changed as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014
Land (non-depreciable) $36,900,000 § - 3 - ~$36,800,000
Buildings 8,679,544 - - 8,579,544
Improvements 24,087 173 - “ 24,087,173
Equipment 183,816 - 183,816
Cost of Depreciable Assets 32,850,533 - - 32,850,533
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings (3,900,178) (241,302) - (4,141,480)
fmprovements {8,657,249) {800,675) - (9,457 974)
Equipment {175,483) (4,452) (179,935)
Total Accumulated Depr'n ~ (12,732,960) {1,046,429) - (13,779,389)
Net Depreciable Assels 26,117,573 (1.046,429) - 19,071,144
Capital Assets, Net $57,017,573  § (1,046429) 3 - $55971,144

7 - Long-Term Debt
Following are the long-term debt issues outstanding at June 30, 2015, including a description of each
issue:

General Obligation Bonds
1998 General Obligation Refunding Bonds — Authorized and issued June 1998, due in annual
installments of $15,000 to $65,000 plus accrued interest through August 2019, for the purpose of
refunding the 1989 General Obligation Bonds Series A. Interest is payable semi-annually in February
and August at 4.4% to 5.6% per annum. (See Note 17, Subsequent Events)

Balance Due $285,000

General Obligation Bonds
2005 General Obligation Bonds — Authorized and issued May 2005, due in annual installments of
$5,000 to $695,000 plus accrued interest through August 2035, for the purpose of constructing a new
library. Interest is payabie semi-annually in February and August at 3% to 5.25% per annum. These
bonds were liquidated during fiscal 2014/15. See 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
following)

Balance Due 3 0

General Obligation Bonds
2007 General Obligation Bonds — Authorized and issued April 2007 as part of a larger offering
facilitated by the California Statewide Communities Development Authority, due in annual
instaliments of $15,000 to $625,000 plus accrued interest through June 2018, for the purpose of
refinancing an unfunded CalPERS pension liability. Interest is payable semi-annually in June and
December at 5.21% to 5.3% per annum.

Balance Due $ 1,470,000

40

185



CITY OF MARINA
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Issued May 12, 2015, due in annual principal installments of $85,000 to $605,000 plus accrued
interest through August, 2035, for the purpose of refunding all of the City of Marina General
Obligation Bonds, Election of 2002, Series 2005, principal balance at refunding $7,885,000 which
were issued for the purpose of constructing and supplying a library facility in the City. Interest is
payable semi-annually in August and February at 1.5% to 5% per annum.

Balance Due $ 7,640,000

Revenue Bonds
2006 Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds - Authorized and issued November 2006, due in annual
instaliments of $110,000 to $160,000 through May 2018, then a lump-sum redemption of $10,275,000
on November 15, 2036, principal and interest, for the purpose of financing the acquisition of the
Abrams B Apartments. interest is payable semi-annually in May and November at 3.45% to 3.95%
per annum.

Balance Due $ 11,820,000

General Long-Term Debt changed as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2014 Increases Decreases June 30, 2015 1 Year

General Obligation Bonds $10,255,000 7,640,000 8, 500,000 $9,385,000 $ 620,000
Revenue Bonds 12,165,000 - 345,000 11,820,000 355,000
Limited Obligation Bonds 155,000 - 155,000 - -
Sub-Total Bonded Debt $22,575,000  7.640,000 9.000,000 $21,215,000 $ 975,000
Capital Lease Obiligation 164,532 - 71,757 92,775 73,815
Compensated Absences 1,273,047 - 135,967 1,137,080 -
Totai $24,012,579 7,640,000 9,207,724 $22,444 855 § 1,048,815

Annual principal and interest requirements on general long-term bonded debt outstanding at June 30,
2015, are as follows:

Year General
Ending Ohligation Revenue
June 30, Bonds Bonds Total Interest Principa
2016 400,430 787,715 1.688,145 713,145 975,000
2017 1.084,058 458,365 1,542,451 777,451 765,000
2018 £28,664 458,395 1,087,058 737,059 350,000
2019 664,038 458,395 1,122,433 722,433 400,000
2020 536,301 458,395 994,696 704,886 250,000
2021-2025 2,605,881 2,291,975 4,897,856 3,407 856 1,490,000
2026-2030 2,885 906 2,281,875 5,177,881 3,037,881 2,140,000
203%-2035 3.078.1860 2.291.8975 5,370,135 2,635,138 2, 735000
2036-2037 615,588 12,422,592 13038188 §68,180 12,070,000
Subtotal $12,996,023 $21,919.812 $34,918,838 $13,703,838 $21.215,000
Less interest {3.604.023) (10,089,812} {13,703 838) -13.703,838 -
Principal $ 6,395,000 $11.820,000 $21.215.000 $ - $2,215,000
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8 - Capital Leases

A schedule of future minimum lease payments pursuant to a capital lease for NGEN emergency
communications equipment, together with the present value of the minimum lease payments at June
30, 2015 follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Long-Term Debt
2016 $ 75577
2017 18,894

$ 94471
Less Interest -1,.696
Principal Portion of Future Lease Payments $ 92775

9 - Interfund Transactions

interfund Loans

Interfund loans are temporary resource transfers between funds for cash-flow and other purposes
that will be repaid within a reasonable time pursuant to loan agreements, promissory notes and City
Council resolutions. Interfund loans at June 30, 2015 were as follows:

Due To Due From Amount
General Fund (1) City Capital Projects Fund $ 75,000
General Fund (1) Fiduciary Funds 243,713
General Fund ¢ CDBG Projects Fund 171,956
Abrams B Bond Fund () Abrams B Housing Fund 11,790,000
City Capital Projects Fund 3 Abrams B Housing Fund 856,635

Sub-total Governmental Funds $ 13,137.304
Airport Fund (4 General Fund $ 50,000
Fiduciary funds 85,000

Sub-total Airport $ 135,708

Total $ 13,272,304

{1) Loans due to the General Fund include a $75,000 non-amortizing loan to the City Capital Projects
Fund to finance rehabilitation of a percolation pond in anticipation of sale, which will be repaid as
resources permit; two formal, interest-bearing amortizing loans to the Successor Agency io the
Marina Redevelopment Agency Fiduciary Fund totaling $145,655, which the City expects to be
repaid as part of the Agency's enforceable debt obligations; a $48,514 non-interest bearing, non-
amortizing loan to the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency Fiduciary Fund which the
City expects to be repaid as part of the Agency's enforceable debt obligations; and a second short-
term $49,544 loan to the the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency Fiduciary Fund which
the City expects to be repaid as part of the Agency's enforceable debt obligations. Loans to non-
major special revenue funds include short-term cash flow loans io the CDBG Projects Fund of
$171,956, which will be repaid as cash flows permit.

(2) The Abrams B Housing Fund borrowed $14,360,000 from the City on a formal interest-bearing,
amortizing promissory note for the purpose of acquiring the Abrams B Housing Project from the Fort
Ord reuse Authority. Payments are made in essentially equal annual amounts, and the note will be
fully amortized during fiscal year 2035-36.
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(3) The Abrams B Housing Fund owes the City $856,635 for the purchase of a leasehold interest in
the Abrams B Housing Project

(4) The Airport Operating Fund made a $50,000 loan to the City's Strategic Development Fund (for
reporting purposes, merged with the general fund), which will be repaid as resources permit. The
Airport Fund also loaned $85,000 to the Successor Agency to the Marina Redevelopment Agency
which the City expects to be repaid as part of the Agency's enforceable debt obligations.

interfund Transfers

Inter/intrafund transfers are permanent movement of resources between/within funds with no
repayment requirement. The following transfers occurred during FY 2014-15 as disclosed on the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, Interfund Transfers In; All
Governmental Funds:

Transfer To Transfer From Amount
General Fund Other Governmental Funds g 544 829
Airport Fund 79.623

Subtotal General Fund 3 624.452
CDBG Projects Fund General Fund $ 13,072
City Capital Projects Fund  General Fund $ 109,151
Impact fee Fund 933,000

Airport Fund 35,853

Other Governmental Funds 108,456

Subtotal City Capital Projects Fund $ 1.186.460
Impact fee Fund City Capital Projects Fund B 796,432
Other Governmental Funds General Fund g 1,395
Other Governmental Funds 461,854

Airport Fund 65.500

Subtotal Other Governmental Funds 5 528.749

Total $ 3,149,165

Some interfund transfers that occur on a regular basis; for example, routine annual transfers from the
Impact Fee Fund to the Capital Projects Funds to partially finance capital projects, and transfers from
other funds to the General Fund for cost allocation, while others occur only as needed.

10 - Fund Balances and Net Assets

Classification

As previously stated, fund financial statements designate the difference between assets plus deferred
outflows of resources, and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources, of a governmental fund as
'Fund Balance;' In the City-wide statements, this difference is designated 'Net Assets.' in March 2009,
the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB]) issued Statement No. 54 establishing new
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fund balance classifications for governmental funds, which create a fund balance hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which a government must observe constraints imposed upon the use of
resources reported in governmental funds. Fund balance reporting standards include nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned classifications based on the relative strength of the
constraints that control how specific resources can be spent, and the fund(s) in which those
resources are reported.

'‘Nonspendable' fund balance are amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in
spendable form, such as inventories or prepaid expenses, or because they are iegally or contractually
required to be maintained intact. This also includes the long-term portion of notes and loans
receivable that are not offset by deferred revenue, but does not include imprest cash,

'Restricted' fund balance are amounts constrained by external parties that can be spent only
for purposes '._stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legisiation’
such as gas tax cash in the Streets Fund, and cash in Debt Service Funds to repay bonded
indebtedness as required by related bond indentures.

'Committed' fund balance are amounts that are neither unspendable nor restricted, that are
constrained for specific purposes by formal action of the City's highest level of decision-making
authority, such as: Council-adopted budget or other resolutions; motions; or minute orders recorded
in the official minutes for the meeting at which such limitation is imposed. 'Committed' resources
require equal or higher action by the Council to remove or change the constraints placed on those
resources.

‘Assigned’ fund balance are amounts intended for specific purposes but are not nonspendable
and do not meet the criteria of 'Restricted’ or 'Committed.' In all funds except the general fund,
‘assigned’ fund balance represents the positive amount that is not nonspendable, restricted or
committed. 'Assigned’ resources can be imposed by the City Council itself, or by the City Manager
and/or the Finance Director if authorized by Council action. For example, the Council may delegate
authority for making certain budget modifications or setting aside resources for anticipated projects
and programs.

‘Unassigned fund balance are general fund resources not contained in other classifications or,
in non-general funds a deficit balance resulting from overspending for purposes for which amounts
were restricted, committed or assigned.

When an expenditure occurs for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available,
the City generally considers the expenditure to have been made from restricted resources. Likewise,
when an expenditure occurs for which either committed, assigned or unassigned resources are
available, the City generally considers the expenditure to have been made from committed resources.

GASB asserts that the new classifications enhance the usefulness of fund balance
measurements by disclosing the extent to which a government must observe constraints imposed on
the use of resources reported in governmental funds, and the extent to which resources are available
for discretionary purposes. Pursuant to GASB 54 the $7,858,149 General Fund fund balance, and the
$20,592,588 total governmental fund balances at June 30, 2015 were classified as follows:

General All

Fund Funds
Nonspendable $ 715,669 $ 715,669
Restricted 396,081 8,194,764
Committed 603,705 5,542,245
Assigned - -
Unassigned 6.142.694 6,139,910
Total $7.858,149 $20.592,588
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Detailed explanations for each category follows:

Nor-

Fund Total Spendable Restricted Committed  Unassigned Nature of Constraint
Genaral Fund $ 6142694 § - % - % - $6,142 684  Unconstrained General Fund balance
! 715,668 715,669 - - - Non-cursent partion of kbans & advances to other
funds & inans to 3rd pariies
803,705 - 603,708 - OPEBMrary mince Costs set asideby Council action
306,081 - 366,081 - - Bond trust & grant cash imited by indentureltaw
Total General Fund $ 7.858.149 $ 715660 § 396081 F BO3T0E 36,142,604

Special Revenue Funds TABBLTT - 7160861 - (2,784} Resticted to specific uses by law or granis

PEG 155,064 - - 158,964 - Committed to public access by Council acticn

Landscape Districts 18,188 - 16,188 - - Restricted by law to specific geographic areas

Parks Capital Projects B0 - 501 - - Ry et 1 parks use by Guimby Fes law

Alrport Capital Project 14,267 - 14,267 - - Restricted to &rpor improvements by grant
City Capilat Projects 4774576 - - 4.779.576 - Committed to specic projects by Council aclion
Batst Service Funds 603,556 - 603 558 - - Resiricted {0 detd senvice by bantd indentures

total fund balances $ 20,587 588 § 715660 5 8194764 §5542.245 56,138,910

Prior-Period Adjustments

General Fund:

Since fiscal 2012/13, the City's police department has participated in the California PRCS Regional
Frontline Grant program, for which the City acts as disbursing agent for the State to distribute grant
resources. 1he City receives and deposits all local grant aliocations, then at a later date, disburses
grant resources to participating local agencies in accordance with grant requirements. During fiscal
2012/13 and 2013/14, grant receipts were recorded in the general fund as revenues rather than
liabilities to other local agencies. The balance of undistributed grant resources at June 30, 2014 of
$250,852 was reclassified from General Fund fund balance to liabilities pending distribution as
required by the grant. Current year transactions were properly recorded as liability increases and
decreases.

City-wide Net Assets:

in June 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, which requires state and local governments who
participate in cost sharing employer pension plans to recognize in their financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the entire actuarially-determined unfunded pension plan obligations,
designated ‘Net Pension Liability.' The prior-period adjustment for unfunded pension liabilities was
$12,961,660.

11 Pension Plan
General Information about the Pension Plans
Plan Descriptions - Ali qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible o participate in

the Local Government's separate Safety (police and fire) and Miscellaneous (al! other) Employee
Pension Plans, cost-sharing muitiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the
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California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are
established by State statute and Local Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available
reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions
and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annuai cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time
employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily
reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of
service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor
Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan
are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.The Plans' provisions and benefits
in effect at June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Hire date

Benefit formula

Benefit vesting schedule

Benefit payments

Retirernent age

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Reguired employee contribution rates

Required employer contribution rates

Hire date

Benefit formula

Benefit vesting schadule

Benefit payments

Retirement age

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required emplovee coninbution rates

Required employer contribution rates

Prior to
January 1, 2013

Om or after
January 1, 2013

2.0% (@ 55
3 years service

monthly for lfe

2% i 62
3 years service

monthly for life

35 5267
2.0% 1.0% 1o 2.5%
T 6.25%
11.522%, 6.25%
Safety
Prior to On or after
January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
3% @ 50 2% g 57

5 vears service
monthly for ife
50
1.0%

QU4
27 849%,

5 vears service
monthly for life
50 - 87
2.0% to 2.7%
11.50%

11.30%

Contributions — Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding
contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by
CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. The Local Government is required to contribute the difference between the
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each
Plan were as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety
Contributions - employer $360,492 $1.466 902
Contributions - employee {(paid by employer) 89.320 151.684

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

As of June 30, 2015, the City of Marina ('City") reported net pension liabilities for its
proportionate shares of the net pension liability of each Plan as follows:

Proportionate Share

of Net Pension Liability

Miscellaneous - Classic % 3,512,609
Miscellaneous - PEPRA 12,630
Total Miscellaneous $ 3324630
Safety - Classic $ 7860799
Safety - PEPRA 9,640
Total Safety $ 7.870.439
Total Net Pension Liahility $11.395.078

The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension fliability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2014, and
the total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30,

2014 using standard update procedures. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based
on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The City’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2013 and 2014 was as
follows:

Miscellaneous Safety
Classic PEPRA Classic PEPRA
Proportion-6/30:201 3 0.15650% 0.00000% 0.23976% 0.00001%
Proportion-6/30/2014 0.13768% 0.0G000% G20332% 0.00001%
Change-increase(Idecrease) {0.01922%} 0.00000% (0.03644%) 00000004
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of
$1,818,879. At June 30, 2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outfiows Deferred Inflows

ol Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement dafe $1.834.393
Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes in assumptions
Change i employer's proportion and differences between 349,994 {$289.173)
the emplover's contributions and the employers’s
proportionate share of contributions
Net differences between projected and actual eamings {3.446,282)
on plan investments
Total 52,189,387 ($3,735.455)

$1,839,393 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of rescurces and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense over a period of 3.8 years,
beginning with the year ending June 30, 2016, as follows:

Year Inded

June 30 Outflows Inflows
2016 51,930,751 S¢1,004.791)
2017 $1,308 { 942.636)
2018 91,308 (926,437)
2019 16,670 {861,571
Total $2.I89 387  {33.733.455)
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Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations
were determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Miscellaneous Safety
Valzation Date June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
Measurement Date June 30, 2014 June 3G, 2014
Actuanal Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumpiions:
Discount Rate 7.5% 7.5%
In flation 2.75% 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.0% 3.0%
Projected Salary Increase (1) 33% - 14.2% 33% - 142%
Investment Rate of Retum (2) 7.5% 7.5%
Mortality {3) (3)

{1} Depending on age, service and type of employment

{2} Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
{3y The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS specific
data. The table mcludes 20 vears of mortality improvements using
Society of Actuaries Scale BB, For more detatls on this able, refer
to the 2014 experience study report.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,
2013 valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period
1997 to 2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the {otal pension liability was 7.50% for each
Plan. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount
rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate
that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the
tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and
the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount
rate of 7.50 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF).
The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS
website.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate shouid be determined
without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return
assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative
expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative
expenses would have been 7.65 percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly
higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pension Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold
for the difference in calculation and did not find it to be a material difference.

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability
Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes
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to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons,
CalPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and
68 calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the
materiality of the difference in calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the
expected nominal returns for both short-term and fong-term, the present value of benefits was
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one
quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and
asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New
Strategic Real Retum Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years |- Ma)  Years 11+(b}
Globai Bquity 47.0% 5.25% 571%
Global Fied Income 19.0% (3.994% 2.43%
Inflation Sensinve H.0% (.45% 3.36%
Private Equiy 12.0% 6.83% £.95%

Real Esate 1.0% 4.50% 530
infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liguidity 2.00% -.55% -1.05%
Total 100%

{ay An expecred inflation of 2.5% used for this period.

() An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period,

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate — The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the Local Government's
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
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is T-percentage point lower or T-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellancous Safety

Classic PEPRA Classic PEPRA
1% Decrease 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 8.50%%
Net Penston Liabilty 36062612 53 $13.124,517 %344
Current Digeount Hate 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%% TS
Net Pension Liabilty §3.402,729 g3 7626673 201
1% Fucrense 8.50% £.50% 8.50% 8.50%
Net Pension Liability $1,193280 51 $3,096.687 582

Pension Plan Fiduciary Ket Position — Detailed Information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
posiiion is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan - At June 30, 2015, the City reporied no pavable for confributions o
the pension plan required at June 30, 2015,

12 - Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits

Plan Descriplion: The City of Marina participates in the California Public Employess Retirement
System {CalPERS), 2 cost-sharing multiple employer public employee defined benefit pension plan.
CalPERE provides postemployment medical insurance benefits to relirees and thelr spouses who
meet plan eligibility requirements in accordance with various labor agreements. Emplovees arg
eligible for postretirement medical benefils upon reaching age 5C with a minimum of five years of
service. Relirees can enroll in any of the aveiiable CalPERS medical plans, and City-provided
benefits continue for the life of the reliree and surviving spouse. The Clly contributes the minimum
amount provided under Government Code Seclion 22825 of the Public Employees Medical and
Hospital Care Act (3101 per montly for 2009, $105 per month in 2010, $108 per month in 2041, $112
per month in 2012, $115 per month in 2013, $119 per month in 2014; $122 in 2015, and Is projected
to be $125 in 2016, Thereafier, monthly cortributions will increase o reflect changes in the medical
care component of the Consumer Price Index) Retirees must pay any premium amounts in excess of
the City contribution. For each bargaining unit, the minimum amount the City confributes is pro-rated
over the 20-year period starting from that unit's CalPERS coverage.

City's Funding Policy. The contribution reguirements of plan members and the City are established
and may be amendad by the Cliv Council. The contribution reguired to be made is based on a pay-
as-you-go basls {lLe., as medical insurance premiums become due.) For fiscal vear 2014-15, the City
contributed 323,320 to the plan (100% of total current premiums). The City has not established a trust
for the purpose of holding assets accumulated for plan benefits,

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEE OCbfigation: The City's annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost {expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the emplover
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(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No.
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities {(or funding excess) over a
period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the City's annual
OPEB cost for the 2014/15 fiscal year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in
the City's net OPEB obiigation for these benefits:

Annual required contribution (ARC)
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation

Adjustment to the ARC

Annual OPEB Cost
Less: Contributions made (pay-as-you-go cost) -19,192
Increase in net OPEB obligation

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation - end of year

$ 263,159
47,513
-50,799

$ 259873

$ 240,681

1.063,880

Funded Status and Funding Progress: At June 30, 2014, the funded status of the plan was as follows:
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets™
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) § 2473479

** GASB 45 requires that cash be placed in trust o be considered ‘plan assets.” While the City has segregated $200,000
in a separate fund. the fund does not qualify as a trust, so the segregated cash is not treated as a ‘plan asset.’

$ 2,473,479
0

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0%

Covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

$ 8,472,033
29.2%

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, and the preceding years were as

follows: (2009/10 was the first GASB-45 year)

cumutative
Fiscal % of Net
Year Annual Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/10  $205,257 4.75% $ 195,497
6/30/11  $224,416 5.22% $ 408,184
6/30/12  $244,877 577% $ 638,925
6/30/13 $221,072 6.97% $ 844,580
6/30/14  $239,878 8.58% $1,063,880
6/30/15  $259,873 7.39% $1,304,561

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
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are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial liabilities for the benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the Entry Age Normal Cost
Method. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent investment rate of return, which is the
assumed rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets calculated based on the
funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 4.5%
including all inflation factors. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll
over 30 years.

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial  Liability  Unfunded % of
Actuarial Value of  (AAL)- AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio  Payroll Payroll
Date (a) {b) (b-a) {a/b) (c) (b-a)/c}
6/30/10 $0 $1,617,429 $1,617,429 0% $8,724,150 185%
6/30/11 0 1,816,336 1,816,336 0% 7,737,432 23.5%
6/30/12 0 2,029,646 2,029,646 0% 8,190,417 248%
6/30/13 0 2,059,801 2,059,801 0% 8,790,527 23.4%
6/30/14 0 2,260,356 2,260,356 0% 8,696,119 26.0%
6/30/15 0 2,473,479 2473479 0% 8,472,033 292%

As the City’'s OPEB benefits are administered by City personnel, no separate financial statements are
issued.

13 - Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees two deferred compensation plans created in accordance with California
Code Section 53212 and Internal Revenue Code Section 457 under which employees can defer a
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation plan money is a deduction from
the employees’ salary and is invested with independent retirement trustees. The trustees hold the
amounts deferred and any related income on behalf of employees; therefore, the City does not report
any deferred compensation in its financial statements.
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14 - Commitments and Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities

The City receives funding from a number of federal, state and local grant programs, principally the
Community Development Block Grants. These programs are subject to financial and compliance
review by grantors. Accordingly, the City's compliance with applicable grant requirements will be
determined at some future date. Expenditures, if any, which may be disallowed by the granting
agencies cannot be determined at this time. The City does not expect the undeterminable amounts
of disallowed expenditures, if any, to materially affect the financial statements. Receipt of these
federal, state and local grant revenues is not assured in the future.

Litigation

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. Although the outcome of these claims and
fawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City's counsel the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

Development

On July 8, 2005, the City of Marina and Marina Community Properties (MCP') entered into a
Development Agreement (‘Agreement’) for a development commonly referred to as the Dunes on
Monterey Bay, a mixed-use development including retail, office, hotel and residential uses.

On May 28, 2010, the City Council approved an administrative modification to the Agreement
establishing the time for payment of impact fees and other considerations for a proposed theater. On
December 10, 2013, the City Council approved further modifications to the Agreement relating to
payment of impact fees for a proposed theater, and agreeing to provide $275,000 economic
investment incentives 1o assist with the construction costs of the theater. The incentive will only be
paid to the theater builder on the condition that certain ownership, size and operational requirements
are met, and the incentive will not be paid until the theater is issued an occupancy permit and opens
for business. As of the audit opinion date, all conditions had not been met, and the cash incentive had
not been paid to the theater owner.

The Specific Plan pursuant to the MCP Agreement for the Dunes on Monterey Bay identified a site for
a 'boutique’ or mixed-use hotel. On December 17, 2013, the City Council approved an agreement
between the City of Marina and Peninsula Hotels Group, providing an economic investment incentive
up to $1 miliion to assist with construction of the hotel, to partially mitigate additional development
costs under the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan, and to offset impact, plan check and permit fees. Upon
the hotel developer's meeting certain size, quality, construction and completion deadiines and
payment of normal plan check, permit and development fees at the time of application, the City
agreed to defer impact fees of approximately $737,000. Upon completion of hotel construction and
opening for business, the City agreed to apply 50% of the hotel's Transient Occupancy Tax {'TOT")
generated and remitted during the hotel's first 48 months of operation, up to a maximum of $1 million,
toward the funding of (deferred) impact fees and other construction costs. In the event the hotel
closes or fails within the first 5 years of operation, the hotel owner must refund the City's economic
investment incentives, less any amounts previously paid up to $1 million. As of the audit opinion date,
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the hotel had not been completed and opened for operation, and no cash incentive payments have
been made by the City.

15 - Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related {o torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City purchases
liability, property, errors and omissions, and workers’ compensation insurance from the Monterey Bay
Area Self Insurance Authority (MBASIA), a risk-sharing program. Under this program, coverage is
provided for up to a maximum of $20,000,000 for each general liability claim less the City's deductible
of $10,000. Statutory coverage is provided for workers’ compensation claims. The City is assessed a
contribution to cover claims, operating costs and claim settlement expenses based upon an
actuarially determined rate for each coverage layer pool. Additional cash contributions may be
assessed on the basis of adverse loss experience. If the events of the year result in a negative risk
position, the members' annual assessment may be increased in subsequent years. The City is
unable to reasonably estimate the probability of MBASIA ending the year in a negative risk position.
Refunds to members may be made if funds are determined to be surplus as a result of an actuarial
study.

The City currently reports liability risk management activities in the General Fund. Claims
expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount
of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Workers compensation insurance costs are allocated to
various departments proportionate to their total payroll. For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City
paid a total of $1,029,872 to MBASIA for insurance coverage; $125,649 and $904,223 for liability and
workers compensation insurance, respectively and did not receive a rebate from the program.

16 - Rental Income

The City receives rents from several properties including Abrams B Apartments and Preston Park.
Abrams B Apartments are owned by the City through its component unit, the Abrams B Non-Profit
Corporation. During the 14-15 fiscal year, Abrams B generated $3,010,641 in rental income. The City
also receives rents from Preston Park. During the 14-15 fiscal year, the City received $1,743,924 in
rents from Preston Park. (See Note 17, Subsequent Events).

17 - Subsequent Events

At June 30, 2015, the unpaid principal balance of the 1998 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Issue was $285,000, due on August 1, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 & 2019 in the amounts of $50,000,
$55,000, $55,000, $60,000 and $65,000 respectively. Section 2.03(A) of the bond indenture permitted
early redemption of ali or part of the remaining outstanding bonds, with no early redemption premium,
effective August 1, 2008 and thereafter. At June 30, 2015, sufficient cash existed in the debt service
fund, and on on August 1, 2015, the trustee called and redeemed all remaining outstanding bonds.

On March 3, 2015, the City Council approved creation of and by-laws for the Preston Park
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Community Nonprofit Corporation ('Corporation’), for the purpose of facilitating acquisition and
operation of a 96-acre multi-family residential rental property within the City, commonly known as
Preston Park. Subsequently, the City acquired Preston Park from the Fort Ord Reuse Authority
('FORA") for $35,000,000. Simultaneous with that acquisition, the City leased the Preston Park
housing facility to the Corporation for 50 years, in consideration of an initial upfront rent payment of
$35,000,000 plus annual additional rents equal to any remaining cash flow generated by the
corporation's operation of the facility. To finance its acquisition of the leasehold interest, the
Corporation obtained a third-party loan in the amount of $35,350,000 to cover the initial upfront rent
payment plus related acquisition costs. That loan is for 10 years, fixed-rate, interest-only for the first
five years, but starting in the sixth year, both principal and interest payments are due based on a 25-
year amortization schedule. The Corporation is negotiating a refinancing loan to obtain more
favorable terms. As of the audit opinion date, the Corporation has executed a rate lock with a new
lender and paid a rate lock deposit which will be refunded to the Corporation at loan closing. If
executed, the new loan terms will be 10-year, fixed rate, interest-only, at an interest rate less than or
equal to 4.25%. As of the audit opinion date, the new loan has not closed.
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City of Marina
Required Supplementary Information

City of Marina, an Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
As of June 30, 2015
Last 10 Years *
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

2015 2015
Miscellaneous Safety City-Wide
Classic PEPRA Classic PEPRA Total

Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 308082 & 12526 % 1088182 % 9,300 $ 1,428,070
Contributions in refation to the actuarially

determined contributions (308,082) {12,526) (1,098,182) {9,300} (1,428,070}

Contribution Deficiency{Excess) 3 - % - % -~ % - % -
Covered Employee Payroll $ 3208550 § 185400 % 4461488 $ 77184 0§ 7932822
Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered Employee Payroll 8.60% 6.76% 24.61% 12.05% 18.00%
Notes to Scheduie Apply to all plans):
Valuation Date: 6/30/2013
Methods and Assumptions Used to
Determine Contribution Rates

Actuariat cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Levet of Percentage Payroll

Remaining Amortization Penod 15 years

Asset Valuation Method 5-Year Smoothed Markat

inflation 3.50%

Salary Increases 4.5% Average, Including Inflation of 3.0%

investment Rate of Return 7.75%, net of pension plan invesiment expense,

Including Inflation
Retirement Age 67 yaars
Mortality RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table

- Fiscal Year 2015 was the 1sf year of impiementation, therefore only one year Is shown.
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City of Marina, an Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
As of June 30, 2015

City of Marina
Required Supplementary Information

Last 10 Years *
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSICON LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Total Pension Liability

Service Cost

Interest on total pension liability

Differences between expected and actual
axperience

Changes in assumptions

Changes in benefils

Benefit payments including refunds of
employee confributions

Net change in total pension liabifity

Total pension Hability - beginning

Total pension liability - ending {a)

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer

Contributions - employee

Projected earnings on investments

Difference between projected & actual earmings

Difference in proportions

Difference between projected & actual contributions

Benefil payments

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

Plan fiduciary net position - ending {b}
Rounding

Net pension liability (8] - (b}

Plan fiduciary net position as a perceniage
of tofal pension Hability

Covered - employee payroll

Net pension iiability as percentage of
covered employee payroll

Notes to schedule:

Benefit changes: in 2015, benefit terms were modified to base miscellaneous employee pensions
on a final three-year average salary instead of a final five-year average saiary.

Changes in assumptions: In 2015, amounts reported as changes in assumptions resuited primarily

2015 2015
Miscellanecus Safety City-Wide
Classic PEPRA Classic PEPRA Total

508,458 % 24777 1,266,848 § 18,993 1815069
1,408 680 1 2,698,448 76 4.307.215
1817148 § 24778 4,165,288 $ 19,069 6,126,284
4,649,352 4 10,068,478 266 14,748,600
6,566,501 § 24782 14,264,266 § 19335 20,874,884
365844 % - 1421006 $ - 1,786,940
92,367 - 154,987 - 252,354
1,063,084 1 2,154,153 a7 3,215,185
1,429,343 1 2.878.431 61 4,307,836
18,630 12,150 267,793 9552 308,125
84,324 - (474,991} 4G (380,627
3054492 § 12,152 6,403,469 § 971G G479 823
34054492 5 12152 6403468 § 8.71¢ 4,479,823
- - z 15 17
3512000 & 12530 7850798 § 4,640 11,395,078
46.52% 48.04% 44 89% 50.22% 45.41%
3,208,550 § 185400 4,461 488 § 77,184 7,832,622
109.46% 5.81% 176.18% 12.49% 143.65%

from adjustments to expected ratirement ages of miscellaneous employees,

- Fiscal Year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one yesr is shown.
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City of Marina

Required Supplementary information
Schedule of Funding Progress -~ Other Post-Employment Benefits

Entry Age untunaea
Normal Cost Unfunded Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Annual Liability as a

Actuarial Accrued Value of {Excess Covered Percentage of

Valuation Date Liability Assets Assets) Funded Ratio Payroli Payroll

July 1, 2009 $ 1617429 $ - $ 1817429 0% $ 8180417 18.75%

July 1, 2012 $ 2059801 $ . $  2,059.801 0% $ B8.696,119 23.69%
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CiITY OF MARINA

General Fund
Combining Baiance Sheet
June 30, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Invesiments - Unresirictad
Cash - Restricted
Prepaid Expenditures
Accrued Receivables
Interfund Receivables & Fayables - Short-term Cash Fow Loans
Loans & Notes Receivable
Advances to Other Funds
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payabie

Accrued Payables

Reposits ang Cther Habifities

Unearned Revenue

Advances from Other Funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - State of CA 88-90 Claims

FUND BALANCES {DEFICITS)
Nonspendable
Restricled
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCE {DEFICIT}

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement

GASB-45 Marina
GOPEB Library Technology Developmant
General Obligation Maintenance Cluster Activity
Fund Eund Fund Fund Fund Totai
5 781132 3 200,000 % 403708 % S - % 7764837
51 - “ - 51
12,000 - - - 12,000
1,573,151 - 13,137 54,969 1.841,257
1,767,230 - - (8,205} {1,686,068] 171,956
468,713 - - - - 468,713
75,000 - - - - 73,000
$ 11087277 & 200000 § 403705 0§ 3,832 % (1.531.100) $ 10,133814
$ 931187 8 - 8 - 8 1994 8§ 4,111 § G37.302
434,164 - . - - 434,194
517,536 - - 8,275 525,811
28,797 - - - - 26,797
- - - 50,000 50,000
$ 1808724 § - % - 5 10,260 § 54111 § 1474104
S 301.561 B -3 - 8 - § -3 301,661
$ 715668 3 - - 8 - % 3 715 668
396,081 B - - - 386,081
- 200,000 403,705 - B 603,705
7.734.242 - - {6.337) {1,585.211) 5,142 684,
5 8845882 S 200000 0§ 403705 § {6,337y § (1585211 $ 7858149
$ 11087217 § 200000 & 403705 % 35832 & {1,531.100) $ 10,133,814
-60-
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CITY OF MARINA

General Fund
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Fines and Fenalties
Licenses and Permits
lvestment Earnings
Charges for Services, Grants & Other Program Revenues
Other General Revenues
Tolal Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Pubiic Safety
Public Works
Econamic & Community Development
Recreation & Cultural Services
Debi Service - Principal Retirement
Debt Service - Interest and Other Debt Service Costs
Total Expendifures
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES{USES)
Interfind Transfers in
interfundg Transfers (Out)
Totat Other Financing Sources{Uses)
Special Kem - Sale of Real Property

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) GF REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES

OVER{UNDER]} EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES
FURD BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR
Frior-period Adjustment
Fund Balance Beginning - Restated
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

GASB-45 Marina
OPEB Library Technology  Development
General Obligation Maintenance Cluster Activity
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 12668822 § -5 - 8 -3 - § 12668452
194,540 - - - - 184 540
515,123 - - - 515123
26,961 - - - - 76,961
3,880,236 - 45,308 & 654 4016188
236,378 - - - 236,379
$ I7.532181 & - & -3 45308 § 80,654 § 17.668.123
$ 2507282 & -8 5722 0§ - & - $ 2512874
10,551,880 - - - - 10,651,880
2,259,259 - - - - 2280234
993,894 - - 66,847 127,215 1,188,004
842 587 882,687
% 17204852 & - % 5722 & 66,847 & 127,215 $ 17,404,786
§ 327200 % - % (87220 § (21,888) § 146,561) $ 253,337
$ 5281 § - 8 465751 $ 53817 % 949,823 S 624,452
{103.368) (56.324) (5000} 8,470} (173,162}
& {BEA0T) & - B 400427 0§ 48617 % 81,353 s 481,290
S 228,162 8 - § 403705 § 27,028 § 44,792 : § 704 627
5 BEGT74Z %3 200000 5 - % {33365y § (1.630.003) $ 7404374
(250 8521 - - - - (250 8524
$ BBIERGD 5 doooon  § - $ (3336587 § (1630003} $ 7153522
5 8845982 § 200000 § 403705 0§ (6337 § (15852113 § 7858149

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Non-major Governmental Funds

CITY OF MARINA

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cash and Investments

Cash (Restricted)

Accruetd Receivables

Motes Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds (Short Term)
Unearned Revenue
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavatiable Revenue - CDBG Business and Home Loans

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Monspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITSS

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES ARD

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement

-62.-

Mational
Parks
chBG Recreation
Housing Streets Services
$ 3.472 5 226474 5 437840
z 134 172
76,500 - -
§ 79974 $ 220608 § 4382
3 - % 8B45 % 234
S - § B8e45 8 234
5 7EE00 % 3
$ -8 - & -
3474 220,963 437778
$ 3474 5 220863 5 437,778
$ 79974 5 220808 2§ 43B012
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Special Revenue Funds

Marina Monterey Cypress

Woods Seabreeze  Bay Estates Cove I CFI 2007-2

Ass'm't Ass'm't Ass'm't Ass'm't Locke-

PEG District District District District Paddon
152,012 § $ 1441 S 3354 § 4,535 § 11,059
28.003 1 1 3 6
180,015 % 3 1442 & 3355 % 4,838  § 11865
21081 % 5 -8 118 % 386 5 1,508
21061 § $ - 3 118 & 386 & 1508

$ 3 - $ - $ $
- % $ - % -8 - 5 -
- 1,447 3,237 4152 10,367
158 064 - -
155064 § $ 1442 8 3237 & 4,152 5§ 10,367
180015 & $ {442 § 3355 § 4538 § 11,985
{cortinued;
B2
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Capital Projects

CITY OF MARINA

Non-major Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2015

Debt Service Funds

City General Marina Marina 215G
Park Ligrary Library Ohligation Landing Greens Refunding
Adrport Fatilities Construction Bends Bonds Bends Bonds Bonds Totals
ASSETS
Cash and Investments § 24403 % [E R g 3 - 8 - 8 - & -8 §69,250
Cash (Restricted) 377188 61,128 47 081 55,854 489,001
Accrued Receivables 5 1 - 121 Vil el 143 BB
Notes Receivable - - . - - - 76,500
TOTAL ASSETS B 4408 S &0f 8 $ § 323068 5 81364 § 47102 0§ BBRIT  § 14835
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payabie $ 10947 % $ $ § $ $ 3 § 42,173
Bue o Other Funds (ST}
Unearned Revenue - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 10,141 § 5 $ $ § $ $ § 42,173
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - CDBG Loans 3 § § ) $ § 3 $ 3 76,500
FUND BALANCES {DEFICITS)
Nonspendable $ - % -8 $ $ -8 - 5 - & - 8 -
Restricted 14,267 801 322,308 51,154 47 432 58,837 1,185,883
Commitied 158,864
Assignied -
Unassigned - - . - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCEs (DEFICITSY 8 14267 & 801 & - ¥ $ 322308 & A1t S 471627 0§ BBBYT S 14447
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES AND
FUND BALANCES {DEFICITS) § 24408 % g1 8 $ $ 322309 8 BifM B 4702 5 BREYY & 14BIS0
(concluded}

The notes fo financial statements are an Integral part of this statement

H3
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CITY OF MARINA

Non-major Governmental Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
investment Earnings
Grants, Service Charges & Other Program Revenues
Other Revenue
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Pubtic Works
Esenomic & Community Development
Recreation & Cultural Services
Public Improvements
Dabt Service - Principal Retirement
Debt Service - Interest & Faes
Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER {UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Long-Term Debl Proceads & Bond Premium
Long-Term Debt Defeasement & Band Pramium
Interfurnd Transfers In
Interfund Transfers(Gut)

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses}

EXCESS OF REVENUES
AMD OTHER SQURCES OVER {UNDER}
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCES - ENO OF YEAR

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement

B4

Special Revenue Funds

National

Parks

Recreation

Bireets Services
$ 681,568 -
6527 835
- 102,054
3,408 -
5 685504 102 889
5 612024 -
- 2413
$ 612024 24513
$ 73,580 100,476
5 - .
(109.453) (50,808}
S (109,453) {50,808}
$  (35.873) 43,671
250 836 388,107
§ 220963 437778
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Speciai Revenue Funds

Marina Monterey Cypress CFD

Woods Seabrecze  Bay Estates Cove it 26072

Ass'ti Ass'm't Ass'm't Ass'm't Locke-

PEG District District District District Paddon
$ -5 -8 -8 - - s -
- - 1 o 5 41
107.433 - 8,706 12,379 19,409 -

$ 107433 3§ - % 6707 $ 12384 19,414 $ 41
% - 8 - 5 4200 8§ BzI6t 11,653 § 11312

79,430 - - - - -
§ 79430 % - 4200 F 8267 11,653 S 11312
§  BO03 % -8 25807 % 4123 7,761 $ (11 E71
$ - -8 -8 - - s .

- 1,395 - - -

{37508 - {1,740} {2,871} (2,751) -
$ 13IE0T 5 1.38% S {17407 § (28713 (2,754 § -
& p425% % 1398 0§ 767 % 1.2s2 EGH § (11.271)

134,711 {1.395) 675 1,985 (858} 21638
$ 168964 § - § 1442 5 3237 4,162 S 10,367
feontinued}
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CITY OF MARINA

Non-major Governmental Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Capital Projects Funds

Debt Service Funds

City General Marina Marina 2015 GO
Pari Library Library Qbligation tanding Greens Refunding
Airpert Facililies Construction Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Totals

REVENUES
Taxes 5 - % g - % 431B18 0§ 71816 S -8 - 0% 4086 5 1,100,288
investment Earnings [ 3 1.208 G3 591 100 146 173 3,855
Gramnts  Service Chrgs & Other Program Revenuss G402 - B - 20,000 - E 367 413
Other Revenue - - - - 3,409

$ 9 a5k % 5 3 s 5 A31.881 S TRENF 8 000§ M6 3 2,158 § 1,584,965
EXPENDITURES
Pubilic Works & C-1 § $ - § - & - 3 - S 847 451
Economic & Community Development - - - - B 79,430
Recreation & Cutturat Services - - - - 2,413
Public nprovements 164 751 - - - - 194,751
Debt Semwvice - Principal Retirement 40,000 50,000 - 58 000 - 245 000
Debt Service - Interast & Fees BEE 965 17,360 - 4,808 - 680,234

$ 194.751 % - 3 & BUS 965 & B7.360 $ - § 158,908 % & 1757279
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 3 95,2677 § 5 $ 1,209 § {(174.084) § 5147 % 200100 § (158.762) & 5,169 B {192,314}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Long-Term Debt Froceeds & Bond Premium 3 -8 5 3 7851870 0§ - % -8 - 8 - & 7851970

Long-Term Debt Defeasernent & Bond Premium $ (8,251,286} & (2.400) {B 253,688}

interfund Transfers in 4.500 - - 408,176 - - - 53,678 528740

Interfund Transfers(Out} - {1,407 (873.928) 156,213 (1187} (2.589) {(1,181) . (1,107,630}

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) $ G500 % (1401) & B7EE08 & a7.a5% % (1187 & (2,3808) § (3581) § 53678 b3 {980.606;
EXCESS QF REVENUES

AND OTHER SOURCES OVER {UNDER}

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 0 (BG7ETY § L.388) & BTETS 8 q2zranmy § 0 3980 & 17711 § (163.343) % B3E37  §  {1.172.820%
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 44 034 2197 B2 118 #2t A3 318,319 43,443 210.445 - 2,514,291
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR g 14287 % 801 § & $ 222308 §  B1984 & 4V 107§ 58837 % 1341373

feoncluded)

The notes fo financial statements are an integral part of this statement

-B5-
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CITY OF MARINA

Fiduciary Funds

Combining Scheduie of Net Position

June 30, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivaients
Prepaid Expenditures
Accrued Receivables
Advances {to}from Other Funds, Nef
Long-Term Receivable - Stlate of California
Capilal Assets - Land
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABHITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payables
Due to City of Marina (Long Term)
Bonds Payable:
Due Within One Year
Bue in More Than Cne Year
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes Received in Advance

Net Position {Held in Trust for Successor Agency to the
Marina Redevelopment Agency

Successor Successor
Successor Agency Agency
Agency Obligation Housing
COperating Retirement Assets
Fund Fund Fund Total

$ - 3 959,057 % 105,321 1,064,378
- 11,638 - 11,638

- 374 23 367

B {164,747) 164,747 -

- 480,000 - 490,000

- - 900,000 900,000

$ - 5 1208322 § 1,170,081 2,466,413
$ B 3 23680 0§ 868 3,218
192 - 192

B 328,713 - 328,713

- 20,000 - 20,000

. 470,000 - 470,000

$ - 5 821,265 8 858 822.123
3 - $ 696,137 § - 696,137
$ - $ (221080 § 1168233 848,153

The notes io financial staterents are an integral part of this statement

-BE-
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CiTY OF MARINA

Fiduciary Funds
Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Successor Successor
Successor Agency Agency
Agency Obligaticn Housing
Operating Retirement Assets
Fund Fund Fund Total
ADDITIONS
Property Taxes {Nel of DOF True-Up Adiustment] $ - § 1,207.855 - § 1,207,988
levestment Barnings - 1.379 79 1,458
Property Tax in-Lieu - 28,139 - 28139
Transfer from City of Marina 49 544 - - 48,544
iderfund Transfers - - -
Tolal Revenues kS 49 544 $  1,238473 79 $ 1,288,096
DEDUCTIONS
ROPS Payments:
Program Costs $ 49,544 §  1.088.862 . $ 1,108,206
l.egat & Professional Fees - 31,648 1,014 32,662
Employee Costs - 181,884 8.562 160,456
Qccupancy & Operating Cosls - GB. 742 - 66,742
Total Expenditures % 448 544 & 1,308 0846 9,578 $ 1,368,066
Change in Net Position $ - & {70,473) {9.,497) 3 [79,970)
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR - {150.807) 1,178,730 1,028,123
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 5 - $221.080) 1,168,233 $ 948,163

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement

BT-
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January 15, 2016 ltem No. 8](3)

Honorable Mayor and Members City Council Meeting
of the Marina City Council of January 20, 2016

CITY COUNCIL CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 2016-,
RECEIVING AND FILING CITY OF MARINA SINGLE AUDIT REPORT
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REQUEST:

It is requested that the City Council consider:

1. Adopting Resolution No. 2016-, receiving and filing City of Marina single audit report
for Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015.

BACKGROUND:

In conjunction with performing the audit of the City’s financial statements, the City independent
auditors, Mann, Urrutia, Nelson CPAs, also audited the compliance of the City with the various
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of City’s major
federal programs (federally funded) for the year ended June 30, 2015.

The audit involves examinations and tests of the underlying controls, fiscal records and financial
transactions relevant to the City’s major federal programs. The purpose of the audit is to
determine whether in the auditor’s opinion, the City is compliant, in all material respects, with
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 for each of the City’s major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015.

ANALYSIS:

The City’s Federal Program selected for the FY 2014-15 OMB Circular A-133 Audit was the
U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Assistance to Firefighters Grant. The auditors had no
findings and no questioned costs for Federal Awards as defined in paragraph 510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133.

In the Mann, Urrutia, Nelson CPAs report on compliance with requirements applicable to each
major program internal control over compliance and on the schedule of expenditures of Federal
awards in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, the summary of auditors’ results include:

1. An unqualified report was issued by the auditors on the financial statements of the auditee.

2. The results of our audit disclosed no significant deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting. There were no material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting.

3. The audit disclosed no non-compliance which is material to the financial statements of the
auditee.

4. There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over the
major program of the auditee.
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5. An unqualified report was issued by auditors on compliance for the major program.

6. The audit disclosed no audit findings required by the auditors to be reported under paragraph
510(a) of OMB Circular A-133.

7. The major program of the auditee were Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing
Grants (CFD A 16.710), Airport Improvement Program (CFDA 20.106), and Highway Planning
and Construction (CFD 20.205).

8. The dollar threshold used to distinguish Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.

9. The auditee was considered a low risk auditee for the year ended June 30, 2015 for purposes
of major program determination.

In conclusion, the auditors had no findings and no questioned costs in the Single Audit Report
(“EXHIBIT A”).

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

CONCLUSION:
This request is submitted for City Council consideration and possible action.

Respectfully submitted,

Lauren Lai, CPA
Finance Director
City of Marina

REVIEWED/CONCUR:

Layne P. Long
City Manager
City of Marina
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RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA
RECEIVING AND FILING THE CITY OF MARINA SINGLE AUDIT REPORT FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

WHEREAS, in conjunction with performing the audit of the City’s financial statements, the City
independent auditors, Mann, Urrutia, Nelson CPAs, also audited the compliance of the City with
the various types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of City’s
major federal programs (federally funded) for the year ended June 30, 2015, and;

WHEREAS, the audit involves examinations and tests of the underlying controls, fiscal records
and financial transactions relevant to the City’s major federal programs, and;

WHEREAS, the purpose of the audit is to determine whether, in the auditor’s opinion, the City is
compliant, in all material respects, with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 for each of the
City’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015, and,;

WHEREAS, the City’s Federal Program selected for the FY 2014-15 OMB Circular A-133
Audit were Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants (CFD A 16.710), ),
Airport Improvement Program (CFDA 20.106), and Highway Planning and Construction (CFD
20.205) and,

WHEREAS, the auditors had no findings and no questioned costs for Federal Awards as defined
in paragraph 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133, and;

NOW, THEREFORE IT BE RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Marina receive
and file the City of Marina single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 (“EXHIBIT A”).

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Marina at a regular meeting duly
held on the 20" day of January 2016, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk
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EXHIBIT A

CITY OF MARINA
SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS AND SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2015

Mann, Urrutia, Nelson CPAs & Associates, LLP
2515 Venture Oaks Way, Suite 135
Sacramento, California 95833
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CITY OF MARINA
SINGLE AUDIT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control
over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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GLENDALE o ROSEVILLE e SACRAMENTO e SOUTH LAKE TAHOE o KAUAI, HAWAII

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council of
the City of Marina
Marina, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Marina, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Marina’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 6, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Marina’s internai control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of City of Marina’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Marina's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Marina’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

T\ e A CPAS

Sacramento, California
January 6, 2016
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GLENDALE e ROSEVILLE o SACRAMENTO e SOUTH LAKE TAHOE KAUAL, HAWAII

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the City Council of
the City of Marina
Marina, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Marina’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of Marina’s
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. The City of Marina’s major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Marina’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the City of Marina’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Marina’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Marina, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Marina, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the City of Marina’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Marina’s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.p However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marina, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Marina’s
basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated January 6, 2016, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

7o Ot NA 0D

Sacramento, California
January 6, 2016
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CITY OF MARINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Pass-Through
Entity Identifying

Federal CFDA Number/Grant Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Program Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Programs:
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing
Grants 16.710 $ 269,240
Community Oriented Policing Services Secure Our
Schools Program 16.710 4,248
Total U.S. Department of Justice 273,488
U.S Department of Transportation
Direct Programs:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 115,699
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 1,971,331
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 2,087,030
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 2,360,518
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CITY OF MARINA
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1: REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal financial
assistance programs of the City of Marina. The City of Marina reporting entity is defined in Note 1 of the City's
Financial Statement Report. All federal awards received directly from federal agencies as well as federal awards
passed through other government agencies are included on the schedule. When federal awards were received from a
pass-through entity, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards shows, if available, the identifying number
assigned by the pass-through entity.

NOTE 2: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the City and is
presented on accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The information in this
schedule is presented on the accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree, in all material
respects, to amounts reported within the City's basic financial statements. Federal award revenues are reported
principally in the City's financial statements as intergovernmental revenues in the governmental funds.

NOTE 4: CLAIMS

The City of Marina has received federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the

Federal Government pass-through entity. Although such audits could result in expenditure disallowance under grant
terms, any required reimbursements are not expected to be material which have not already been recorded.
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CITY OF MARINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

Identification of Major Programs:
Highway Planning and Construction, CFDA 20.205
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Findings relating to the financial statements which are required to be reported in
accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Findings and questioned costs for Federal Awards, which includes audit findings and
defined in section 510(a)

Unmodified
No

None reported

No

No
None reported

Unmodified

No

$300,000

Yes

No

No
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CITY OF MARINA
SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2015

There were no findings to report for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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CITY OF MARINA
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
June 30, 2014

There were no findings reported for the year ended June 30, 2014.

231



January 13, 2016 Item No._9a

Honorable Mayor and Members City Council Meeting
of the Marina City Council of January 20, 2016

CITY COUNCIL TO RECEIVE STAFF REPORT AND ADOPT AN URGENCY
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA
AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 17 (ZONING) TO ADD SECTION
SECTION 17.04.210.5 TO DEFINE “CULTIVATION OF MARIJUANA,”
SECTION 17.04.210.7 TO DEFINE COMMERCIAL CANNABIS ACTIVITY AND
17.06.020, SUBSECTIONS P AND Q TO PROHIBIT COMMERCIAL CANNABIS
ACTIVITY AND THE CULTIVATION OF MARIJUANA IN ALL ZONES
EXCEPT FOR THE CULTIVATION OF NO MORE THAN TWENTY (20)
PLANTS BY QUALIFIED PATIENTS WITH AN IDENTIFICATION CARD, AT
HIS OR HER PERSONAL RESIDENCE

REQUEST:
It is requested that the City Council:

1. Receive a report; and,

2. Amend the Marina Municipal Code by urgency ordinance to:
a. Add a definition for “Cultivation of Marijuana;”
b. Add a definition for “Commercial Cannabis Activity;”

c. Ban Commercial Cannabis Activity and the Cultivation of Marijuana in all zones except
for the cultivation of no more than 20 plants by a Qualified Patient with Identification Card,
at his or her own residence; and

3. Direct Staff to bring this issue back to the City Council in one year, for review and to determine
whether the ban is still warranted and has properly functioned, whether there have been any
changes in state law, which impact on a ban in the City and whether a permanent ban or further
regulation or licensing is warranted.

BACKGROUND:

The City Council, at the City Council meeting on January 5, 2016, directed staff to return to the
Council with an ordinance which did not ban delivery of marijuana and “prohibited the cultivation
of more than twenty plants, ten of which may be mature on a resident’s own rented or owned home,
inside the dwelling or on land included in rented or owned property, per resident holding a valid
medical marijuana card and residing there.” Further, staff was to immediately begin the process
of coming up with a more comprehensive ordinance through the normal planning process.
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ANALYSIS:
An Ordinance which meets the direction of the City Council and the City Council’s intent, as
expressed at the last meeting on the subject, is attached as Exhibit “A.”

This Ordinance is based on an ordinance recently adopted by the City of Livermore. A ban on
cultivation is required to retain local control. Livermore used part of the recent legislation, (Cal.
Bus. & Prof.Code § 19300.5) to define “Commercial Cannabis Activity.” “Commercial cannabis
activity” includes cultivation, possession, manufacture, processing, storing, laboratory testing,
labeling, transporting, distribution, or sale of medical cannabis or a medical cannabis product,
except as set forth in Section 19319, related to qualifying patients and primary caregivers.” Section
19319 exempts 1) “A qualified patient, as defined in Section 11362.7 of the Health and Safety
Code, who cultivates, possesses, stores, manufactures, or transports cannabis exclusively for his
or her personal medical use....” 2) “ A primary caregiver who cultivates, possesses, stores,
manufactures, transports, donates, or provides cannabis exclusively for the personal medical
purposes of no more than five specified qualified patients for whom he or she is the primary
caregiver within the meaning of Section 11362.7 of the Health and Safety Code, but who does not
receive remuneration for these activities....”

All Commercial Cannabis Activity was banned by Livermore. | understand that this was also the
intent of the City Council, so I included this provision as an elegant way to ensure that there is no
commercial activity in Marina, using the State definition, and such activity will not be licensed by
the State.

The Marina Ordinance then contains an exception to allow a certain limited number of plants for
personal use, as dictated by the City Council.

There has been a concern expressed as to whether the City can legally limit the amount of plants.
Livermore used California Health & Safety Code Sec. 11362.77 to set the limits on plants. (For
your information, that Section provides that “(a) A qualified patient or primary caregiver may
possess no more than eight ounces of dried marijuana per qualified patient. In addition, a qualified
patient or primary caregiver may also maintain no more than six mature or 12 immature marijuana
plants per qualified patient.“(b) If a qualified patient or primary caregiver has a doctor's
recommendation that this quantity does not meet the qualified patient's medical needs, the qualified
patient or primary caregiver may possess an amount of marijuana consistent with the patient's
needs.““(c) Counties and cities may retain or enact medical marijuana guidelines allowing qualified
patients or primary caregivers to exceed the state limits set forth in subdivision (a).”) Other cities
such as Oakland and San Diego, set specific limits on the amounts of plants, which are different
from those contained in the Health & Safety Code. Multiple counties set limits on the number of
plants.

The Supreme Court decision in People v. Kelly, 47 Cal.4™ 1008 (2010), has been widely
misinterpreted to imply that the limits no longer apply, and that patients can therefore grow as
much as they want. In fact, the Court’s decision lets the police arrest anyone who exceeds the State
guidelines. The only thing it disallows is for the guidelines to be used as a basis for conviction in
criminal trials. In the very recent decision Kirby v. City. of Fresno, 242 Cal. App. 4th 940 (2015),
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a provision in the city’s ordinance was stuck down because it classified the cultivation of medical
marijuana as a misdemeanor. The Court found that this is “preempted by California’'s extensive
statutory scheme addressing crimes, defenses and immunities relating to marijuana. Among other
things, the attempt to criminalize possession and cultivation is not consistent with the obligation
section 11362.71, subdivision (e) imposes on local officials not to arrest certain persons possessing
or cultivating marijuana.” Therefore, as | stated at the last meeting, the only method the City has
to enforce these ordinances is by an administrative citation. The Ordinance provides that the
sections shall only be criminally enforced.

It is noted that subdivision (c) of section 11362.77 states that local governments may “enact
medical marijuana guidelines allowing qualified patients or primary caregivers to exceed the state
limits set forth in subdivision (a).” This Ordinance, for the most part, exceeds medical marijuana
guidelines, by allowing additional plants. If this part of the Ordinance were to be challenged, the
Ordinance specifically provides that “[f] any part of this ordinance is held to be invalid, unlawful,
or unconstitutional, it shall not affect the validity of any other part of the ordinance.” Further, the
ban on Commercial Cannabis Activity would remain in place. It essentially serves as stop-gap, if
limits were challenged.

As set forth in the previous staff report, the findings can be made based upon the above stated, that
an urgency ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health safety and
welfare. The facts constituting the emergency are that the City must adopt a land use regulation
prohibiting the cultivation of medical marijuana that is in effect by March 1, 2016, or the State
will become the sole licensing authority for the cultivation of medical marijuana. The Urgency
Ordinance will prohibit the cultivation of medical marijuana, except as expressly stated, until such
time as the City can take the proper steps to enact a permanent ban or do otherwise, as warranted.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fiscal impact is unknown. Although there may be a minor tax revenue benefit if medical
marijuana were cultivated or distributed within the City and then taxed, this benefit is minimized
by the cost to regulate, issue licenses. Further, there is of an impact on police services if the uses
are wholly banned.

CONCLUSION:

It this therefore requested that the City Council enact an urgency ordinance, in the form as attached
or as otherwise required by the City Council until further analysis can be prepared and considered
by the Planning Commission and City Council.

Respectfully submitted,

Deborah Mall
Assistant City Attorney
City of Marina
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ORDINANCE NO. 2016 -

AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA
AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 17 (ZONING) TO ADD SECTION SECTION
17.04.210.5 TO DEFINE “CULTIVATION OF MARIJUANA,” SECTION 17.04.210.7 TO
DEFINE COMMERCIAL CANNABIS ACTIVITY AND 17.06.020, SUBSECTIONS P AND Q
TO PROHIBIT COMMERCIAL CANNABIS ACTIVITY AND THE CULTIVATION OF
MARIJUANA IN ALL ZONES EXCEPT FOR THE CULTIVATION OF NO MORE THAN
TWENTY (20) PLANTS BY QUALIFIED PATIENTS WITH AN IDENTIFICATION CARD, AT
HIS OR HER PERSONAL RESIDENCE
-000-

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS, in October 2015, the California Legislature enacted the Medical Marijuana
Regulation and Safety Act (MMRSA) for the licensure and regulation of medical marijuana. Local
authority remains intact under the law. All medical marijuana businesses (dispensary sales, delivery

services, cultivation, or transport) must have a State license;

WHEREAS, under the MMRSA, if a city does not have an ordinance in place prohibiting the
cultivation of marijuana either expressly or otherwise under the principles of permissive zoning, or
chooses not to administer a conditional program, then commencing on March 1, 2016, the State
Department of Food and Agriculture will be the sole licensing authority for medical marijuana

cultivation applicants;

WHEREAS, the City operates under the principles of permissive zoning, in which any use not

enumerated in the code is presumptively prohibited;

WHEREAS, under the MMRSA, if the City does not condition the cultivation of marijuana
within its jurisdiction, cultivation of marijuana will be permitted with only a State license. The City’s
intent is to condition the cultivation of marijuana so as to be able to retain local control over the

cultivation of marijuana within its jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Marina Police Department, Commercial Cannabis Activity and
the cultivation of marijuana, except for on a limited basis by “Qualified Patient,” with an
“Identification Card,” as defined in California Health and Safety Code Section 11362.7, impacts
upon the public health, welfare and safety of the citizens of the City of Marina for the following
reasons: Other California cities have experienced an increase in police services associated with
commercial or large scale marijuana cultivation, processing and distribution activities. Marijuana and
the cash it generates are commodities that are highly sought after and any type of commercial or large

scale marijuana distribution leads to illegal activity to obtain marijuana and cash. Some of the illegal
1
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activities associated with this are: illegal sales and distribution of marijuana; trespassing; theft; violent
robberies; and, burglary. Additionally, large marijuana cultivation and processing sites consistently
result in quality of life issues/complaints in the areas where these activities occurs. This can lead to
additional police calls for service and potentially calls for service from other City departments. The
strong smell of marijuana creates an attractive nuisance, alerting persons to the location of the plants,

creating a risk of various types of criminal activity.

WHEREAS, the Attorney General’s August 2008 Guidelines for the Security and Non-
Diversion of Marijuana Grown for Medical Use recognizes that the cultivation or other concentration
of marijuana in any location or premises without adequate security increases risk that nearby homes
or businesses may be negatively impacted by nuisance activity such as loitering or crime. Based on
the Attorney General’s analysis and the experiences of other California cities, the Police Department
would need to provide a higher level of patrol in the areas where large scale or commercial amounts
of marijuana are cultivated, processed and distributed, thus taking valuable time away from other
areas of the City. Additionally, the Department would need to set intensive Crime Prevention through
Environmental Design requirements on these businesses and do higher levels of follow up to ensure

compliance.

WHEREAS, the cultivation of large amounts of marijuana in a small city such as Marina, in
neighborhoods with usually small lots constitutes a public nuisance due to the smell, degradation of

the environment, serious fire dangers and excessive use of electricity;

WHEREAS, the City of Marina reasserts the findings made by the Monterey County Board
for Supervisors for this County that the “...cultivation of medical marijuana has also been associated
with serious harmful effects in areas where they are located, to owners of property in such areas, and
to people living, visiting, conducting business or otherwise present in the area, as reported by other
California counties and cities. Harmful effects at both outdoor and indoor cultivation facilities have
included an increase in criminal activity because of the high monetary value of the marijuana plants,
adverse environmental impacts, interference with farming practices, fire from grow light systems,

extensive energy consumption and strong offensive odors”;

WHEREAS, the proposed action is not a “Project” under the California Environmental Protection
Act (CEQA Guidelines Section 15378) and has no potential for causing a significant impact on the

environment and therefore is otherwise exempt under the General Rule (Section 15061(b)(3)).
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WHEREAS, there is a current and immediate threat to the public health, safety and welfare
presented by the recent enactment of the MMRSA, and the potential for cultivation of large amounts
of marijuana or commercial operations of the cultivation of marijuana, to occur prior to the
establishment of zoning regulations under normal planning and zoning processes of the City.
Moreover, as discussed above, the cultivation of medical marijuana poses a serious fire risk to the
residents of the community. The City Council finds that the immediate preservation of the public
health, safety and welfare require an interim ordinance be enacted prior to an actual ordinance,
pursuant to Government Code Sec. 65858 and take place immediately upon adoption, and its urgency

is hereby declared.

NOW THEREFORE, the Marina City Council declares as follows:

1. Section 17.04.210.5 Added. The Municipal Code is hereby amended by the

addition of Section 17.04.210.5 to read as follows: ‘“’Marijuana Cultivation’ means the

planting, growing, harvesting, drying or processing of marijuana plants or any part thereof,

and any and all associated business and/or operational activities”;

2. _Section 17.04.210.7 Added. The Municipal Code is hereby amended by the

addition of Section 17.04.210.7 to read as follows: ‘“’Commercial Cannabis Activity’ is as

defined by subpart (k) of California Business and Professions Code section 19300.5”;

3. Section 17.06.020, Subsection (P) Added. The Municipal Code is hereby amended by the
addition of Section 17.06.020, Subsection (P) to read as follows: “’Commercial Cannabis

Activity as a Prohibited Use and/or Activity.  Commercial Cannabis Activity by any

person or entity, including clinics, collectives, cooperatives and dispensaries, is prohibited in
all zones within the City’s jurisdictional limits. No permit, whether conditional or otherwise,
shall be issued for the establishment of such activity. Any Commercial Cannabis Activity that
takes place in violation of this provision is unlawful, and is hereby declared a public nuisance.
Nothing in this Chapter is intended to, nor shall it be construed to, make legal any Commercial
Cannabis activity that is allowed or otherwise prohibited under California law. Nothing in
this Chapter is intended to, nor shall it be construed to, preclude any landlord from limiting or
prohibiting Marijuana Cultivation by its tenants. This Chapter shall not be criminally

enforced.” and,
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4. Section 17.06.020, Subsection (Q) Added.; The Municipal Code is hereby amended by the

addition of Section 17.06.020, Subsection (Q) to read as follows: ‘“’Marijuana Cultivation”

is a Prohibited Use and/or Activity, Except for ‘Marijuana Cultivation of Not More than

Twenty (20) Plants by a “Qualified Patient” with an “Identification Card” on a Property

on which He or She Resides, for a Limited Non-Commercial Purpose .

Marijuana Cultivation by any person or entity, including clinics, collectives, cooperatives and
dispensaries, is prohibited in all zones within the City’s jurisdictional limits, except as set
forth herein. No permit, whether conditional or otherwise, shall be issued for the
establishment of such activity, except that a “Qualified Patient,” with an “Identification Card,”
as defined in California Health and Safety Code Section 11362.7 may cultivate not more than
twenty (20) plants, ten (10) of which may be mature, per each “Qualified Patient” with an
“Identification Card,” upon property he or she rents or owns and inhabits, either inside the
dwelling or on land included in such rented or owned property. Nothing in this Chapter is
intended to, nor shall it be construed to, preclude any landlord from limiting or prohibiting

Marijuana Cultivation by its tenants. This Chapter shall not be criminally enforced.”

5. Validity of Ordinance. If any part of this ordinance is held to be invalid, unlawful, or

unconstitutional, it shall not affect the validity of any other part of the ordinance.

6. Effective Date. This ordinance is adopted as an urgency ordinance for the immediate

preservation of the public peace, health and safety within the meaning of Government
Code Sec. 65858(b) and therefore shall be passed immediately upon its introduction and

shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by a minimum 4/5 vote.

7. Posting of Ordinance. Within 15 days after the passage of this ordinance, the City Clerk

shall cause it to be posted in the three public places designated by resolution of the City
Council.

The foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted at a duly held meeting of the City Council of the
City of Marina held on the 20" day of January 2016 by the following vote:

AYES, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOES, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN, COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor
ATTEST:

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk
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January 13, 2016 Item No. 11a

Honorable Mayor and Members City Council Meeting
of the Marina City Council of January 20, 2016

CITY COUNCIL TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO 2016- TO AMEND THE
CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT TO INCREASE
SALARY AND BENEFITS, AUTHORIZE SIGNATURE BY THE MAYOR,
APPROVE AMENDMENTS OR ADDITIONS TO THE SALARY PLAN
AND MAKE THE NECESSARY BUDGETARY ADJUSTMENTS.

REQUEST:
It is requested that the City Council:

1. Amend the March 29, 2013 Employment Agreement with the City Manager, attached as
“EXHIBIT “A” to:

a. Increase the salary of the City Manager to seventeen thousand five hundred eighty-five and
33 cents ($17,585.33) per month;

b. Increase the accrual and credit for personal leave and administrative as if the Employee
had been employed for sixteen years;

a. Givethe City Manager a vehicle allowance of $400 per month for the use and maintenance
of a private vehicle, in lieu of providing a city owned and maintained vehicle;

2. Authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Employment Agreement, in the form
attached as “EXHIBIT “B”;

3. Authorize an Amendment to the Salary Plan for the City Manager;
4. Authorize Staff to make the necessary budgetary adjustments.

BACKGROUND:

The City Council met in closed sessions in November 2015 and as part of the City Manager’s
performance evaluation it evaluated whether any adjustments in salary and benefits were
warranted. The City Council met on January 12, 2015, as part of closed session Labor Negotiations
with the City Manager. The City Council now seeks to amend City Manager’s employment
contract in open session and enter into an Amendment to the City Manager’s Employment
Agreement to increase the salary and benefits, as set forth above.

ANALYSIS:

The City completed a review of all city job classifications within our competitive market. The
City’s competitive labor market includes but is not necessarily limited to the following cities:
Seaside, Salinas, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Hollister, Gilroy, Morgan Hill, Paso Robles, San Luis
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Obispo, Watsonville and Santa Cruz. Additionally the City has reviewed the internal alignment
with these job classifications. At the regular meeting of January 5, 2016 and a special meeting on
January 12, 2016, council took action to align salaries for multiple positions, including the Police
Chief and Recreational and Cultural Services Director.

The proposed salary change is to bring the City Manager’s salary to the middle of our competitive
market; maintain a reasonable differential above the next highest paid City official; and take into
consideration job performance. This action is consistent with Paragraph 3a of the 2013
Employment Agreement for City Manager.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The 2015-2016 Budget included unallocated, ongoing revenues of $244,000. In setting the budget
council acknowledged the need for staffing adjustment and labor negotiations.

Respectfully submitted,

City Attorney’s Office
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RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARINA AMENDING THE
CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT TO INCREASE SALARY AND
BENEFITS, AUTHORIZE SIGNATURE BY THE MAYOR, APPROVE AMENDMENTS OR
ADDITIONS TO THE SALARY PLAN AND MAKE THE NECESSARY BUDGETARY
ADJUSTMENTS.

WHEREAS, the City Council met in closed sessions in November 2015 and as part of the City
Manager’s performance evaluation it evaluated whether any adjustments in salary and benefits
were warranted; and

WHEREAS, the City Council met on January 12, 2015, as part of closed session Labor
Negotiations with the City Manager; and

WHEREAS, The City Council now seeks to amend City Manager’s employment contract in
open session and enter into an Amendment to the City Manager’s Employment Agreement to
increase the salary and benefits, as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, The City completed a review of all city job classifications within our competitive
market. The City’s competitive labor market includes but is not necessarily limited to the following
cities: Seaside, Salinas, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Hollister, Gilroy, Morgan Hill, Paso Robles, San
Luis Obispo, Watsonville and Santa Cruz. Additionally the City has reviewed the internal
alignment with these job classifications. At the regular meeting of January 5, 2016 and a special
meeting on January 12, 2016, council took action to align salaries for multiple positions, including
the Police Chief and Recreational and Cultural Services Director; and

WHEREAS, the proposed salary change is to bring the City Manager’s salary to the middle of our
competitive market; maintain a reasonable differential above the next highest paid City official;
and take into consideration job performance. This action is consistent with Paragraph 3a of the
2013 Employment Agreement for City Manager; and

WHEREAS, the 2015-2016 Budget included unallocated, ongoing revenues of $244,000. In
setting the budget council acknowledged the need for staffing adjustment and labor negotiations

NOW, THERE FOR IT BE RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby:
1. Amend the March 29, 2013 Employment Agreement with the City Manager, attached
as “Exhibit “A” to:
a. Increase the salary of the City Manager to seventeen thousand five hundred
eighty-five and 33 cents ($17,585.33) per month;

b. Increase the accrual and credit for personal leave and administrative as if the
Employee had been employed for sixteen years;

c. Give the City Manager a vehicle allowance of $400 per month for the use and
maintenance of a private vehicle, in lieu of providing a city owned and
maintained vehicle;
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Resolution No. 2016-
Page Two

2. Authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Employment Agreement, in
the form attached as “Exhibit “B”’;

3. Authorize an Amendment to the Salary Plan for the City Manager;

4. Authorize Staff to make the necessary budgetary adjustments.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Marina at a regular meeting duly
held on this 20" day of January 2016 by the following vote:

AYES, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
NOE, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSTAIN, COUNCIL MEMBERS:
ABSENT, COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Bruce C. Delgado, Mayor

ATTEST:

Anita Sharp, Deputy City Clerk
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EXHIBIT A

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT é y
FOR

CITY MANAGER

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on March 27, 2013, by and
between the City of Marina, a California charter city, hereinafter referred to as “City,”
and Layne P. Long, hereinafter referred to as “Employee,” as follows:

Recitals

The City requires the services of a City Manager and Employee is trained,
experienced and competent to properly perform the services of City Manager specified
herein.

Terms and Conditions

In consideration of the mutual provisions contained herein, City and Employee
agree to the following terms and conditions:

1. Scope of Services. Employee is hereby hired and rctained by the City to
serve as the City Manager, with the following duties and authority:

a) The City Manager shall be the chief executive officer of the City and shall
be responsible to the City Council for the proper administration of the affairs of the City.

b) The City Manager shall perform all of the duties of the City Manager as set
forth in Title 2, Chapter 2, Section 2.08.070 of the Marina Municipal Code, in the City of
Marina Personnel Manual and as otherwise legally required. The City Manager shall also
perform other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the City Council

may assign from time to time.

c) The City Council also designates the City Manager as the chief executive of
any other City-related legal entities, which could include financing authorities and joint
power authorities.

d) The City Manager shall administer and enforce policies established by the
City Council and promulgate rules and regulations as necessary to implement City
Council policies.

€) The City Manager is required to attend all meetings of the City Council,
unless excused by the Mayor, and take part in the discussion of all matters before the City
Council.
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f) The City Manager shall review all agenda documents before preparing the
agenda for any regular or special meeting of the City Council.

g) The City Manager shall direct the work of all City employees.

h) The City Manager shall exercise control of City government in emergencies
as authorized by the Municipal Code and California law.

2. Term. Employee will commence work on the services to be provided
hereunder on April 1, 2013, and shall serve until this Agreement is terminated as herein

set forth.

3. Compensation.

a) For the services to be performed under this Agreement, City shall pay
Employee a salary of fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) per month.

Employee’s salary shall have what the City Council determines is a reasonable
differential above the next highest paid City official. Compensation shall be evaluated by
the City Council on an annual basis and will include consideration of both merit and cost-
of-living increases provided to Department Directors and non-represented management
employees, as well as consideration of the competitive market compensation for city
managers in comparable cities at the time of performance evaluations.

b) Employee shall be classified as exempt under the Fair Labor Standards Act
and shall be a confidential employee for all purposes. Employee shall not be a member
of the Department Directors informal employees organization, but shall have the same
employee benefits as specified in the Department Directors’ informal employee
organization Memorandum of Understanding (“Directors MOU”), and any subsequent
modifications thereto as approved by the City Council, except as otherwise specifically
described in this Agreement or unless negotiated otherwise.

c) Accrual and credit for personal leave and administrative leave shall be as
provided for in the Directors MOU, and any subsequent modifications thereto approved
by the City Council, as if the Employee had been employed for six years. Employee
shall be credited with fifteen days of vacation upon reporting to work. Employee shall be
entitled to take off such municipal holidays as are recognized by the City.

d) City shall pay the full cost of Employee’s medical, dental and vision
insurance coverage for Employee and his dependents consistent with the terms and
conditions of the Directors MOU, and any subsequent modifications thereto approved by
the City Council. Provided, however, in the event that Employee negotiates on behalf of
the City any employee benefits as described in this subparagraph 3d, or in subparagraphs
3b and 3¢ above with the Department Directors, Employee shall then not automatically
be entitled to the same employee benefits as the Department Directors, but shall negotiate

2
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separately with the City Council for Employee’s similar benefits.

€) City will provide Employee with a group term life insurance policy in a
face amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) during the duration of his
employment with the City.

f) City shall provide to Employee a cellular telephone for Employee to use in
the course of his employment.

g) City shall provide Employee with the use of an existing city-maintained
vehicle, bearing identification as a city vehicle, for use in the course of his employment
and not for commuting or other personal use.

h)  City acknowledges that participation in local, state, regional and national
municipal city manager organizations by the Employee benefits the City and provides
professional development. The City agrees to pay Employee’s professional dues,
subscriptions and memberships in such organizations necessary for Employee to maintain
professional relationships, including ICMA, California City Manager’s Association and
other related professional associations. The City also agrees to provide Employee with
an annual atlocation to cover reasonable travel, conference registration, lodging, meals
and meeting expenses of these organizations, subject to reasonable budgetary limitations,
as approved by the City during the budget process. The Employee shall make an effort to
minimize cost to the City. The Employee may attend up to ten days of City-approved
professional development.

i) Employee will be enrolled in the City’s CalPERS plan, which has a benefit
formula for a new employee of two percent (2%) at age sixty two (62), with Employee as
a new member to pay the required percentage cost of the employer+employee
contribution per the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act.

J) City will pay the sum of $5,000.00 directly to the Employee for reasonable
expenses of moving Employee, his family and personal property from Utah to Marina,
California. This sum may be increased upon the written request of the Employee by
payment by the City to Employee of an additional amount equal to one months’ rent, or
at a maximum two months’ rent, of the family housing unit to be provided to Employee
per subparagraph 3k below, with a commensurate reduction (i.e., one or two months) in
the period of free housing therein provided by the City.

k) City will allow the Employee, during an interim period of six (6) months, to
have exclusive possession and use of a family dwelling residence in City-owned
property located within the residential community known as Abrams Park, for occupancy
by the Employee and his family, with the monthly rent for same paid by the City to the
Employee, beginning as soon as available and at a reasonable time close to the first day
of employment and terminating upon notice of the Employee, or six (6) months from the

3
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first day of occupancy, which six month period will include an initial temporary

residence in a hotel or motel in Marina for the approximately 8 days until the Abrams
Park residence is available to be moved into by Employee. Provided that if the Employee
elects to take one or two months’ rent to add to his payment for moving expenses, as .
described in subparagraph 3k above, then the six months’ period mentioned hereinabove
of rent paid by the City to Employee shall be reduced accordingly, i.e., to five or four
months. Provided further that if the Employee gives written notice to the City thirty days
prior to the termination of the initial six (or five or four) months’ period, that he requires
an extension of his term of occupancy, an extension can be granted for up to an additional
four (4) months, however during such extended period the City shall pay to Employee
only one-half of the rent charged for the unit by the City’s property management firm for
Abrams Park. In the event of termination of this Agreement, Employee shall vacate the
premises within sixty (60) days of the last date of employment, and no further notice will
be required from the City for termination of the tenancy.

D City agrees to reimburse Employee for reasonable job-related expenses
incurred in carrying out his duties as City Manager, subject to reasonable budgetary
restrictions and in accordance with applicable laws and City policies.

m)  No reduction of salary, compensation or other benefits of the Employee
shall occur, unless the City Council at any time during the course of this Agreement
reduces the salary or other employment or financial benefits of all Department Directors
of the City. In such event, the salary and benefits of the Employee, as set forth herein,
may be reduced in the same amount, at the sole discretion of the City Council.

n) Recognizing the fact that Employee at the time of execution of this
Agreement cannot obtain PERS Choice medical coverage for his family members
residing out-of-state, City will pay to Employee, until such time as (i) Employee’s family
dependents are residing in California and are eligible for PERS Choice coverage, or (ii)
August 31, 2013, whichever occurs first, a monthly in-lieu sum equal to a City
employee’s cafeteria plan benefit ($575.00) plus the City’s portion of the employee-only
PERS Choice cost ($263.25), paid one-half per pay period, toward Employee’s present
cost of family health care coverage.

4, Termination, Resignation and Severance Pay.

a) The City Council may, without cause, terminate Employee’s employment
as the City Manager by an affirmative vote of three fifths (3/5ths) of all members of the
City Council, upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to the Employee; provided,
however, that consideration of termination by the City Council may not occur within one
hundred and eighty (180) days after a General Municipal Election or Special Election
wherein a new member or members are elected to the City Council.

b) In the event this agreement is terminated by the City without cause, City
4
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shall pay Employee a lump sum cash payment severance as follows: nine months’ of
salary and benefits (in a lump sum of then-current health, dental and vision benefits) if
Employee is terminated without cause during the first year of employment (i.e., on or
before April 1, 2014); six months’ of salary and such benefits if the Employee is
terminated without cause during the second through fifth year of employment (i.e., from
April 1,2015 to April 1, 2018); and, four months’ of salary and such benefits if the
Employee is terminated without cause after the fifth year of employment (i.e., after April
1, 2018).

c) If Employee’s employment is terminated for cause by the City Council, or
for any of the reasons set forth below, Employee shall not be entitled to severance pay:

1. Intentional or willful failure to perform his lawful duties as set forth
herein

2. his death;

3. his incapacity or inability to perform his essential duties due to
physical or mental disabilities;

4.  willful destruction, theft, misappropriation or misuse of City

property;

5. intoxication on duty, whether by alcohol, marijuana or non-
prescriptive drugs;

6. inexcusable absence;

7. conviction of a felony or misdemeanor involving breach of the
public trust;

8. dishonest, fraud or misconduct in office;

9. violation of Government Code Section 1090, or violation of any

conflict of interest laws or regulations which a court or administrative agency finds
resulted in Employee or his immediate family receiving actual economic gain; and

10.  fraud or dishonesty in having secured his employment.

d) Employee agrees that in the event Employee's employment is terminated,
under no circumstances will Employee be able to contest the nature of Employee's at-will
employment status, nor will Employee be entitled to seek or obtain the remedy of
reinstatement in any administrative or legal forum. Employee agrees that the sole issue
for resolution upon termination of Employee's employment agreement will be the extent

5
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of severance pay and/or other payments due Employee as the result of services rendered
through the day of termination. Employee shall have no other right of action against the
City as it relates to termination and severance.

e) Pending the outcome of any dispute over the amount of severance pay, City
may withhold any severance sums due Employee.

f) In the event Employee voluntarily and without the official request of the
City resigns his position, Employee shall give written notice to the City at least thirty
days in advance of the final date of employment, unless the parties otherwise agree. In
the event Employee resigns, the severance pay provisions of paragraph 4.b. shall not

apply.

g) The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that California Government
Code Sections 53243-53243.4, inclusive, could under certain circumstances require the
Employee fully to reimburse City for funds provided, pursuant to this Agreement or
otherwise, by the City to Employee. The parties hereto agree that by attaching said
Sections hereto, marked Exhibit A, and by their incorporation herein by this reference,
said reimbursement obligations are fully applicable hereunder should any of the
conditions described in said Sections requiring reimbursement transpire.

5. Qutside Employment. Employee agrees to remain in the exclusive employ
of the City, accepting no other employment during the term of this Agreement, unless
permitted by Resolution of the City Council.

6. Performance Evaluations. City Council shall evaluate the performance of
Employee on the sixth month of employment and one year from the date of this contract,
which shall be the annual date of review. The evaluations shall be performed annually,
thereafter. The evaluations shall be written and shall be performed by the City Council,
as the City Council elects. A copy of the written evaluation shall be delivered to the
Employee and he shall have the right to respond orally or in writing to the evaluation.
Employee shall be responsible for providing annual written notice to the City Council of
the need to complete the evaluation process and shall agendize the closed session(s) for
discussion and preparation of the evaluation. Upon initial hire and annually thereafter,
the City Council and Employee shall define such goals and performance objectives that
they determine necessary for the proper operation of the City and in attainment of the
City Council’s policy objectives.

7. Indemnification. The City shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify the
Employee against any claim or demand or legal action, whether groundless or otherwise,
and any settlement or judgment and cost of defense, arising out of any alleged act or
omission occurring in the performance of his duties to the City. In its sole discretion, the
City may compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any
settlement or judgment rendered therefrom.
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8. Personnel Rules. Except as modified by this Agreement, Employee shall be
subject to and comply with the City Personnel Manual, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, including future changes as approved by the City Council.

9. Modification. This Agreement is not subject to amendment or modification
except by a writing signed by the parties hereto.

10.  Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the
parties with respect to the matters covered by this Agreement, and no other agreement,
statement or promise made by or to any party or by or to any employee, officer or agent
of any party, which is not contained in this Agreement, shall be binding or valid.

11.  Attorney's Fees. In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute relating
to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover
from the losing party reasonable expenses, attorney's fees and costs.

12.  Employee's Examination of Agreement. Employee acknowledges that
Employee has had the right to examine this Agreement, has been advised that Employee

may wish to consult with an attorney prior to entering into this Agreement and has read
and understands all of the provision of this Agreement.

13.  Severability. If any provision or any portion thereof contained in this
Agreement is held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this

Agreement or portion thereof, shall be deemed to be severable and shall remain in full
force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Employee and the City of Marina, by its duly
authorized representative, have executed this Agreement on the date first bereinabove set

forth at Marina, California.

CITY OF MARINA EMPLOYEE

9

Ze C. Délgado
Mayor

3 [N

o ' Laﬁt;le P. Long

Apprgved as to form: -
u»j\z‘ [/ ~_,}J,C &;"
City Attorney J
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GOVERNMENT CODE
SECTION 53243-53243.4

53243. On or after January 1, 2012, any contract executed or

renewed between a local agency and an officer or employee of a local
agency that provides paid leave salary offered by the local agency to
the officer or employee pending an investigation shall require that
any salary provided for that purpose be fully reimbursed if the
officer or employee is convicted of a crime involving -an abuse of his
or her office or position.

53243.1. On or after January 1, 2012, any contract executed or
renewed between a local agency and an officer or employee of a local
agency that provides funds for the legal criminal defense of an
officer or employee shall require that any funds provided for that
purpose be fully reimbursed to the local agency if the officer or
employee is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his or her
office or position.

53243.,2. On or after January 1, 2012, any contract of employwment
between an employee and a local agency employer shall include a
provision which provides that, regardless of the term of the
contract, if the contract is terminated, any cash settlement related
to the termination that an employee may receive from the local agency
shall be fully reimbursed to the local agency if the employee is
convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his or her office or
position.

53243.3. On or after January 1, 2012, if a local agency provides,

in the absence of a contractual obligation, for any of the payments
described in this article, then the employee or officer receiving any
payments provided for those purposes shall fully reimburse the local
agency that provided those payments in the event that the employee

or officer is convicted of a crime involving the abuse of his or her
office or position.

53243.4. For purposes of this article, "abuse of office or position®
means either of the following:

(a) An abuse of public authority, including, but not limited to,
waste, fraud, and violation of the law under color of authority.

(b) A crime against public justice, including, but not limited to,
a crime described in Title 5 (commencing with Section 67) or Title 7
{commencing with Section 92) of Part 1 of the Penal Code.

EXHIBIT
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EXHIBIT B

AMENDMENT No. 1
TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
CITY MANAGER

In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, City and Employee agree that
the Terms and Conditions set forth herein are incorporated into the Agreement for Employment
made and entered into on March 29, 2013, by and between the City of Marina, a California
charter city and Layne P. Long. Only the numbered sections and subsections of said Agreement
which are being revised are set forth below in this Amendment No. 1; all other terms and
conditions of the Agreement of Employment shall remain in full force and effect.

3. Compensation

a) For the services to be performed under this Agreement, City shall pay Employee a
salary of seventeen thousand five hundred eighty-five and 33 cents ($17,585.33) per month.

On the first day of each calendar year for years: 2017, 2018, and 2019, Employee’s
salary shall increase by no less than three percent (3%) for each applicable calendar year. This is
a minimum percentage increase and does not preclude a higher percentage to maintain what the
Council determines to be a reasonable differential above the next highest paid City official.
Compensation shall be evaluated by the City Council on an annual basis and will include
consideration of both merit and cost-of-living increases provided to Department Directors and
non-represented management employees, as well as consideration of the competitive market
compensation for city managers in comparable cities at the time of performance evaluations.

C) Accrual and credit for personal leave and administrative leave shall be as
provided for in the Directors MOU, and any subsequent modifications thereto approved by the
City Council, as if the Employee had been employed for sixteen years. Employee shall be
entitled to take off such municipal holidays as are recognized by the City.

Q) In lieu of providing a city owned and maintained vehicle for Employee’s use, City
shall pay to Employee a vehicle allowance of $400 per month and Employee shall use and
maintain a private vehicle. Employee shall be responsible for providing all necessary liability
insurance for the use of his personal vehicle for City business and shall provide proof of such
insurance to the City upon request. Employee shall also be responsible for all maintenance,
repair, and replacement costs associated with the use of his personal vehicle. Finally, Employee
shall comply with all vehicle laws and City policies related to safe operation of a motor vehicle
when operating his vehicle for a business-related purpose.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Employee and the City of Marina, by its duly authorized
representative, have executed this Agreement on the date first hereinabove set forth at Marina, California.

CITY OF MARINA

By

Bruce C. Delgado
Mayor

Approved as to form:

City Attorney

EMPLOYEE

Layne P. Long
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